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Corporate Profile
2 A

Shenzhen Investment Limited has been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 1997.
Shum Yip Group, being its controlling shareholder, is an integrated conglomerate directly managed by State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of Shenzhen Municipal. Positioned as an “Innovative Constructor of Industrial

Cities, Wealthy Livelihood Operator”, the Company'’s core businesses include property development, property investment
and comprehensive urban operation services, and it also engages in innovative businesses such as high-tech agriculture
and high-end manufacturing, endeavoring to transform and upgrade into a technology-based industry group focusing on the

development of urban complex and investment in technology industry.

By intensifying its development in Shenzhen, focusing on the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area and planning
for its development in the Yangtze River Delta and high-tier cities such as key provincial capital cities, the Group currently
has a land reserve with gross floor area of approximately 6.74 million square meters in various cities of China, of which the
quality land reserve with gross floor area of approximately 4.28 million square meters is located in the Greater Bay Area. The
Company is committed to optimizing its land reserves structure, and concentrates its assets and business in the Greater Bay
Area as well as high-tier cities in key regions.

It has all along been the Company’s core strategic goal to promote the long term sustainable development of its business,
with an aim to bring a stable return and create value appreciation for its shareholders.

RNEREBRAAMITFETRBSRZAERVAIRLT - HERRRAXEERRATHEZEENARGEMOEE
B AERREAAFERE  ERREELHNEN - UNERR  NERERATFLELRBAROER - ARSES
MEX - BRRESANEY  BIRBEAFRUATGEHREE - NREXNREBBATRNNRLEXRRE -
RERMARY - BREBANEE  ARR=ABIREHRESESHEANT - BAAKEARBANSER R EERERERR
ROTABT AR LifEE - HPURABENEE I RENBEARVI28EF LK - RARNELIHRENER - BEE
HEBEDABENEXEBANSRRATES -
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Corporate Profile
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Corporate Information
UNEIR-g L

Executive Directors
Dr. LU Hua, Chairman
Ms. CAl Xun

Ms. SHI Xiaomei

Non-executive Director
Mr. DONG Fang
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Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael
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Highlights of 2021 Results
2021 4EE AT

Results

F

For the year ended 31 December

HZ12A318ILEE

Changes

23

2021 2020

20215 2020

HK$ million HK$ million

X% BEAT

Revenue Yz 32,050.31 18,803.01

Cost of sales SHEMR A (19,624.56) (9,988.43)

Gross profit EM 12,425.75 8,814.58
Share of results of joint ventures [ElEEE AR REE AR

and associates RERR 843.45 1,254.29

Profit before income tax BR AT S B AT R A 3,647.98 8,133.60
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to AN AR R R F A RE(S

owners of the Company (B18)/ &7 (2,721.89) 3,722.86

Basic (loss)/earning per share (HK cents) BREX (BRB)/ B (BL) (30.58) 42.03
Interim and proposed final dividend per share RPBREZRARE

(HK cents) G201 15.00 18.00

70.45%
96.47%
40.97%

(32.75)%
(55.15)%

Turning profit
to loss

BEE

Turning profit
to loss

BEE

(16.67)%

Financial Position

B ARL

As at 31 December
®12A31H

Changes

2021 2020

20214 2020

HK$ million HK$ million

BEBT BEAT

Net assets excluding non-controlling interests BESE (TeEHERER) 49,174.93 50,624.29

Cash and bank deposits (including restricted Be RRTER

bank deposits) (BREXBRHBTER) 22,775.61 18,710.44

Net loans FER 15,321.63 12,117.97
Net assets per share excluding non-controlling ~ SIREEFE (FEEFERER)

interests (HK$) (#T) 5.53 5.69

(2.86)%

21.73%
26.44%

(2.81)%
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Highlights of 2021 Results
2021 4F A

Key Ratios
FEIR

EHE
FEREEEFE

Gross profit margin

Net loan to net assets excluding
non-controlling interests

Dividend payout ratio on core profit (Note 1) ZOFER SR (fF1)

(T EEFERER) <&

38.77 46.88
31.16 23.94
34.32 35.02

Results (by operating segment)

R (BEEAE)
2021 2020
20215 2020F
HKS$ million HK$ million
HEBAET BEET
Turnover EXE
Property development NEER 26,660.23 14,079.64
Property investment MERE 1,497.43 1,223.20
Property management MEEE 2,477.64 2,225.95
Manufacturing g 456.45 347.29
Others Hit 958.56 926.93
Total k] 32,050.31 18,803.01
Segment Results — Profits/(losses) PEEE - BF(BR)
Property development MEERE 8,410.43 6,002.40
Property investment (Note 2) MERE (H52) 367.79 182.32
Property management MEER 467.45 169.56
Manufacturing S 54.57 71.33
Others Hih 299.24 (98.50)
Total k] 9,599.48 6,327.11
Notes: MisE
1 Core profit is the profit attributable to owners of the Company excluding the net change in 1 BOFEARR R KRR EGEFE (TRER
fair value of investment properties and change in fair value of financial assets. BEMELABEEDREHEEARELEFHE) -
2 Segment results included the losses result from changes in fair value of and transfer to 2 DEEBEPREREAMELAAEZHNEHEETE
investment properties approximately HK$405.65 million (2020: HK$677.13 million). BYEELENEIELAL05.658 88T (20204 -
677.13EBETT) -
3 Details of segment results of the Group is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial 3 REBDBEBEF BN G M BRRMES -

statements.
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Five-Year Financial Summary
T AR B 5 i B

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
20215 20204 20194 20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAET THT FEx FAT
Results ¥4
Revenue & 32,050,306 18,803,011 14,919,474 16,642,765 10,254,496
Profit before income tax BRET SR AR 3,647,978 8,133,603 6,684,537 6,803,008 7,664,682
Income tax expense Frig Y (5,748,231)  (4,170,113)  (2,307,247)  (3,104,271) (2,465,462
(Loss)/profit for the year R (FE) /BN (2,100,253) 3,963,490 4,377,290 3,698,737 5,199,220
Attributable to: THIEL -
Owners of the Company AAAIERRE (2,721,886) 3,722,856 4,062,796 3,415,223 4,950,941
Non-controlling interests R 621,633 240,634 314,494 283,514 248,279
(2,100,253) 3,963,490 4,377,290 3,608,737 5,199,220
Assets, liabilities and non- BE - 8K
controlling interests FERES
Current assets REEE 99,570,373 85,765,676 61,565,489 61,493,029 62,963,238
Non-current assets FRBEE 63,195,498 66,510,150 63,707,453 56,527,120 54,263,909
Total assets BEE 162,765,871 152,275,826 125,272,942 118,020,149 117,227,147
Total liabilities BEE (108,395,991)  (96,869,978)  (76,900,647) (72,576,453) (72,126,315)
Net assets BEFE 54,369,880 55,405,848 48,372,295 45443696 45,100,832
Non-controlling interests R (5,194,954)  (4,781,563)  (3,897,639)  (3,739,721)  (3,632,591)
Total equity attributable to owners of AREERRREN
the Company EReE 49,174,926 50,624,285 44474656 41,703,975 41,468,241
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Chairman’s Statement
B EG

Riding on the trend of urban reform, the
Group will make persistent efforts to
seize development opportunities to make
greater contributions to social, economic
and urban development, and create more
satisfactory returns for shareholders.

AEYI T 58 5 A B AT T v i > A 4R 5 4
W Z DS Ty » SESE OB > Roit
BRSO R A BOR
Al 7 B8 BHAE Y ] R

LU Hua & 3
Chairman = &

5+ Qianhai Parkview Bay
ASEERN - g



& Shum Yip Taifu Square
REREES

2021 was a milestone year witnessing the 100th anniversary of the founding
of the CCP, the realization of the first centenary goal and the beginning of a
new journey towards the second centenary goal. With its efforts to accelerate
the building of a new development pattern, comprehensively deepen the reform
and opening up and adhere to innovation-driving development, China has made
new achievements in promoting its high-quality development and maintained a
global-leading position in economic development and pandemic prevention and
control. In such a turbulent time interwoven with a once-in-a-century pandemic,
internally, facing the complex and severe environment, China’'s economy is
still under the “triple pressure”, namely shrinking demand, supply shocks and
weakening expectations, and the uncertainties and risk factors still exist.

20 FRABERBEEN—F - TREREERY
—ERF ERF-MEEFEMEE  ARAE_E
BFEEMEZHEENMRECE @ ZRENRERTER
BB 2EFMCAERN - BRAFRSEE - i
BRUERRETAMEHAM  EELXENRIBHE
REZHRELIA - EHEFERELLTERLE
e EHERREARE - BREEDAEBSRK
G HeEE  BHERNZEEN  THETHERE
BRRKRAETE
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Chairman’s Statement
BV 5

Real estate enterprises were confronted with unprecedented challenges in 2021.
In the first half of the year, the real estate regulations were further tightened,
such as the nationwide implementation of the “Three Red Lines” policy and the
loan concentration risk management system, as well as the implementation of
the “Double-Concentration Land Supply” policy in 22 cities. Against the backdrop,
the performance of cities at different tiers varied. The first-tier cities showed
strong resilience; the second-tier cities generally maintained stable, with certain
differences between coastal and inland cities; and in the third-tier and fourth-
tier cities, market dropped further. In the second half of the year, as the liquidity
concerns in some real estate enterprises damaged the overall market confidence,
the growth momentum of real estate trading weakened significantly, the
differentiation of real estate enterprises intensified, the pressure on financing and
debt repayment increased, and also more and more mergers and acquisitions
took place in the real estate and property industry, which made the industry more
concentrated and accelerated the survival of the fittest. Affected by fluctuations
in the industry, the fair value of financial assets held by the Group incurred a
significant non-cash loss.

In an increasingly changing and challenging environment, the Group forged
ahead with courage and fortitude by adhering to the development concept of
prudent growth. It reached recent-year new highs in both resource expansion and
property sales. With the accelerated development of its strategically innovative
businesses and the satisfactory performance of all its principal business sectors,
the Group has taken a solid new step in the opening year of the “14th Five-year
Plan”.

2021 Results

During the year, the Group realized revenue of HK$32,050.3 million, representing
an increase of 70% over last year. Gross profit was HK$12,425.7 million,
representing an increase of 41% over last year. Affected by industry fluctuations,
the Group's financial assets incurred a significant fair value impairment of
approximately HK$6,374.9 million. Loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company was HK$2,721.9 million. If excluding the net effect of changes in fair
value of investment properties attributable to the Group and fair value of financial
assets, profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was HK$3,890.5
million. The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK8.00 cents
per share for 2021 in cash.

FHELEE2021FEZAMMRBONS - L¥FT
AXEEMS  [ZBARINERETEERLAE
i 22WEER T - TRRERRTRRAEME
Bl —RETEMRE  —RATRRZTERS
EMAERT AR - =& T EEMmE - T
TEBNECEARRBDERSE - THEBELR
B BERERDEARES - BB - &
EREBEAMA - ERNETEHBSIHES
TEEREE—FRI - BBLHKNE - RITERY
PE ASERANEREEANBEELANBEE
REREXK

EMEZ(L - FRRBOTRRET - FRERER
PRENERES - FAER - BERIER - ERAR
MEHEDMNFHS - BRAMEBMEEE -
FIEEBRAHMET S ARENKE - £ +X
TIARZEBLTREHNFK -

20214 344

TR KEEERLEHEI2,0503F588 T &
FER70% : EF12,425.7HEBT - BEF LR
% AEBEREESITERIVERLAAE
BERERELG,374.95 BB o AABERRENE
5EE2,721. 9688 - MIBAEERBERED
ENNAEEREREEAABEEINFYE K
DAESREREEEN3,8905HB BT - E5EE
EURE AR 2021 FRER B FA8.00/81l -
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Satisfactory Contracted Sales and Substantial Increase in Booked
Revenue

Against the backdrop of tightened real estate regulations, in 2021, the Group
seized the market opportunities to strengthen marketing innovation and promotion
of key projects. It realized annual contracted sales of approximately RMB19.1
billion (equivalent to approximately HK$23 billion), representing an increase of
32% over last year and exceeding the contract sales target of 2021. Satisfactory
performance was made in each region where our projects are located. Projects in
the Greater Bay Area accounted for 67% of overall sales. Our star projects, such
as Shum Yip Zhongcheng, Shenzhen and Songhu Yuncheng, Dongguan, were
sold out on the first day of going on sale. Project sales in Nanjing, Changsha,
Chengdu and many other cities exceeded expectations. The construction of
Ma'anshan and Jiangyan projects were completed successfully.

During the year, the Group has steadily promoted the construction of its key
projects. The construction of Terra Licheng, Parkview Bay, Shum Yip Zhongcheng,
and Ma’anshan Shum Yip Huafu projects were completed smoothly and realized
income from real estate development and sales of approximately HK$26,660.2
million, representing a significant increase of 89% over last year. Gross profit
margin of real estate development maintained at a high level at approximately
40% and brought considerable returns to shareholders.

A Record High in Land Resources Expansion

In 2021, against the background of tightened real estate regulation policy and
industry-wide capital shortage, the Group relied on its capital advantages to
take opportunities from the land market for land resources expansion. By means
of open market auction, industrial land application, urban renewal and asset
injection, the Group acquired 16 land projects in 12 cities during the year, adding
capacity building areas of land reserve of approximately 3.22 million square
meters. Such projects are strategically located with 90% in first-tier and second-
tier cities and 67% in Greater Bay Area, and are expected to bring high returns.

Chairman’s Statement
3% ek

o
=

HEREEAN > SR KRR

EEHERZLENERT - 2021F - AKELE
mEEE - MREHAMNERHEREE - 2FER
ARBEELBAUINETARE (FREKN230E
L) BEF ER32% - BRTK2021FAREER
T REHERRHNZ - NERBAMGERHES
7% RYREDH - RELHERSHAERRE
BRRNEE By &Y - KBSHHHEBHE
BHEY : BB - ZBEEBIEAYE -

R - AREEHABRRBSMEE - TR - B

EREMERBHEWAL26,6602888T &
FRIBLRSI% - BHIERBEFERLL40% - BT
ERRREFKT - BRREFATEHRIER o
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ZHEET AEEREESED  LELMMIGH
e RHE  BELHTHERN - EXDH
WEH - BEIAESEAN - LREZE12EET
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RETAREY32EFT K BEMEUEEH -
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Chairman’s Statement
BV 5

The Group has made early planning to be well-positioned to seize market
opportunities and participate in the centralized land auctions in many cities. It
acquired several quality commercial and residential projects in Shenzhen, Nanjing,
Changsha, etc. Through urban renewal and asset injection, the Group acquired
quality commercial and residential projects in Futian District and Pingshan
District, Shenzhen. It made a breakthrough in industrial land application. Focusing
on attracting high-end hydrogen energy industry, the Group has successfully
expanded into Jiading District, Shanghai, thus establishing its presence in
Shanghai for the first time. Furthermore, by acquiring property projects in
Ma'anshan and Jiangyin successively, the Group started the establishment of
an industrial park in the Yangtze River Delta. The Group acquired a project in
Longquanyi, a district in Chengdu famous for auto manufacturing, in the mode
of industrial export, to further consolidate its development. With the concerted
efforts of all employees, during the year, the Group has expanded resources to
a new record high, laying a solid foundation for its sustainable and high-quality
development in the “14th Five-Year Plan” period.

Operational Excellence in Investment Property Business

Overcoming the impact of the pandemic and other adverse factors, the Group
made efforts to promote the transformation and upgrading of vacant leasehold
properties, and also carried out business optimization and iteration in an actively
manner, which boosted the unit rent level. With its unremitting efforts, the
Group’s annual rental income amounted to HK$1,497.4 million, representing an
increase of 22% over last year.

Urban Operations Integration Showing Some Initial Effect and Gaining
Significantly Improved Comprehensive Competitive Edge

Upon completion of the integration of its property management service, intelligent
park operation, commercial operation, hotel management and property city
business as well as optimization and enhancement of the management, the
Group has been fully upgraded to an urban comprehensive operation service
company with “a diversified business mix, an extensive customer base and a wide
range of services”, significantly improving its business scale, brand influence and
comprehensive competitive edge.

AEERARE  LETHRE - 2RSEARTOR
hftEE - BRI R - RPERTERELR
FIHE - BBRMERMEEIA - KINERYITE
HE - FUREREERXMETER - EXOWE
ABRRE - NSRSk REXATE - KNk
ELBRETE  BRETHE - LARESHWLU T
CEREXMEERR ARER=ZARBREXELEM
B AREBRAEREREHEAERHERER
BRE - E-SHRER - £R 0 AKELTHARE
N BRBRAELHS  AITRE] HEFES
EERRITTTREERR -

By 2 vl
FEERREBREMTIMERFE - AOkH=
MELENEAR  THFRRAREEMER - B
BEKEHEETRA - BAETEE N - XEERF
MEWAT,497 ABBATT - BEF LiR22% ©

TR R B A BT EE R

AKEXRETNERY - E2ERE - BXEL B
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The affiliated urban comprehensive operation service company of the Group has
37 years of rich experience in property services, with its businesses covering
various property types such as residences, office buildings, public facilities, etc..
The Company has strong external expansion strength, and its comprehensive
strength ranks among the top 50 in the country in terms of property services.
In terms of park services, with Terra Golden Valley and Tianan Cyber Park
as typical examples, the Company has built the digital parks characterized
by intelligent hardware, platform-based management, enterprise digitization,
and industrial ecology, leading China’s park services. In terms of commercial
operation, the first Galeries Lafayette in South China settled in UpperHills, the
Shenzhen Design Week was held, the City Cloud Living Room was put into use,
and the first Mandarin Oriental Hotel in Shenzhen opened, which were extensively
recognized by the governments and merchants, and enhanced the brand image
of “Shum Yip”. In terms of city services, as the leader of property city services
in the Greater Bay Area, the Company took the lead in entering the blue ocean
of property city. Since the successful landing of Shenzhen's first “property city”
pilot project in 2019, the Company has successively provided all-round property
city services relating to city appearance, public safety, property management,
community services, Party building and government affairs, etc. for six sub-
districts in Shenzhen, including Jihua Sub-district, Baolong Sub-district, Meilin
Sub-district, Xiangmihu Sub-district, and Futian Sub-district, etc.. Currently, the
Company ranks first in the number of property city projects in Shenzhen, with a
market share of over 20%, and is promoting the excellent management model to
other cities. As a pioneer in the property city industry, the Company has deeply
participated in and led the preparation of the country’s first group standard for
property management city, and has been persistently promoting the development
of the industry.

Chairman’s Statement
3% ek
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Chairman’s Statement
BV 5

Innovative Businesses Accumulating Transformation Momentum

In the start year of the “14th Five-Year Plan”, the Group promoted its business
transformation and development, with focus on the strategic vision of “innovation-
builder of the city and industry, and operator of people’s well-being”. In terms of
industry-city integration, the Group has built core industrial capabilities, formed
an attractive, replicable and exportable industrial brand, and exported industrial
models to high-energy cities outside the Greater Bay Area. A number of industrial
park projects have been implemented in Shanghai, Chengdu, Ma'anshan
etc., demonstrating the Group's capacity of industry and city innovation has
been further improved. In terms of people’s well-being, the Group’s subsidiary
Agricultural Science Company actively developed high-tech agriculture to promote
rural revitalization: Dapeng Aerospace Breeding Ecological Industrial Park was
rated as a vegetable basket base in Shenzhen and a vegetable base for supply
to Hong Kong and Macao. As the first provider of urban green scenario services
in Shenzhen, the Company focuses on the two major markets of “plant seedling
factory and urban agricultural scenario”. The Company has witnessed explosive
growth in sales of its agricultural products, furthermore, its functional agricultura
products such as selenium-rich sweet potatoes and folate-rich corn have been
certified as “Shenzhen Products”. Being concerned about food security, the
Company has signed strategic cooperation with top scientific research institutes
and high-quality social capital at home and abroad to build Shenzhen Seed Group.
In terms of technology, its subsidiary Shenzhen Jinghua Displays Electronics
Co., Ltd., a scarce high-end manufacturing enterprise under State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of People’s Government of Shenzhen
Municipality, has developed after accumulation and precipitation into a national
high-tech enterprise, which is dedicated to the field of human-machine interface
display, with a wide range of product applications. Its cooperative customers
include dozens of world-renowned multinational companies, and it is actively
seeking to accelerate its development in the capital market. Through hard
work, the Group’s innovative businesses such as industry and city, well-being
and technology have been accelerated, accumulating momentum for further
transformation and optimization.

AR R BB R B B Re
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Deepened Management Reform Promoting Digital Empowerment

To meet the strategic development needs of the “14th Five-Year Plan”, in 2021,
the Group promoted the reform of organizational management and control
and the digitalized planning and construction to secure its sustainable high-
quality development from the perspectives of organization, mechanism and
system. In terms of organizational management and control, the Group made
organizational restructuring and optimized business control and management.
Through process reengineering, the Group strengthened industrial research and
business management, intensified the construction of a talent team, optimized
performance incentive mechanism, and also enhanced the internal driving force
for enterprise development. In terms of digital construction, the Group made
digital strategic plans based on overall considerations, laying a solid foundation
for the digital transformation of the Group, and successfully built the Shum Yip
cloud platform. Given the development needs of each business segment, the
Group actively promoted the digitalization of parks, operations, and industrial big
data platforms, vigorously promoted industrial digitization, explored smart cities
and future city construction scenarios, and planned for the future, with a view of
enabling the overall transformation of the Group through technology.

Highly Efficient and Stable Financial Management

In the context of tightened financial regulations in the real estate industry, the
Group focused on the centralized capital planning and financing management
to maximize capital efficiency and provide financial support for land bidding and
the investment in emerging industries. The Group controlled financing costs at a
relatively low level in the industry, with the average comprehensive interest rate
of bank and other borrowings at 3.0%.

In addition, the Group further expanded its funding channels and completed the
issuance of the Shum Yip Taifu Smart Industrial Park Asset-backed Special Plan
("CMBS”) with an issuance scale of RMB1.8 billion and a priority coupon rate of
3.88%. In addition, it completed the issuance of the Asset-backed Special Plan
for Industrial Parks in Pilot Demonstration Zones (‘CMBS”) with its Terra Golden
Valley Industrial Park as the underlying assets, with an issuance scale of RMB2
billion and a priority coupon rate of 3.8%. Both asset securitization products set
the lowest interest rate for this category of products in the current period. On 31
December, 2021, the net debt ratio (including all interest-bearing liabilities) was
maintained at a reasonable level of 61.2%. All indicators involving the “three red
lines” remained green, and the financial management was stable and excellent.

Chairman’s Statement
3% ek

FARAT B > 4B B LR AE
RERE[TOL BRERFE - 2021 FAKEREE
ABEREERBTRIER  ERERFLAD
BEURBRRRATAS  HUINRRRE - 4
BWEEIR  FRERRABRBEELEBELZE
b BARESE  MREXMENAREE - Bt
ATBRER - BLERARRS - BREEHERA
Th o BFEERNIE - AREREHERFCEE
RE > REENBFCEUEFRENAR - WK
TERXETR  BASEBRRERTR - BHE
ERREE - B  EXABBTANBTF(LEZY
B ANEDEXBFL - RREBHUT - REHD
BEBSR - HRAK  UNMBEEERRER -

S A LR o AR
EEWESHETBRMNRIET - AEENEEEE
RHREMPEERE  RHRBELESERNE - ALt
BRETREEREARBESTHE - AEEBREN
RS ETEBREAT - RTREMERTHEAF
E&E3.0% °

Woh - AEBE-FSHEEERE  THAERET
EHTEXREESBEHEE ([CMBS)) #11T
- BITRERBIBETARYE  BARZEFRA
3.88% : TRAE TRASAEXRAREEEN.
rEREXREEYHERETE ([CMBS]) BT
TE- #IRBE20BTARE - BERZENEA
3.8% - MELERAERIAERZRBERRE
FIE - 2021F12A31BFEEX (REMARRE
&) #HE61 2%MAEKTE - [ZEIE ] SHEE
BREGRE - BEEEEREY -



01 8 Shenzhen Investment Limited & 3)[{2f% A BR A7) » Annual Report 4 3§ 2021

Chairman’s Statement
BV 5

Receiving Highest Rating for Outstanding ESG Performance

The Group adheres to a high standard in advancing its commitment to corporate
social responsibilities and sustainable development, and has published the
“Environmental, Social Governance Report” for 6 consecutive years. In 2021,
during the ESG ratings assessment by MSCI, the largest index rating agency in
the world, the Group again received a rating of “A”, the highest among domestic
real estate enterprises for two consecutive years, showing the Group has been
highly recognized by the capital market not only for its ESG practice but also its
corporate governance and long-term development.

Equity Interests in Hengda Real Estate

As a strategic investor, the Group invested RMB5.5 billion in the equity interests
in Hengda Real Estate in 2017 to support its restructuring in the domestic capital
market. During the year, the real estate industry decline brought Hengda Real
Estate into liquidity crisis. As a result, the fair value of the equity interests in
Hengda Real Estate held by the Group decreased significantly. At the end of
2021, the fair value was approximately HK$461 million, and the Group incurred
fair value loss of approximately HK$6.4 billion. Although the fair value loss did
not affect the cash flow and daily operation of the Group due to its non-cash
nature, it had a significant adverse impact on the profitability of the Group for
2021 and resulted in a loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Group of
approximately HK$2.7 billion for 2021. After the fair value change adjustment, the
uncertainty of Hengda Real Estate’s equity interests will not have any significant
adverse impact on the Group. The Group will actively seek the revitalization and
disposal of the relevant assets under the guidance and help of the government,
and strive to minimize losses.

Outlook

Market Outlook

The current domestic and international situation is characterized by turbulence
and a once-in-a-century pandemic, and the external environment tends to be
more complex and challenging. The real estate industry is now seen an in-
depth reform on the supply side. At the Central Economic Work Conference,
the government reaffirmed that “house is a place to live instead of a tool for
speculation”. Under such policy keynote, the market will strive to seek a balance
between deleveraging and stabilization, deepen the establishment of a long-term
effective mechanism, stabilize land prices, house prices and expectations, and
implement policies tailor made for different cities to promote the virtuous circle
and healthy development of the real estate industry.
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Operation of real estate enterprises based on ‘high turnover’ and ‘excessive
financialization” is unsustainable. The industry is back to the basics of well-being
and the real estate enterprises are gradually shifting their strategy to pursue
sustainable high-quality operation and refined management. While maintaining
steady development, making rational choices on the types of properties, i.e.,
whether for rent, commerce or operation, upholding the long-term operation and
green development, and taking financial stability as the premise, management
control as the foundation and innovation as the driving force may help excellent
real estate enterprises to go through the cycle safe and sound and realize
transformation. The year 2022 can be viewed as the starting point of a new
pattern of the real estate industry. In the long run, after experiencing the pains of
industry restructuring and the cutting down of redundant production capacity, the
real estate industry will usher in a virtuous circle and healthy development with
the improvement of policies.

The implementation of comprehensive reform of state-owned assets and state-
owned enterprises in Shenzhen has brought historic opportunities for the
development of the Group. The ability of scientific and technological innovation
is becoming a decisive factor of comprehensive national strength. The central
government will deeply implement the innovation-driven development strategy,
promote scientific and technological innovation, and expedite industrial
optimization and upgrading. Facing the country’s strategic mission of “self-
reliance and self-improvement in science and technology”, Shenzhen will increase
resource inclination and investment with the aim at building technological
and industrial innovation highlands with global influence, implement major
technological infrastructure construction, promote key and core technological
breakthroughs, and introduce and strengthen strategic emerging industries,
which will provide favorable policy and environmental support for the Group's
cultivation of the technology industry. In response to the central government’s
call of “achieving seed industry’s turnaround”, Shenzhen has introduced several
measures to build a pioneering demonstration zone for agricultural science
and technology innovation, including promoting independent innovation and
industrialization of biological breeding, supporting the comprehensive promotion
of rural revitalization, and innovating models of modern urban agricultural
development, etc., which will help Shenzhen’s agricultural science and technology
industry to form an ecological chain of whole-process innovation featuring
‘basic research, technological breakthrough, industrialization of achievements,
science and technology finance, and talent support”. With its critical period of
transformation organically coupled with major historical opportunities, the Group
will actively embrace reform and innovation, solidly build a strategic pivot for a
new development pattern, and achieve rapid development with the prosperity of
the country and region.
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Improving Management for Prudent Growth

The Group defines 2022 as the “year of management improvement”. The
Group will comprehensively improve its management efficiency primarily by
‘organizational reform and digital transformation”, supplemented by “talent
team construction”. Underpinned by intersegment collaboration, the Group
will implement and seek high-quality and sustainable development in a
comprehensive and sable manner. Taking the opportunity of organizationa
reform, the Group will effectively improve its governance and organization
capability, focus on business empowerment and value creation, strengthen city
operation and industrial research, identify and integrate enterprise resources
expand park operation, optimize business management and asset management,
and improve its brand construction in alignment with the industrial benchmark.
Meanwhile, with a focus on professional enhancement and execution excellence,
the Group will improve the specialization and standardization level of its core
businesses to reduce cost and improve quality and efficiency, while improving
the capability of innovative businesses expansion and accelerating the
expansion of business scale. Supported by digital transformation and driven by
new technologies such as 5G, cloud computing, big data, Internet of Things,
artificial intelligence, etc., the Group will create five core projects such as lean
real estate project, digital and intelligent park project, agile operation project,
well-being responsibility project, and capital efficiency enhancement project,
build digital Shum Yip, help the innovative construction of industry and city
and empower the operation of people’s well-being. Additionally, starting from
talent team construction, the Group will accelerate the innovation of system
and mechanism, reinforce the planning and deployment of talent training and
introduction and promote the performance-based compensation package to
enhance the internal driving force for enterprise development. The improvement
of internal management will inject new momentum from mechanism into the
Group, consolidate development foundation, build strong resilience against
intense market competition and provide a strong support for the realization of the
strategic objectives of the Group.
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Operation Plans for 2022

In 2022, the Group will remain committed to “prudent growth” and further
leverage its fundraising and cost advantages to actively promote operation.
From the perspective of resource expansion, following the expansion of high-
quality land reserve in 2021, the Group will give full play to its advantages to
select the best from the best, and steadily expand high-quality resources in
the Greater Bay Area and regional higher-tier cities. It will further focus on and
make breakthroughs in urban renewal, land consolidation and industrial land
application to optimize the allocation of resources. In the fields of open market
auction, mergers and acquisitions, the Group will strengthen the preliminary
project planning and research, accurately identify and select projects with high
marketability and good returns, and steadily increase its land reserves.

In the aspect of real estate development, the Group will strengthen project
control during and after project investment, speed up project progress and
turnover, promote contracted sales, and accelerate the collection of funds. The
annual saleable value of the Group for 2022 will exceed RMB40 billion, and the
contracted sales target is RMB20 billion. In terms of property investment, the
Group will continue to optimize the business structure of investment properties,
improve the unit efficiency of existing properties and businesses and maintain
stable growth in rental income.

In respect of comprehensive urban operation, the Group will rely on the third-
party expansion advantages to step up effort in the expansion of public buildings,
parks, and commercial and office buildings. Meanwhile, depending on the
strategic cooperation relationships with local governments in each region,
the Group will accelerate the establishment of its presence in the city service
segment, aiming to realize over “100 million” sq.m. under management and
release value in the capital market as appropriate.

In terms of high-end manufacturing, its subsidiary Jinghua Displays will
accelerate capacity expansion and efficiency improvement, steadily promote
restructuring and listing guidance, and seek IPQ listing in suitable capital market.
In terms of high-tech agriculture, the Group will actively explore an agricultural
industry chain ecosystem with “high-end agricultural product value chain”
as the core and “scientific and technological innovation in the seed industry
and integration of the three agricultural industries” as the growth point, by
opportunities of mergers and acquisitions or cooperation.
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Continuous Transformation and Optimization in Advancing the “14th
Five-Year Plan” Blueprint

Based on the strategic vision of “Innovative Constructor of Industrial Cities,
Wealthy Livelihood Operator”, the Group is committed to upgrading and
transforming into a technology-based industry group principally engaged in the
development of urban complex and investment in technology industry. The Group
will promote the high-quality development of the real estate segment as its
cornerstone business, and comprehensively improve management for continuous
transformation, optimization and improvement. In the aspect of industry-
city integration, the Group will focus on the major projects of the controlling
shareholders, including Guangming Science City, Baguang Biological Valley and
Henggang South Industrial Zone to facilitate the integration of industrial resources
and industrial capacity, and develop its value creation capability in all respects of
industry-city innovation, covering industrial investment, overall regional planning,
comprehensive development and construction and urban operation. In terms of
operation, vertically, the Group will further develop its advantageous businesses
focus on value-added services, strengthen commercial operation services,
improve brand awareness of “Shum Yip" and establish urban service systems;
horizontally, the Group will expand business through mergers and acquisitions by
identifying high-quality and intellectual targets in the upstream and downstream
of the industry in order to realize leapfrog growth and economies of scale, and
endeavor to become “the most valuable urban service provider”. In relation
to technology, driven by digital transformation and industry-city innovation
the Group will work harder on the identification, investment and cultivation of
technology industry to enable technology-based product upgrading and business
transformation.
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Through the transformation and optimization in the “14th Five-year Plan”
period, the Group is expected to establish a diversified business portfolio. While
accelerating performance growth, it will deepen the development of strategically-
innovative businesses to build a group of listed companies and improve enterprise
value. In the meantime, it will maintain stable dividends to reward shareholders
and investors.

“The road is obstacle-packed and long but you will get through if you keep
going.” The Group will improve its management capability with fortitude and
determination, and seek progress amid stability with foresight and caution. Riding
on the trend of urban reform, the Group will make persistent efforts to seize
development opportunities to improve its sustainable development and value
creation capability, and realize enterprise transformation thus making greater
contributions to social, economic and urban development, and creating more
satisfactory returns for shareholders.

LU Hua
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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Overall Results

In 2021, the real estate market faced great challenges underpinned by the
principal policy of “stabilizing land prices, housing prices and expectations”.
Against such a backdrop, various related policies were released in many places
and regulations continued to intensify in popular cities. The full implementation of
“Three Red Lines” and loan concentration management and the promotion of the
“Dual-Concentrations Land Supply policy in 22 cities increased the financing and
debt repayment pressure of real estate enterprises, intensified the differentiation
between companies, resulted in liquidity difficulties of certain enterprises, and
enhanced the industry concentration. Despite of the tightened policy environment,
the Group actively developed land resources and steadily implemented its
operations based on stable financial condition.

During the year, the Group realized revenue of approximately HK$32,050.3
million, representing an increase of 70% over last year. Gross profit was
HK$12,425.7 million, representing an increase of 41% over last year. The
overall gross profit margin was 39%. Due to a large amount of provision made
by the Group for the fair value of financial assets, losses attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company was HK$2,721.9 million, and basic losses per
share were HK30.58 cents. If excluding the net effect of changes in fair value
of investment properties attributable to the Group and changes in fair value of
financial assets, profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
HK$3,890.5 million.

Property Development Business

Sales Revenue Booked

During the year, the Group recorded property sales area booked of approximately
751,000 square meters (excluding interests attributable to the major associates
of the Group), representing an increase of 74% over last year, and achieved
net revenue from property sales of approximately HK$26,660.2 million (net of
value-added tax) (approximately RMB22,135.7 million), representing a significant
increase of 89% over last year. Gross profit margin of property development
and sales was 40%, representing a decrease of 13 percentage points over last
year. The percentage of Shenzhen projects over the sales revenue booked was
68%. During the year, the average gross profit margin of projects of the Group
in Shenzhen was approximately 48%, whereas the average gross profit margin of
projects in other cities was approximately 25%.
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Property Sales Booked in 2021

Property Name Booked Area Net Sales
BREE FEEER HEFH
(sg.m.) (RMB'000)
(F7K) (AREFT)
UpperHills Residential Shenzhen 5,112 346,141
RE T=x 3l
Taifu Square Office/apartment Shenzhen 25,817 1,405,569
REES BFE/ LB el
Shum Yip Zhongcheng Office/apartment/Residential Shenzhen 46,760 3,694,051
RERE OEY: PN Pacs A
Parkview Bay Residential Shenzhen 49,551 4,948,257
B T=x il
Terra Licheng Industrial Shenzhen 68,332 3,823,433
TR EX A
Shum Yip Dongling Residential Shenzhen 11,855 829,001
RERS T=E il
Jiangyue Bay Residential Guangzhou 358 9,707
TR Tx BN
Garden Hills Residential/commercial Huizhou 34,648 275,403
SIEY ) T=E =M
Wanlin Lake Residential/commercial Huizhou 2,545 24,376
B T,/ mH B2
Gaobangshan Garden Commercial Huizhou 50,315 526,194
SELEE L =M
Shum Yip City Residential Foshan 20,008 470,103
RE, T=x G
Shum Yip Rui Cheng Residential/commercial Changsha 15,700 106,934
B Fx/mH =92
Heron Mansion Residential Changsha 57,254 721,521
EER = =972
Nanhu Rose Bay Residential/villa Wuhan 609 28,400
R & F=,/ 5lE HE
Yihu Rose Garden Residential Chengdu 10,196 84,006
e RS T=x PR
Qinglong Mansion Residential Nanjing 57,229 1,674,274
BRLA FE Bx
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Property Name Booked Area Net Sales
BRER mEEE HE R
(sg.m.) (RMB’000)

(FRXK) (AR&FT)

Upper Life Residential Nanjing 47,407 1,127,694

FELE F= BxR

Ma'anshan Shum Yip Huafu Residential Ma'anshan 135,308 1,232,916

BRILARER TF 5t cqil

Royal Spring Garden Villa Chaohu 1,487 28,586

FHERE 7l E2 L

Splendid City Phase Il Residential Taizhou 98,906 774,855

REZH =5 FE ZM

Others Commercial 1,105 2,668

HE G

Parking space Parking space 10,375 97,557

Bf7 B

Total &5t 750,877 22,135,694

Contracted Sales ok

During the year, the Group realized contracted sales area of approximately
670,000 square meters and contracted sales amount of approximately
RMB19.10 billion. The average price per square meter was RMB28,642. The
contracted sales were mainly attributable to Shum Yip Zhongcheng in Shenzhen
which realized contracted sales of approximately RMB6.04 billion, Songhu
Yuncheng Garden in Dongguan which realized contracted sales of approximately
RMB2.64 billion, Qinglong Mansion in Nanjing which realized contracted sales of
approximately RMB1.94 billion and Shum Yip Huafu in Ma’anshan which realized
contracted sales of approximately RMB1.38 billion. Sales of the Group during the
year beat the expectations with satisfactory performance, exceeding the annual
contracted sales target.

By geographical location, projects in the Greater Bay Area accounted for 67%
of the realized contracted sales, 24% of which was contributed by projects in
the second-tier provincial capital cities, and 9% in other cities. By the types
of products, residential products accounted for 56% of the realized contracted
sales, and non-residential products (including office, apartment and industrial
park) accounted for 44%.

AEBEFNERAREERRN7TETY K - AF
HESBAN0BTARE  8YSTAFHEER
28,642 AR® - TEERIKE : RYRETFHRESR
BHHEENE04ETARYE  REMHAERTEEESR
AHHELN264ETARY  ERBERLFERAN
HEMABETARE  BBILARERERANE
EN1BBETARE - AREAFRNHERRBLE
o REEA BEZTKFEARHERR -

RERSH - KERABMCERSRHESEN
67% * RN 24% 9% D HIRE —EE ST MEM
e REERBUENE  FEBRERECERS
FHEECRN56% @ FETRER (BREMBLE - 1
B EXERE) GH44% -
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Type
Rttt E

Sales Area
HERTE
(sq.m.)
(FHK)

Sales™
HESE

(RMB'000)
(ARBTIL)

Shum Yip Dongling
RERSE

Shum Yip Zhongcheng
RER

Bofeng Building
BEXE

Shum Yip Taifu Square
RERERS

Terra Licheng
VR

Qianhai Parkview Bay
Ail G R 2 Y
UpperHills

RE R

Tanglang City**
R

Shum Yip Qishan Yayuan
RIS
Jiangyue Bay

&

Dongguan Shum Yip Songhu Yuncheng Garden
REMHAEREE
Gaobangshan No. 1
=15

Garden Hills

Fi#%E

Wanlin Lake

Bl

Shunde Shum Yip City
LS 371

Shenzhen
il
Shenzhen
3l
Shenzhen
3l
Shenzhen
3l
Shenzhen
Y
Shenzhen
3l
Shenzhen
2l
Shenzhen
il
Foshan
il
Guangzhou
B
Dongguan
S
Huizhou
BM
Huizhou
M
Huizhou
M
Shunde
s

Complex
HaE
Complex
ey
Commercial
[EES
Commercial
[GES
Industrial
EX
Residential
F=E
Complex
mek
Commercial
[EES
Residential
T
Residential
F=E
Residential
=
Residential
FE
Residential
F=E
Residential
=
Residential
=

11,855

47,276

508

10,023

6,789

504

4,937

1,206

6,233

373

76,176

40,743

29,894

4,471

31,897

877,325

6,043,465

16,504

622,711

436,440

61,174

364,420

90,597

126,867

6,809

2,644,001

462,011

276,580

31,482

558,483
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Type Sales Area Sales*
ithauia=) HEEE HESE"
(sq.m.) (RMB’000)
(AR&FTT)
Saina Bay Heyuan Residential 125 1,924
Eng AR T
Shum Yip Upper Life Nanjing Residential 20,054 521,274
REBELE BR F=
Shum Yip Qinglong Mansion Nanjing Residential 64,560 1,942,226
REBRE L BR F=
Shum Yip Longwan Mansion Nanjing Residential 16,526 785,000
RERELF BR FE
Shum Yip Yihu Rose Garden Chengdu Residential 6,952 72,170
RERABRGE R E F=
Shum Yip Four Seasons Mansion Chengdu Residential 23,819 473,165
RENFERE & Fx
Nanhu Rose Bay Wuhan Residential 609 34,158
apibiesa 93 =
Shum Yip Heron Mansion Changsha Residential 51,961 704,499
REEER =30 Fx
Shum Yip Rui Cheng Changsha Residential 9,523 64,933
REBR =972 F=
Shum Yip Xihui Changsha Residential 767 8,426
REEE 29/2 T
Changzhou Shum Yip Huafu Changzhou Residential 1,163 2,729
BIREER M FE
Shenma East China Industrial Technology Ma’anshan Industrial 10,251 33,419
Industrial Park
AEERTEMBEXE it 2l I%
Ma'anshan Shum Yip Huafu Ma’'anshan Residential 126,123 1,381,815
BEILREER st sl F=
Shenyue Bay Taizhou Residential 61,367 450,796
R ZM F=
Total &5t 666,685 19,095,403
* The sales of parking lots were included. * BEBEMNEE -

** The project was co-developed with Shenzhen Metro Group, as to 50% owned by the * REBHEZRYIMEEESERE - FHES0%E

Group, and it is accounted using equity method. o DAERERE o



Project Development Business

During the year, the Group accelerated construction, and had a new construction
area of approximately 3,924,000 square meters, representing an increase of
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approximately 500% over year 2020, and a completed area of approximately Ko

823,000 square meters.

New Construction Projects in 2021

Property Name
IEICRA

Saleable Area
AEEE
(sq.m.)
(FHK)

Shum Yip Yunzhu

REEE

Shum Yip Chuangzhi Building
REEIERE

Shum Yip Shanglinyuan

RE LML

Shum Yip Taifu Yinying Square
RERERBES

Shum Yip Shanshui Dongcheng Garden
RE KR IEE

Garden Hills Land Plot 1

FILETE 508

Wanlin Huafu (South of Party School)
EMER (BRME)

Huizhou Shum Yip Cloud Mansion Project
BMAZZEMER

Shum Yip Nansha Hengli Island DH0502
Project

RERPEESDH0502 8 LI B

Shum Yip Zhongshan Future Gate Project
Phase |

REFILAKZFIEE —H

Shenzhen
3
Shenzhen
3l
Shenzhen
2l
Shenzhen
w3
Shenzhen
wI
Huizhou
BN
Huizhou
M
Huizhou
M

Guangzhou

BN
Zhongshan

it

20214855 TIHH
Type Total GFA
AsE HBREEETE
(sq.m.)
(F7xK)
Residential 327,209
=
Industrial 51,152
E¥
Commercial 62,834
[EES
Industrial 135,537
EX
Residential 453,476
F=
Commercial/residential 110,530
5]
Commercial/residential 314,290
5]
Commercial/residential 169,524
[E]s3
Residential 341,140
F=E
Complex 819,300
Fem

171,684

15,504

79,185

289,960

109,830

221,450

126,606

302,126

538,900



032 Shenzhen Investment Limited & 3)[{2f% A BR A7) » Annual Report 4 3§ 2021

Management Discussion and Analysis

B B e B A

Property Name Type Total GFA Saleable Area
IR S BEREmE AEER
(sg.m.) (sq-m.)
(FHK) (FAK)
Shum Yip Luxi Yunjing Changsha Commercial/residential 135,111 82,903
REBERESR =V Gl
Terra Chengdu Yihu Rose Garden Phase 4 Chengdu Residential 236,764 162,783
RAME AR (1) P E FE
Shum Yip Taiyue Mansion Chengdu Residential 105,522 54,762
RERMT D F=E
Chengdu Qingbaijiang Shum Yip Taifu Square ~ Chengdu Complex 420,055 203,410
RBERIARERERES P FemE
Nanhu Rose Bay Phase 4 Wuhan Residential 130,883 85,699
Eapibesa sl EE F=E
The Cloud Mansion Taizhou Commercial/residential 57,748 39,295
R ZMN Gl
Shenma East China Industrial Technology Ma'anshan Industrial 52,598 51,403
Industrial Park
AEERTEMBEEXER SEL T%
Total &3t 3,923,673 2,535,500
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Completed Projects in 2021 20214E% TIHH
Property Name Type Total GFA Saleable Area
BEAR Jish:uf it B EEE AEEE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(FHK) (F7K)
Parkview Bay — Residential Shenzhen Residential 51,460 50,818
BER— % 3l F=
Parkview Bay — Commercial Shenzhen Commercial 2,900 2,900
BER - A% 3l [GES
Zhifeng Building Shenzhen Industrial 71,366 42,770
BERE 3l E¥
Nanjing Qinglong Mansion Nanjing Residential 102,469 71,431
HRERLF 20 F=
Nanjing Upper Life Nanjing Residential 111,134 63,291
HREBLRE 2 FE
Shum Yip Heron Mansion Changsha Commercial/residential 240,504 182,617
RREBRN =32 [E]E
Shum Yip Huating Chengdu Residential 59,131 40,668
REERE P E T
Splendid City Phase 3 Taizhou Commercial/residential 183,630 136,767
REEWIH ZM [E]E
Total & &t 822,594 591,262
Expansion of Land Resources T E IR R

The Group has made a significant breakthrough in land resources acquisition.  AEEELHEFRTERESEARE » 2021 FEB+
In 2021, the Group acquired 16 land plots in 12 cities including Shenzhen, TG « EE£QM ~ HHEH - BEIANELE
Shanghai, Nanjing, Chengdu, Changsha and Zhongshan through various ways A3\ &I~ £& - @R « K# - KD - FlUE
such as land market auctions, industrial land application, urban renewal ad  12{ES M AAE 1651 - FUERM T ITEE 1B
asset injection. The acquired land projects have superior geographical location ~ EE# - BHNSLEE - RAEERGHIE 5
with expected abundant benefits. Calculated at the equity ratio of the Group, the ~ HE LB REIRENARK 225 T« BLbETE
total investment of newly expanded land resources amounted to approximately — 411298 77K - B ARETEHNI22EF 7K -
RMB22.5 billion, aggregately with a site area of approximately 1,290,000 square

meters and a capacity building area of approximately 3,220,000 square meters.
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Expansion of Land Resources in 2021 2021440 )8 L E
Capacity
Project Name Type Land Price Site Area Building Area
VR AtE B AR
(RMB ten thousand) (sq.m.)
(AR%ET) (F7K)
Shenzhen Futian Shanglinyuan Project Shenzhen Commercial 19,718 6,015 41,990
RYIfER L3RR A~ A%
Shenzhen Qianhai Guiwan Area Land Plot T201-0168 Shenzhen Residential 441,928 51,350 210,040
RYIFTGEERET201-016845 2l i
Shenzhen Guangming Xinhu Street Land Plot A641-0030 Shenzhen Residential 172,700 18,840 88,547
AR 6 8A641-003048 54 A~ ffx
Shenzhen Pingshan Shum Yip Shanshui Dongcheng Garden Shenzhen Residential 397,000 66,857 317,055
RYFLERFWARAEE A %
Zhongshan Cuiheng New District Future Gate Project Zhongshan Complex 409,532 668,974 1,553,435
PURFHEARZFIRR il ra
Huizhou Shum Yip Cloud Mansion (Huizhou Lujiangli South Huizhou Commercial/ 80,000 44,678 129,566
Land Plot) residential
BEMREERA (BNBIEEFR) 2N Al
Shanghai Jiading Shenjia Hydrogen Valley Shanghai Complex 88,472 44,728 102,874
ETETRAREA & rae
Shum Yip Luxi Yunjing (Changsha Yuelu Land Plot 041) Changsha Commercial/ 91,990 61,327 83,816
residentia
REBEZE (ROEER041IIR) Y 13
Shum Yip Tairong Mansion (Chengdu Qinglong Street Land Chengdu Residential 170,306 80,333 160,666
Plot 2021-087)
RERERR (KHEREB2021-08730%) i i
Nanjing Hexinan Land Plot G111 Nanjing Residential 198,000 22,549 63,137
BRABEREGI1E BR frx
Chengdu Longquanyi Shum Yip City Chengdu Complex 74,403 36,211 151,844
RBERBREN B AR
Shenyang Hanlin Road Land Plot 18 Shenyang Complex 37,350 12,134 46,112

BRAME I8 &5 ey
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Capacity
Project Name Type Land Price Site Area Building Area
RS At i BR B
(RMB ten thousand) (sq.m.)
(A\E¥%ET) (FAx)
Suzhou High-tech Zone Land Plot Suzhou Complex 16,331 8,260 18,292
M TRAE DR &M ok
Shenma East China Industrial Technology Industrial Park Ma'anshan Industrial 2,222 62,566 77,995
ARERIENBEZR gl 1%
Jiangyin Chengdi Technology Innovation Park Jiangyin Industrial 8,286 81,233 135,450
TREMEIE K= I%
Taizhou Yungi Garden (Taizhou Hailing Tiande Lake Taizhou Commercial/ 39,800 19,365 40,667
Park West Land Plot) residential
FNMERRE (FMERERXEHLEAMMR) FM At
Total &5 2,248,038 1,285,420 3,221,486
Land Reserves + Al

By the end of 2021, the Group had land reserves with a capacity building area of
approximately 6.74 million square meters, of which, the projects not commenced
had a capacity building area of approximately 1.41 million square meters, the
projects under construction had a capacity building area of approximately 4.64
million square meters and the completed but unsettled projects had a capacity
building area of approximately 0.69 million square meters. The capacity building
area of land reserves in the Greater Bay Area accounted for 63%. Besides, the
value of completed properties in stock amounted to approximately HK$18,235.1
million.

In 2021, the Group successfully launched its industry and city mode, achieved
the first expansion in Shanghai and implemented many major industrial park
projects in Chengdu, Shenyang, Ma'anshan and other cities. In the future,
the Group will continue to grasp its resource acquisition mode with its own
advantages, actively explore and focus on the investment opportunities of quality
projects in the Greater Bay Area and regional high-tier cities.

HE2021FK - TibRETARERENCT4ETYS
K ERRHIEANARERBEMIMNEERK
ERERARREERBO464ET K BEIALE
EEBEMAEEARBNOETHK - NERITIRFHE
SHAREMBELIEE3% o I BRIFESEYD
£18,2351HEB T °

0 FAKEERBEARD B - EREFLE -
SHEREXEREBERT - &G - SRUERT
BB - AR - AREREECEABEESEEN
BRERES - BERE - BEAERENEASER
BHEERANRERS
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Distribution of Land Reserves (As at 31 December 2021)

By type — Capacity Building Area ™" (sq.m.)
EmBRAH - SHAEEEEY (LFHXK)

54%

33%

Residential @ Complex @ Other (including The Greater
F=E RAR industrial, commercial Bay Area
and other types of KER
products)
Hft (BE% - B%
MEMBERER)
Note:

1. Capacity building area: the sum of the gross floor area which is used in the calculation of
the plot ratio within the land for construction.

Property Investment Business

Attributable to the economic recovery, the occupancy rate and rent level of office
building market in Shenzhen picked up. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
investment properties of approximately 1.73 million square meters. During the
year, the Group recorded an income from property investment of approximately
HK$1,497.4 million, representing an increase of approximately 22% over last
year. The gross profit margin of property investment business was approximately
74%, representing an increase of 1 percentage point over last year. The Group
recorded a revaluation decrease in the fair value of its investment property
portfolio of HK$405.7 million during the year.

12%

A (20214512 H31H)

By region — Capacity Building Area™°*®' (sq.m.)

ELf — AAEREERE (FAXK)

3%

22%

63%

@ Other cities
H

@ Yangtze River @ 2nd-tier provincial
Delta capital cities
R=A TREAREHT

MaE

1. FAREEE: ERAMBEAMAAEREX
MZEE TR 8 o

EZ S E S

B FEMHEENEERSMER - BARMA
SKFEFFEFA - R2021F12 8310 » KEERKE
MELEBOTIBERLK - ER - XEEERYE
BERAL,497 4BERT - BEF LHAH22% ©
MERBEBRENENT4%  BEFLEF1EGS
B FENAEEMBRENELANABEERGBRD
405.7TEEET ©
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Urban Integrated Operation Business

The Group spares no effort to develop urban integrated operation business, which
includes commercial operation, property service, intelligent park and property city
business. The affiliated company of the Group have strong external expansion
strength, with third-party projects accounting for about 75%. The Group has
abundant non-residential businesses, including property city projects, industrial
parks, public facilities and office buildings, etc., accounting for about 54%. This
year, the Group had urban integrated operation business under management of
approximately 61.55 million square meters, representing an increase of 31%
over last year, and achieved revenue of approximately HK$2,477.6 million,
representing an increase of 11% over last year. The Group newly expanded 83
urban integrated operation projects, with an additional area under management
of over 16.41 million square meters: newly expanded 72 traditional property
management projects in Guangdong, Jiangxi, Jiangsu and other regions; newly
expanded 8 industrial park projects such as Changping Jewelry Cultural Industrial
Park, Shenzhen Hengming Industry Park, etc., mainly located in the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area; newly expanded 12 property city projects,
covering 8 sub-districts and areas including Shenzhen Xiangmihu Sub-district
and Anmin Sub-district, Yushan District, Ma'anshan City, with a contract value
of more than RMB500 million.With its industry-leading comprehensive strength
and service level, the Group was awarded the “2021 China Leading Enterprise
of Smart City Service”, “2021 Property Service TOP100 Enterprise in the Greater
Bay Area”, “2021 City Service and Property Service TOP5 Enterprise in the
Greater Bay Area” and many other honorary titles.

In terms of commercial operation, the Group actively sorted out its positioning
strategy, adjusted its brand according to its core customer base and positioning,
and promoted online creative interaction and offline special events to increase
customer flow and promote sales, which had achieved gratifying results. The first
Galeries Lafayette in South China and several Fortune 500 companies officially
entered UpperHills, and the 2021 Shenzhen Design Week was successfully held,
which were highly recognized by the government, enterprises and customers,
and represented the market’s high evaluation of the Group’s innovative thinking
in breaking the homogeneous competition. At present, the operation of each
shopping mall is in good condition, the passenger flow and rental income
have increased significantly, and the investment promotion work of Shum Yip
Zhongcheng, Shum Yip Dongling, and Women and Children Building has been
progressing remarkably, among which the investment promotion of Shum Yip
Zhongcheng has reached 90%.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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In terms of park services, the Group built an industrial service ecosystem with
focus on industrial customers, and enhanced the value of park operations with
the new direction of park operations led by technological innovation and whole-
industry services. The Shenxiang series of intelligent platforms launched in recent
years were equipped with customized intelligent terminal property APP, to create
an intelligent platform for park management and realize the data management
and value-added of park resources.

In terms of property city business, the Group actively implemented the spirit of
General Secretary Xi Jinping’s requirement that “urban management should be as
delicate as embroidery”, and took the lead in exploring a new model of “property
city”. On 19 October 2021, the China Federation of Urban Commercial Outlets
Construction Administration approved the first property management city standard
in the country — “Property Management City Operation Standard” Group Standard
(T/CUCO3-2021), which was drafted and compiled by the Group, and made an
official announcement to the public. The successful application for the national
standardization pilot project marks the Group’s new height in the standardization
construction in property city field. It provides a standardized reference guide
for the governments at all levels, industry and property enterprises in realizing
property city model. In order to achieve precise management, the Group has also
developed and transformed 4 models of “small-scale sanitation and cleaning
machinery”, obtained 11 utility model patents and 1 appearance patent, and
realized fully mechanized operations. At the same time, guided by the intelligent
management platform, the Group realized the visualization of on-site work and
various trainings, the rectification of dynamic city appearance and sanitation
problems within 30 minutes, and online declaration, intelligent dispatch and
online resolution, relying on the “City Butler” APP and the “Property City Service
Platform”, which had greatly improved the speed of response to problems and
the effect of sanitation work. Seizing the opportunity,the Group successfully
acquired the Anmin Sub-district Project in Yushan District, Ma'anshan City with
its excellent management model and case studies in 2021, marking that the
Group’s development route of serving the city has stretched out of Shenzhen and
been popularized nationwide.

Hotel Operation Business

The Group owns five hotels, namely Suzhou Marriott Hotel (with 302 guest
rooms), Chaohu Shum Yip Bantang Hot Spring Hotel (with 27 spring villas),
Holiday Inn Resort Chaohu Hot Spring (with 203 guest rooms), Muji Hotel (with 79
guest rooms) in UpperHills, Shenzhen, and Mandarin Oriental Shenzhen (with 178
guest rooms).

BRREIE  FAREESERRPITEEXREE
BE - ARREMEREXREIRERELH T
M- RAEREZEE - AFREHELNRZ R

BETL - BEEHRBILBNRELAPP - T
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28 -
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B ERYEREERASEN BB ThMALEE
TERY  RENZEEAMEEERATEE D
EEEEMES R ) BEIE%E(T/CUC03-2021) » I
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BE  EREAEEEMERTENZELCELPE
el - A2ERFT - TEEAMECERET R
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[RENEZ/DAEY ]  ES11BERFVEREA
FM1BINERF - BRT2RMICIEE - ARNEE
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The first Mandarin Oriental Hotel in Shenzhen located in UpperHills opened on 20
January 2022, and will become another high-end new landmark in Shenzhen. As
one of the top luxury hotel brands globally, the cooperation between the Mandarin
Oriental Hotel and the Group represents the recognition of the Group’s brand, its
business and hotel operation capabilities, which will together bring a business
feast on urban fashion and art aesthetics in Shenzhen in the future.

During the year, the Group’s hotels recorded operating income (included under
other operating segment) of approximately HK$169.7 million, representing an
increase of 46% over last year.

Industrial Manufacturing Business

The Group’s manufacturing business mainly represents the LCM manufacturing,
metal materials processing and electronic control system operated by its
subsidiary Shenzhen Jinghua Displays Electronics Co., Ltd. over the years,
and the industry in which it operates is featured by strong knowledge and
technology-intensive characteristics. Driven by the Internet of everything,
these products are widely used in industry, home appliances, communications,
consumption, medical and automobile fields. During the year, the manufacturing
business recorded operating income of approximately HK$456.5 million,
representing an increase of 31% over last year.

Performance of Major Joint Ventures and Associales

During the year, Taizhou Shum Yip Investment Development Limited (@ 51%
owned company of the Group) made a profit of HK$297.4 million to the Group.
The principal activity of the company is to assist local government in primary land
development.

Shenzhen Langtong Property Development Company Limited (@ 50% owned
company of the Group) made a net profit contribution of HK$15.4 million,
representing a decrease of 34% over last year. The company and Shenzhen
Metro Group jointly developed Shenzhen's Tanglang City Project.

Shenzhen Tianan Cyber Park (Group) Co., Ltd. (a 37.5% owned company of
the Group) made a net profit contribution of HK$232.5 million to the Group,
representing a decrease of 29% over last year.

Road King Infrastructure Limited, an associate invested by the Group (1098.HK),
made a net profit contribution of HK$277.7 million to the Group, representing a
decrease of 40% over last year.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Financial Assets

On 31 May 2017, the Group contributed an amount of RMB5.50 billion to the
capital of Hengda Real Estate Group Company Limited (‘Hengda Real Estate”). As
of 31 December 2021, the Group held 2.6439% equity interests in Hengda Real
Estate. Since the investment in Hengda Real Estate, the Group, as a financial
investor, had received total dividends of RMB1.95 billion from Hengda Real
Estate.

According to the requirements under accounting standards, the equity interests
held by the Group in Hengda Real Estate was included as financial assets
through profit or loss in the financial statements and accounted for at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss for the period.
As at 31 December 2021, the Group made a provision for fair value losses
of approximately HK$6.4 billion, and the book fair value of the said financial
assets after provision was HK$461.1 million. The provision did not affect the
cash flow and daily operation of the Group. Thereafter, the uncertainty of Henda
Real Estate’s equity interests will not have any significant adverse impact on the
performance of the Group.

For details on the investment in Hengda Real Estate and valuation technique used
for fair value measurement, please refer to note 20 and 3.3(b) to the financial
statements respectively.

Financing

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total bank and other borrowings amounted
to HK$38,097.2 million (31 December 2020: HK$30,828.4 million), of which
HK$23,391.4 million were floating rate loans, and the remaining were fixed-rate
loans. Long-term loans amounted to HK$26,138.2 million, representing
approximately 69% of total borrowings, and short-term loans were HK$11,959.0
million, representing approximately 31% of total borrowings. Borrowings
denominated in Hong Kong dollars amounted to HK$19,130.6 million, and
Renminbi borrowings amounted to HK$18,966.6 million.

With the gradual implementation of the “Three Red Lines” regulations, the
external financing environment continues to tighten. The Group maintains a
healthy financial position. As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s asset-liability
ratio, excluding advance receipts, was 63.3%, the net gearing ratio was 61.2%
(the liabilities including all interest-bearing liabilities) and the short-term cash
debt ratio was 1.7 times (the liabilities only including bank loans and other
borrowings), all indicators fell into the green level of the “Three Red Lines” (4k1%).
In 2022, the Group will replace the short-term loans that are about to be due,
and continue to improve the short-term cash debt ratio.
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During the year, the Group promoted financing innovation proactively. On one
hand, it completed the issuance of the Shum Yip Taifu Intelligent Transportation
Industrial Park (FEZREE 2L TEEE) commercial mortgage-backed
securities (‘CMBS”). The size of the issuance amounted to RMB1.8 billion, and
the coupon rate of the senior notes was 3.88%. On the other hand, it completed
the issuance of the industrial parks in pilot demonstration zones commercial
mortgage-backed securities (‘CMBS”), with Tairan Jingu Industrial Park as the
underlying asset. The size of issuance amounted to RMB2 billion, and the coupon
rate of the senior notes was 3.8%. During the year, the average comprehensive
interest rate of the Group’s bank and other borrowings was approximately 3.0%
per annum, representing a decrease of 0.7 percentage point from the whole of
last year.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s cash balance (including restricted
cash) was HK$22,775.6 million (31 December 2020: HK$18,710.4 million), of
which approximately 78% and 16% were denominated in Renminbi and USD
respectively, and the remaining in Hong Kong dollars.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net assets (excluding non-controlling
interests) of HK$49,174.9 million (31 December 2020: HK$50,624.3 million).
The net gearing ratio with the liabilities including bank and other borrowings
only was 31.2% and the net gearing ratio with the liabilities including loan from
shareholders of the parent company and all other interest-bearing liabilities was
61.2%, representing an increase of 19.5 percentage point over the end of last
year.

Key Financial Indicators

Management Discussion and Analysis

B B B A

AEBFABEBELRELF  THREREER
HITEXEEEXHERTE ([CMBS]) #TT
fE - BIRERIBRIARY - BARFENEA
3.88% ¢ TANETHEREAEXEREEBEENT
TrBEREXREEX T E RS ([CMBS]) #1T
THE - BTRBRRETARE - BEXRAFTENZR
3.8% ° FA - AEERTREMERTFHEANEY
REE3.0% BEFR2ETRO7ERNH -

B2021F12 7318  AEENR L7 522,775.6
BEEL (BEXBEHRBRL) (2020F12A318 ¢
18,710.4BEHBIL) » ERL78%F16% D 5IAAR
BRESE - EHRIUEBIHE -

2021128318 » AEBERIIERBRES%
FEAER4,1749BEE L (2020F127318 -
50,624 3B BB L) - FRAEXR (ABERBEHRITR
HihEF)31.2%  BERLRARRERREMAE
HEEBENFEERA61.2%  BEFKE L1195
REEDE -

HK$ million

HEAT

Bank and other borrowings ROTERREMEE
— Long-term borrowings — REEE
— Short-term borrowings — KHEE

P BRZER QBRI
B SR A E R R RIFUR
Ry (BEXRHRS)

Due to the immediate holding company
Due to the ultimate holding company
Cash (including restricted cash)

Net gearing ratio with the liabilities
including bank and other borrowings only

Net gearing ratio with the liabilities FEEX

including all interest-bearing liabilities

(REREMESE

FREX (AERBRETREMLER)

EEMERN
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
R20214F 720204
12H31H 12H31H
38,097.2 30,828.4
26,138.2 18,088.6
11,959.0 12,739.8
2,477.4 1,770.7
14,178.8 9,415.5
22,775.6 18,710.4
31.2% 23.9%

&E)

61.2% 41.7%



042 Shenzhen Investment Limited & 3)[{2f% A BR A7) » Annual Report 4 3§ 2021

Management Discussion and Analysis
o PG ) B4y A

Effect of Exchange Rate Fluctuation

The Group’s assets are mainly denominated in Renminbi. 50% of the bank and
other borrowings are denominated in Renminbi, and 50% are HK$ borrowings.
HK$ is adopted as the reporting currency in the Group’s financial statements. The
effect of the increase in RMB exchange rate on the Group’s finance was mainly
reflected in the appreciation of the asset and earnings denominated in Renminbi
against HK$, the reporting currency. During the year, such fluctuations in the
asset and earnings denominated in Renminbi against HK$, the reporting currency,
resulted in a gain of HK$2,765.4 million in other comprehensive income. The
Group will closely monitor and proactively avert foreign exchange risk through
various ways.

Progress of the Litigation Involving Terra Companies

On 26 May 2021 and 31 May 2021, Wuhan Shum Yip Terra Property
Development Company Limited (“Wuhan Terra Company”) and Shum Yip
Terra (Holdings) Company Limited (“Shum Yip Terra Company”, together with
Wuhan Terra Company, the “Terra Companies”), both being non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, respectively received a statement of claim (&
E#FM) from the Intermediate People’s Court of Wuhan City (REmT &
ARSZERT) (the “Court”) regarding the claims by Hubei Province Livestock and
Poultry Breeding Center (#it&&EBEEF 1) against the Terra Companies
(the “Litigation”) regarding the contractual disputes under the four agreements
entered into by Terra Companies with the Claimant in respect of the development
of Nanhu Rose Bay (F3#3%2/%) in Wuhan, with a total claims amount of
approximately RMB900 million. In connection with the Litigation, the Court
ordered for the bank accounts and other assets of the Terra Companies to be
frozen to the extent of RMB640 million. As at the date of this report, certain bank
accounts of the Terra Companies with an aggregate balance of approximately
RMB640 million have been frozen by the Court. The Terra Companies have
engaged legal advisers to handle the Litigation and rigorously defended the
Litigation to protect its legitimate interest. The first evidence exchange was
completed on 25 October 2021. During the proceedings of the case, the two
parties failed to reach a settlement agreement. Affected by the pandemic,
the first hearing originally scheduled to be held on 3 March 2022 have to be
adjourned to a date to be determined. Based on the current assessment, the
Litigation has no material impact on the daily operation of the Group as a whole,
and the Group has taken appropriate precautionary measures to minimise any
disruptions to the operation of the two companies and the development of the
project.
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Impact of the Pandemic

The pandemic situation in China was well controlled in 2020. On the basis of
normalized prevention and control, the domestic economy recovered at a stable
pace. In addition to continuous improvement of prevention and control measures,
the Group actively responded to the sporadic COVID-19 outbreaks and assumed
its social responsibility with fortitude. It made great efforts to promote operations
by means of technology, aiming to achieve prudent growth while improving
quality.

In terms of sales, the Group had a satisfactory sales performance through
the development of a cloud-based sales system and an online cloud-based
model for projects opening for sale using online tools, combined with multi-
dimensional cares to get access to customers, which greatly reduced the impact
of the pandemic and improved the conversion rate and closing ratio. In respect
of engineering construction, the Group had a pandemic prevention and control
mechanism in place and speeded up construction while maintaining safety and
quality, which prevented the pandemic from having a significant impact on the
key engineering milestones of projects scheduled to be completed in 2021. In
the aspect of capital, as the Group has relatively sufficient working capital, the
spreading of the pandemic did not have a significant impact on the liquidity of the
Group.

Pledge of Assets and Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had total loans of HK$6,907.1 million (31
December 2020: HK$2,592.3 million) that were pledged with assets.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has given guarantees amounted to
HK$1,272.6 million in respect of bank loans and other borrowings to Guangzhou
Pik Sum Real Estate Development Company Limited and Taizhou Shum Yip
Investment Development Limited, both being joint ventures of the Group.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed 21,084 employees (2020:20,452)
of whom 24 were stationed in Hong Kong (mainly managerial and finance related
personnel), and the rest were in mainland China. The total remuneration for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (excluding remuneration of the Directors)
amounted to approximately HK$2,789.17 million (2020: HK$2,075.2 million).

Employee benefits and bonuses are based on their individual performance, the
Group’s profit condition, benefit level of the industry and the current market
condition. The remuneration packages are reviewed on an annual basis to ensure
internal equity and its competitiveness in the market. In driving performance,
we also grant share options, under the share option scheme of the Group, to
employees based on individual performance and the results of the Group.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Dr. LU Hua, aged 58, an Executive Director since 21 June 2011 and the
Chairman of the Board since 31 January 2013. Dr. LU was the President of
the Company during the period from 21 June 2011 to 30 January 2013 and
the Acting Chairman of the Board during the period from 24 April 2012 to 30
January 2013. He is also the chairman of the board of directors of Shum Yip
Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited. Dr. LU is also a director
of various members of the Group. Dr. LU holds a doctorate degree in Political
Economics from The Nankai University and a master's degree in Finance from The
University of Reading in UK. Dr. LU held the position as the president of Shum
Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited from May 2011 to
December 2012. Prior to this, Dr. LU served as the chairman of Shahe Industrial
Co., Ltd. (000014.S7) and Shenzhen Shahe Industry (Group) Co., Ltd. and the
general manager of Shenzhen Property Development Company Ltd.. Dr. LU also
served as a director of Shenzhen SEZ Construction and Development Group Co.,
Ltd. and Shenzhen Talents Housing Group Co., Ltd., and a non-executive director
of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd. (2318.HK) and Road King
Infrastructure Limited (1098.HK). He has vast experience of over twenty years in
property development, corporate governance and administrative management.
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Ms. CAI Xun

Executive Dir_ector
HITES
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Ms. CAI Xun, aged 46, an Executive Director since 27 August 2020. Ms. CAl
graduated from Central South University of Technology (now known as Central
South University) in investment economics with a bachelor’s degree in economics.
Ms. CAl is currently a director of Shum Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings
Company Limited. She is also a director of various members of the Group. Ms.
CAl was the chief of the Cadre Division 1 of the Organization Department of
Shenzhen Municipal Party Committee before joining the Group. Ms. CAl worked in
the Organization Department of Shenzhen Municipal Party Committee during the
period from 2002 to 2019 and served as the chief of the Research and Publicity
Division and the chief of the Cadre Supervision Division etc.. Ms. CAl is currently
a non-executive director of Road King Infrastructure Limited (1098.HK). Ms. CAl
has extensive experience in human resources management and administrative
management.
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Exe_cutive Director
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Ms. SHI Xiaomei, aged 51, an Executive Director since 27 August 2021. Ms.
SHI graduated from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics majoring in
accountancy (teacher-education). She holds a bachelor's degree in economics
and the title of senior accountant. Ms. SHI is currently a director and the chief
financial officer of Shum Yip Group Limited, the ultimate holding company of
the Company. Prior to joining the Group, she served as the department head
of finance department of Shenzhen Airport (Group) Company Limited, the
department head and deputy department head of finance department of Shenzhen
Airport Company Limited. Ms. SHI is currently a director of Shahe Industrial Co.,
Ltd (000014.SZ). Ms. SHI has extensive experience in financial management and
financial auditing.
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Mr. DONG Fang -
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Non-executive Director : 4

Mr. DONG Fang, aged 48, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 23 July 2020 and re-designated as a Non-executive Director of the
Company on 30 March 2022. Mr. DONG graduated from The Hunan University
with a master’s degree and a senior engineer qualification. He is currently the
President of Shenzhen Urban Public Safety and Technology Institute. Mr. DONG
joined the Group in 2009, and was a vice president of the Company, Shum
Yip Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited, and a director of
various members of the Group. He was a deputy general manager of Huizhou
Canton River Expressway Co., Ltd.. And prior to this, he worked in the Transport
Commission of Shenzhen Municipality. Mr. DONG was a non-executive director
of Road King Infrastructure Limited (1098.HK) and a director of Shahe Industrial
Co., Ltd (000014.SZ). He has extensive experience in corporate management,
property investment and operation management.
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Independent Non-executive Director

BYFHITES

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael, aged 72, an Independent Non-executive Director
since 9 October 2002. He was formerly the deputy chairman of the Shanghai
Stock Exchange and a commissioner in the Strategy & Development Committee
of the China Securities Regulatory Commission. Prior to that, he was the deputy
chairman, chief operating officer and executive director and responsible for the
Intermediaries Division, comprising the Licensing and Intermediaries Supervision
Departments of the Securities and Futures Commission until 31 December
1997. In addition, Mr. WU also served as an independent non-executive director
of Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited (188.HK), an independent non-
executive director and chairman of Cypress Jade Agricultural Holdings Limited
(renamed as China Finance Investment Holdings Ltd.) (875.HK) and an executive
director of Tradelink Electronic Commerce Ltd. (536.HK).
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Mr. LI Wai Keung - !
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Independent Non-executive Director L ®
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Mr. LI Wai Keung, aged 65, an Independent Non-executive Director since 27
September 2004. Mr. LI graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic and holds
a master’s degree in Business Administration from The University of East Asia.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. LI had worked for
Henderson Land Development Company Limited (12.HK). He was an independent
non-executive director of Sun Century Group Limited (1383.HK), a director of
Shenzhen City Airport (Group) Company Limited (000089.S7), an executive
director and financial controller of GDH Limited, an executive director of
Guangdong Land Holdings Limited (formerly known as Kingway Brewery Holdings
Limited) (124.HK) and a non-executive director of Guangdong Investment Limited
(270.HK). Mr. LI is currently an independent non-executive director of Hans
Energy Company Limited (554.HK),China South City Holdings Limited (1668.HK),
Centenary United Holdings Limited (1959.HK) and Midland IC&I Limited (459.
HK). In addition, he was appointed as a committee member of the 12th Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference of Guangdong Province on 17 January
2018 and appointed as a standing committee member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Guangdong Province on 27 January 2018.
Mr. LI is also a management accounting advisor of the Ministry of Finance, PRC
and the honorary president of Hong Kong Business Accountants Association
Limited.

ZfEHSEE - 655% 0 B2004F9R27HEHEEY
FRTES - TREEEREBRTIER  UHEE
DAEBTHERBELEN - FARBEBHARE:
MASREASTMACERGE - THELFER
BEKEMEARAF(I2.HK) o HIREETABEL
SEBERAF(1383.HK) 2 B IFEHNTES - RIITH
15 (£8) ARDAE(000089.52) 2 E% » BBIERE

BERARCHITESRYBAE BEEMIERA
RAOR (AIREREBEBEARATF) (124.HK) 2 #117
EEREEREERLFQRIOHK ZIERTEE - F
EEBTEDRRER AR (554.HK) « EFIRERE
PR A 7)(1668.HK) « 42 A R B R A F(1959.HK)
NEBMIEHEE AR U5 HN 2B FRITES -
AN - RIR2018FE1 BI7TREZAARRESE T &
HHEEEZERN2018F1 A7 HEZTAERE
BHEBZE - HMEEPEARLEMBENBBER
BB AERRE B R G M B EERARLES
Eo



050 Shenzhen Investment Limited & 3I[{2f% A BR A7) » Annual Report 4 3§ 2021

Directors and Senior Management
HHREEREHRITHEANE

e Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David
B

Independent Non-executive Director
BUFHTES

Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David, GBS, JP, aged 64, an Independent Non-
executive Director since 13 June 2013. Dr. WONG received a doctorate degree
in Economics from the University of Chicago in 1987. Dr. WONG has extensive
experience in manufacturing, direct investment and international trade. Dr. WONG
is active in public service. He is a Hong Kong deputy of the National People’s
Congress of the People’s Republic of China (2Bl ARKZKAE). Dr. WONG
was appointed as a Justice of Peace (JP) in 2010 and was awarded a Bronze
Bauhinia Star (BBS) and Gold Bauhinia Star (GBS) in 2012 and 2017 respectively
for his valuable contribution to the society. Dr. WONG is currently an independent
non-executive director of Huayi Tencent Entertainment Company Limited(419.HK),
Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited (934.HK) and Guangnan (Holdings) Limited
(1203.HK), which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. XU Enli, aged 46, a Vice President of the Company, Shum Yip Group
Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited. He graduated from Tianjin
University with a master’s degree and is a qualified senior engineer. He joined the
Group in 2009 and previously served as the chairman and general manager of
Shum Yip Land Co., Ltd., general manager of Shenzhen Science & Industry Park
Group Co., Ltd., deputy general manager of Shum Yip Southern Land (Holdings)
Co., Ltd., deputy general manager of Shum Yip Pengji (Holdings) Co., Ltd., deputy
general manager of Shum Yip Shahe Group Co., Ltd., and assistant to general
manager and manager of investment control department of Shenzhen Tianjian
Real Estate Development Industry Co., Ltd.. Mr. XU is currently a non-executive
director of Road King Infrastructure Limited (1098.HK). Mr. XU has extensive
experience in real estate development, operation and infrastructure construction.

Mr. YAN Zhongyu, aged 46, a Vice President of the Company, Shum Yip Group
Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited. He graduated from Wuhan
University with a master’s degree in Business Administration. Mr. YAN joined the
Group in 2020. He was the head of capital market department, the deputy head
and the head of strategic development department and the deputy head and a
senior supervisor of investment development department (investment project
assessment center) of Shenzhen Investment Holdings Co., Ltd., and a director,
deputy executive general manager, secretary of the board, head of administration
office and deputy manager (investment department) of Shenzhen Great Ocean
Shipping Co., Ltd.. Mr. YAN is currently a director of Shahe Industrial Co., Ltd
(000014.SZ7). Mr. YAN has extensive experience in project investment and
financing, corporate management and capital operation.

Mr. YEO Kee Whye, aged 56, a Vice President of the Company, Shum Yip
Group Limited and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited. He graduated from
Imperial College London and holds a master’s degree in Computer Science from
University of Oxford. Mr. YEO joined the Group in 2021. Prior to this, he served
as the Co-president of Sinobo Land, the general manager of Hopson Commercial
Properties Ltd., the general manager of a commercial company of Financial Street
Holdings and the managing director of CapitaMalls Asia in China. Mr. YEO has
extensive experience in project investment, business development management,
asset management in commercial real estate sector.

Directors and Senior Management
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Ms. WONG Yin San, aged 55, is the General Counsel of the Company and
the Secretary of the Board. Ms. WONG joined the Group in September 2014.
She is a solicitor of the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region, Chartered Secretary and Chartered Governance Professional. She holds a
Bachelor of Business Administration degree and a Bachelor of Laws degree. Prior
to joining the Group, she worked in the corporate department of an international
law firm. She also previously held a senior position in a listed company in Hong
Kong. Ms. WONG has extensive experience in the legal, regulatory, corporate
finance, compliance and corporate governance fields.

Ms. HUANG Jiong, aged 55, is currently the admin director and the General
Manager of Human Resources Department of the Company and Shum Yip Group
Limited. Ms. Huang graduated from Shenzhen University with major in Human
Resource Management and Business Administration, and the title of senior
political analyst. She joined the Group in 1989, and held positions as general
manager assistant and deputy general manager of human resources department
of the Company. Ms. HUANG has extensive experience in corporate management
and human resources management.

Mr. YANG Jianhui, aged 52, is currently the General Manager of Finance
Management Department of the Company and Shum Yip Group Limited. Mr. YANG
graduated from Heilongjiang Bayi Agricultural University and holds a bachelor's
degree in economics and the title as senior accountant. Mr. YANG joined the
Group in 2007 and held the position as deputy general manager of Shum Yip
Land Company Limited. Mr. YANG has extensive expertise and experience in
finance management.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have pleasure in presenting to
shareholders their annual report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group consist of property development for sale,
property management and property investments for rental income. The property
development process is vertically integrated from land acquisition, project
planning, material sourcing, construction and project management to sales and
marketing to ensure high standards in every aspect. The Group’s professional
property management team manages a variety of types of properties including
government offices, office buildings, residential estates, villas an science and
technology parks mainly located in Pearl River and Yangtze River deltas as well
as the central region. Our investment property portfolio includes commercial,
residential and industrial buildings and car parking bays, which are located
mainly in Shenzhen. Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures are set out in note 42, note 19 and note 18 to
the financial statements, respectively. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the financial position
of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the financial statements
on pages 114 to 248.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK 8.00 cents per
share for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: a final dividend of HK11.00
cents per share), which subject to the approval by the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, will be payable in cash
on or about Friday, 8 July 2022 to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Thursday, 9 June 2022. Together with
the interim dividend of HK7.00 cents per share already paid, the total dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2021 amounts to HK15.00 cents per share (2020:
HK18.00 cents per share).

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set
out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” respectively from pages 10 to 23 and pages 26 to 43 of this report
(which from part of this Directors’ Report) and the paragraphs below.

Directors’ Report
O

ARAREE ([EF]) RARBRRREAEEHZ
2021F12 A1 BIEFE 2 FRME BT AU ER
%% o

FEEH
AEEIZXBERRAENEUMEE WEEER
NEREURDPEERA - DERFREA/RRE
BERAEBRE  {uiE  BERE - BER
B TR@%  HAERUEMSEHE  UBRREE
REYFIFKE - AREZEENEXEREHER
SREVYE  ARIENMER=A  R=ZANF
MERNBASE - 878 £ R - HIERREK
BR - RANREMELSBEIEZNHINRIINE
5 EERIXREURESES - EXEHBERF
BERNARAERAZIEERFHBED RIHNMBER
FMEE42 - MEE10EME18 - FA - FARETEX
BZUEEY EERMEAED o

EHE NS
REBEZE2021F12A31BLEFEZERRARAR
HEAEENZ B BRI NEN142248 8 2817
WERA o

BEESREN2022F7A8E (BHT) SR UES
AR ER2022F6 498 (2HM) 25| AR ERE
ZMzBE - REBZE2021F12A31 B EFEZ R
HARL B R 8.0078 1 (20204F  KEAR EEM11.00
B ESRERARAEERFEFAS £
HfE - BRERZEZFHBRESR7.008E - HZ
202112 A3 BIEFE 2R EBEAETR15.0051L
(2020% : ©A%18.00/81l) °

SB[

AEEHZE2021F12831B I EENEBEBED A
BRAREF10E23E RFE26H43E 2 [ FFHE]
RIEBESwmEDN ] (AAXESEHRE—IM0)
IARATEE ©



054 Shenzhen Investment Limited & 3)[{2f% A BR A7) » Annual Report 4 3§ 2021

Directors’ Report
HHEGgRE

Law and Regulations

The Group is principally engaged in property development, property management
and property investment in the PRC and is therefore subject to the relevant laws
and regulations of the PRC. In respect of the laws and regulations relating to
the environment, which include, but not limited to, Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Environmental Protection (F# ARLMBEIRIZREE), Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Solid Waste Pollution (%
# AR HMBIE R E Y4B ENA%) and the relevant environmental protection
laws and regulations of Shenzhen Special Economic Zone as well as other
provinces where the Group operates in etc.. The Group attaches great importance
to legal compliance, and carries out all the business activities in compliance with
the requirements of the applicable laws and regulations.

Key Risk Factors

Risks and uncertainties can affect the Group’s businesses, financial conditions,
operational results or growth prospects leading to a divergence from expected or
historical results. The following paragraphs list out the key risks and uncertainties
facing by the Group. It is a non-exhaustive list and there may be other risks and
uncertainties further to the key risk areas outlined below, and there may be other
risks which are not known to the Group or which may not be material now but
could become material in the future.

Macroeconomic Risks

The Group’s development and operations may be affected by external
macroeconomic and capital market fluctuations. The geo-political instability in
the international arena will have uncontrollable long-term effects. The systematic
risk in China's economic transformation, the shocks on macro economy arising
from the epidemic situation and the fluctuating capital market may bring
uncertainty to the Group’s operating environment. The Group will keep track of
the macroeconomic changes at all times and take corresponding measures to
cope with the risks as and when necessary.

Industry Risks

Affected by epidemic prevention and control, policy control, liquidity and other
factors, the real estate industry in China is facing complex environment and
high uncertainty, which may have an impact on the Group’s development and
operations. The income from property business represents mainstream income
of the Group, and in the Group’s income from real estate sales, the income from
the real estate sales in the Greater Bay Area market has a higher proportion. If
there is a downside risk in the real estate market in the Greater Bay Area, this
will have a more substantial impact on the Group’s net assets, sales revenue and
profitability. The Group closely monitors the sales position at all times and adopts
strategies with flexibilities to cope with the risks.
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Policy Risks

In 2021, the policy of the real estate industry in China was comprehensive
deleveraging through the whole year, with aim to realize a virtuous circle. As
the keynote of the macropolicy, “house is a place to live instead of a tool for
speculation” will continue to improve the housing market and promote the market
to further move towards a stable and healthy development. Together with the
appropriate correction of financial policies, the linkage of land policies with real
estate and the pilot introduction of the real estate tax, the real estate market
will continue to seek improvement in stability. The Group will carefully interpret
the policies and closely monitor the market situation, and flexibly adjust the
Company’s strategy and sales plan to cope with the risk from policy changes.

Epidemic Risks

The novel coronavirus has brought substantive impact on macro economy
and the industry where the Group operates. The implementation of measures
in respect of epidemic prevention and control, and the enhanced efforts on
property services, as well as the occurrence of unexpected factors in the future,
will have continuous impacts on the Group’s development and sales business,
property investment business as well as urban integrated operation business. The
Group will keep an eye on the trend of the epidemic at all times, and develop
corresponding solutions to cope with the risks caused on development and
operation on the premise of ensuring public safety.

Exchange Rate Risks

There is a fluctuation in Renminbi exchange rate. The Group’s main assets are
located in mainland China while the reporting currency of Group’s financial
reports is Hong Kong dollar. The fluctuation in Renminbi exchange rate will
cause changes in the value of the Group’s assets and earnings denominated in
Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar, the reporting currency. The Group did not
adopt any financial instrument to hedge against exchange rate risk in the year.
In future, the Group will monitor the exchange rate fluctuations, and actively
address exchange rate risks through a variety of ways.

Operational Risks

The Group’s operations may be affected by multiple risk factors related to the real
estate business. Inadequate internal processes, personal misconduct, external
partner’s breach behavior, climate change related factors or other factors beyond
control may have certain negative impacts on the Group’s operation. The Group
will continue to optimize its management, improve its internal control system and
enhance its operational capabilities so as to avoid such risks.

Investment Risks

The Group involves in real estate project investment, equity investment and
emerging industry investment. Changes in external environment, such as
macroeconomic fluctuations, changes in social environment, industry policy
adjustments or other uncontrollable factors, may cause the invested projects not
meeting expectations, which will have impact on the Group’s net assets, sales
revenue and profitability. The Group has established corresponding management
and decision-making mechanisms for investment business, and will continue to
optimize the internal control system in the future, while closely monitoring market
dynamics and actively responding to risks from the external environment.
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Highlights of Environment, Social and Governance Report

In 2021, the Company continued to strive to achieve sustainable development
goals. We closely followed the national development strategy and the United
Nations’ sustainable development goals, actively fulfilled the environmental and
social responsibilities of the Group, and promoted the corporate own sound
operation and the social sustainable development. During the year, we continued
to improve and consolidate our environmental, social and governance systems,
and clarified our responsibilities for the integration and implementation of
sustainable development issues and the related reporting mechanism. We sought
to achieve balanced development of economic, environmental and social benefits,
and actively promoted the corporate soundness and the social sustainability to
better assure our responsibilities to all stakeholders.

We always bore in mind the corporate environmental responsibility and
shouldered the important mission of “building living vision to achieve undertakings
in Shenzhen”. We actively responded to the national “dual carbon” strategy and
were committed to creating an ecological and livable building environment.
Throughout the development and operation of projects, we continued to
strengthen environmental protection measures, actively adopted new energy-
saving and emission reduction technologies, continued to promote the concepts
such as “green building”, “green construction”, “green property” and ‘green
office”, and strived to enhance the recycling rate of waste to promote clean
production. Based on our determination to strive to lead the value of urban space,
we promoted urban renewal and created comfortable living, achieving excellent
win-win vision of environmental quality and green ecology.

We always bore in mind the corporate social responsibility and adhered to the
human resource concept of “morality headed and making good use of talent’
and the service principle of “customer first”. By establishing and improving
human resource management policy to promote the construction and quality of
our talent pool, we kept completing the talent selection mechanism to ensure
a steady stream of vibrant talents for the Group. We attached great importance
to our employees’ safety and health as well as career development, aiming
at providing the employees with a healthy, harmonious, fair and just working
environment and atmosphere where they are respected. The intelligent property
platform we developed offered more convenient and better service to customers.
Meanwhile, we actively participated in building a harmonious society, helped
to revitalize the countryside, and organized a series of diversified community
activities such as community convenience. With firm determination to win the
fight against the epidemic, we always paid close attention to epidemic prevention
and control, and improved the normalized prevention and control mechanism as
well as the mechanism of joint prevention and control and group prevention and
group control. Furthermore, we remembered our responsibility as a state-owned
enterprise and supported small and medium-sized enterprises to overcome
difficulties by waiving rent and other ways.
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We always bore in mind our corporate governance responsibilities and adhered
to our management commitment of ‘fairness, justness and openness’. We
highly valued the recommendations and views provided by all stakeholders
and were committed to creating long-term values for our stakeholders
including homeowners, tenants, investors, business partners, employees and
broad communities. We kept working hard to establish a sound and efficient
communication mechanism, maintained close contact with our stakeholders,
proactively understood and responded to their needs and views, and safeguarded
the stakeholders’ rights to know and privacy. During the year, we continued to
conduct deep communication with the management and employees of relevant
functional departments and second-and-third-level enterprises through site visits,
training, interviews, etc..

During the year, the Company again won the rating ESG A from MSCI, the global
largest index rating agency, which was the highest rating for domestic property
companies. Particularly, we attained outstanding performance in the management
of ESG issues such as green building, health and safety, product quality and
safety, and corporate governance. This was not only a high confirmation of
our ESG management by capital market but also a recognition of our long-
term development advantages in the business and management. We will take
the initiative to assume the corporate responsibility and strive to improve the
environmental, social and governance issues of the Group to ensure that the
Group’s sustainable development strategy plays an active role in all aspects to
achieve the Group’s vision.

For details, please refer to the “2021 Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” to be issued by the Company.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the published results of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interest of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements as appropriate, is set out on page 7. This summary
is not part of the audited financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the year are set out in note 14 and 15 to the
financial statements respectively.

Properties
Particulars of major properties held by the Group are set out on pages 249 to
256.

Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are set out in note 42, note 19 and note 18 to the financial statements
respectively
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Reserves

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
amounted to HK$1,745,464,000 of which HK$711,991,000 have been proposed
as final dividend for the year. Details of movements in the reserves of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity on pages 118 to 119 and note 28 to the financial statements
respectively.

Interest Capitalisation

Interest (excluding interest accrued on contract liabilities) of approximately
HK$648,163,000 was capitalised during the year in respect of the Group’s
property development projects.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, both the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers and the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s sales and purchases
respectively.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders (which, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company'’s issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest of the Group’s five largest customers or
five largest suppliers.

Donations
During the year, the Group has made donations of approximately HK$1,503,000
for charitable or other purposes.

Directors

The Directors in office as at the date of this report are listed on page 4 of this
report. The changes in Board membership during the year and up to the date of
this report are set out below:

—  Ms. SHI Xiaomei was appointed as an executive director of the Company on
27 August 2021.

—  Mr. LIU Shichao resigned as an executive director of the Company on 27
August 2021.

—  Mr. HUANG Wei resigned as an executive director of the Company on 30
March 2022,

—  Mr. DONG Fang was re-designated from an executive director of the
Company to a non-executive director of the Company on 30 March 2022,

In accordance with article 100 of the articles of association of the Company, Dr.
LU Hua, Ms. CAI Xun and Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, have offered themselves
for re-election.

The list of directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries of the
Company during the year of this report is available on the Company’s website at

www.shenzheninvestment.com under the “Corporate Governance” section.
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Update on Directors’ Information

Mr. DONG Fang resigned as a director of Shahe Industrial Co., Ltd (000014.S7)
on 10 December 2021 and resigned as a non-executive director of Road King
Infrastructure Limited (1098.HK) on 1 January 2022.

Ms. SHI Xiaomei was appointed as a director of Shum Yip Group Limited on 31
August 2021, a director of Shum Yip Holdings Limited on 13 September 2021
and a director of Shahe Industrial Co., Ltd (000014.SZ) on 11 November 2021.

Mr. LI Wai Keung was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Midland IC&I Limited (459.HK) on 29 March 2022.

Directors’ and Senior Management's Biographies
Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group are
set out on pages 44 to 52 of this report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
and Contracts

None of the Directors or his/her connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the business of the Group where were entered into by
the Group and subsisting during or at the end of the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

Save as disclosed below, none of the Directors has any direct or indirect interest
in a business which competes or may compete, with the business of the Group
as required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

Dr. LU Hua is the chairman and a director, Ms. CAl Xun and Ms. SHI Xiaomei are
directors of both Shum Yip Holdings Limited (“SYH") and Shum Yip Group Limited
("SYG"). SYH and SYG, through their subsidiaries and associates, have interests
in property investment and development businesses in the PRC.

In addition, Ms. SHI Xiaomei is also a director of Shahe Industrial Co., Ltd.
(000014.S2), which shares are listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange and have
interests in property investment and development businesses in the PRC.
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Emoluments of Directors and Chief Executives and the Five
Highest Paid Employees

Details of the Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments and of the five highest
paid employees in the Group are set out in notes 9(b) and 9(c) to the financial
statements respectively.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or existed during
the year.

Share Option Scheme
The Company adopted a share option scheme on 22 June 2012 (“Share Option
Scheme”). The major terms of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

1. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive and reward
to the participants to encourage them to work towards enhancing the value
of the Company and its shares for the benefits of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

2. The eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme are the employee or
director (including executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
director) of any member of the group comprising the Company, Shum Yip
Holdings Company Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company,
Shum Yip Group Limited, the holding company of Shum Yip Holdings
Company Limited, and their subsidiaries and associated companies from
time to time (the “SY Group”) or any employee, partner or director of any
business consultant, joint venture partner, financial adviser and legal
adviser of and to any member of the SY Group, as the Board may at it
absolute discretion determine.

3. The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total
number of shares in issue as at the date of adopting the Share Option
Scheme. That 10% limit was refreshed at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 19 June 2014 whereby the Company was authorized
to grant further options carrying rights to subscribe for up to 538,252,770
shares, representing 10% of the total number of the Company’s shares in
issue as at the date of the said meeting, under the Share Option Scheme.
As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme was 514,912,865 (of which options to
subscribe for 161,234,958 shares had been granted and were outstanding),
representing approximately 5.79% of the shares in issue of the Company.
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The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme
to each Participant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in an 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number
of shares of the Company in issue, unless otherwise separately approved
by the shareholders of the Company in a general meeting. Further, any
grant of option to a participant who is a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, which would result in the shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to
him in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant (i)
representing in aggregate more than 0.1% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue; and (i) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the shares of the Company at the date of each grant, in
excess of HK$5,000,000, is subject to the approval of the shareholders of
the Company in general meeting.

The exercise period of any option granted under the Share Option Scheme
is to be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, and shall expire
no later than the 10th anniversary of date upon which the option is granted
and accepted in accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

There is neither any minimum period for which an option must be held, nor
any performance target which is needed to be achieved before the option
can be exercised unless otherwise determined by the Board and specified
at the time of the offer.

The period open for acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option shall
be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion provided that it shall
not be opened for acceptance after the 10th anniversary of the date upon
which the option is granted and accepted in accordance with the Share
Option Scheme or after the Share Option Scheme has been terminated in
accordance with the provisions of the Share Option Scheme, whichever is
earlier. The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option shall be made
with a non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 from the grantee.
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8.  The exercise price shall be a price determined solely by the Board and shall 8. {TEEHEEFEL2EET WAZLANT

be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company's shares as ZEEE (VBEBBARIMBERAR ([HX
stated in the daily quotations sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Frl) BERERMSAARRBRORELERZ
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing WrifE RN ARERMEALD AR
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily PREERLEANAELER 2 FHRME -
quotations sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date

of grant.

9. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective until 22 June 2022 9. BREFEAMBEEME2022F6F228 B
unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the terms stipulated FERBEEFFTETH 2GR BT ©
therein.

Please refer to note 29 to the financial statements for further information of the ~ HREIERIES &2 E AR - B2HMBHRRN T
Share Option Scheme. 29

There was no grant, lapse or cancellation of share options during the year. As  FR& - BIEBREERTE - KWETHE - R20214F
at 31 December 2021, 161,234,958 options granted under the Share Option 128318 - IRIEEMETEIEE 2 161,234,95817 B
Scheme were still outstanding. IREMRARITE ©

The particulars of, and movements in, the share options outstanding under the T XE5IFRERIE 2B T o RTTE 2 BRIEZ 5
Share Option Scheme during the year are set out below: BREE :

Number of share options

Date of Exercise Exercise

At1 Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled  Other changes At 31 grant of period of price of
January during during during during during  December share share share
2021 the year the year the year the year the year 2021 options options options

T

N2021 5 RER ] RER E R -
1R1H R : it 12) Ll

HKS per sha

Directors

£

LU Hua 9,305,948
2

9305948 20/6/2017  20/6/2019-19/6/2022" 2.902

HUANG Wei 8,840,169

&R

8,840,169  20/6/2017  20/6/2019-19/6/2022" 2.902

DONG Fang 6,236,143
)

6,236,143 20/6/2017  20/6/2019-19/6/2022* 2.902

24,362,260 - - - - - 24,382,260




At1
January

Granted
during

the year

Number of share options

Exercised
during
the year

Lapsed
during
the year
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Date of Exercise Exercise

Cancelled  Other changes At 31 grant of period of price of
during during  December share share share
the year the year 2021 options options options

n2021%
12A318

Other participants 105,074,827
EtigmE

- - 105,074,827 20/6/2017  20/6/2019-19/6/2022" 2.902

24,147 871 - - - - - 24478M 8/2/2018  20/6/2019-19/6/2022* 2.869
- 5,160,000 - - - - 5,160,000  28/9/2021  18/1/2022-17/1/2025* 2.000
- 2,470,000 - - - - 2470000  28/9/2021  28/9/2022-27/9/2025*** 2.000
129,222,698 7,630,000 - - - - 136,852,698
In aggregate 153,604,958 7,630,000 - - - - 161,234,958
A
=AY
* Options shall be exercisable in the following manner and subject to performance review: * BREBIZ T A RITELZRIBEZRR -

Maximum percentage of Share Option exercisable

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the Share Option

ATEBRESS LA R BE b BB AR A 2 T A R R
40% at any time from 20 June 2019 to 19 June 2020
201946 A 20 H 2202046 519 B Z {E A AR
70% at any time from 20 June 2020 to 19 June 2021
202046 A 20 B 2202146 A19 8 Z (T{a k5
100% at any time from 20 June 2021 to 19 June 2022
2021476 A20H 2202246 A19 A Z (LA #5 R
** Qptions shall be exercisable in the following manner and subject to performance review: o BREBETYARTELSZRIBEZRR

Maximum percentage of Share Option exercisable

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the Share Option

ATEBRESSLA MBS Bl R E 2 TR
40% at any time from 18 January 2022 to 17 January 2023
20224F1 A18 B £202341 A17 B Z (k5
70% at any time from 18 January 2023 to 17 January 2024
202341 A18 B ZE 202451 A17 B Z (T a] BRI
100% at any time from 18 January 2024 to 17 January 2025
202441 18 H 2202541 A17 B Z (Ea] i
= Options shall be exercisable in the following manner and subject to performance review: o BREBIE T ARITELSZRIBEZRR -

Maximum percentage of Share Option exercisable

AfTEBRERSLA
40%

70%

100%

Period for exercise of the relevant percentage of the Share Option
MBS L Bl IR AE 2 T e A R

at any time from 28 September 2022 to 27 September 2023
202249 A28 HE 202349 A 27 B 2 F Ak 8

at any time from 28 September 2023 to 27 September 2024
202349 A28 HZE 202449 A27 A Z (T a5 R

at any time from 28 September 2024 to 27 September 2025
202449 A28 HZE 202549 A27 B Z (Efa] i
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Directors’ Interests in Shares EHZ R

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the directors and ~ #2021F12A318 » ARG ZEERRSTHA
chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures ~ ERAR T REREEER (T RES RS EH
of the Company and any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part — ([#EHREAGENI]) EXVE) Z2BH - BERH R
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) which were notified to the — EATHEAREEALPERHIEXVBETRESH
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange’)  ESBME@ARRRBABARSMBER DA ([HX
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests in short ~ Ffl) Z#EZ kAR (AEREZLLAEEN s %E
positions which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of SFQ),  BEXWEERBAREE 2 AR 2HER) - HTENE
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352  BHEHF R EENE352EEFEZ Bz
of the SFO or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock A& * SBERDAIRMZ FTRITAESHTESR
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of X HHIZESTA| ([{ZEE| ) BHERRQ R BB

Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) adopted by the Company were as follows: P Bmguk BT ¢
Long positions in the shares (“Shares”) and underlying shares of the Company: ERAEIR ([Hfn ) RIBERHD 2178 ¢

Underlying shares

Number of pursuant to Aggregate Percentage of

Name of director Capacity Shares share options interests Shares in issue

BEBEkEL HEEBTRD

E=fA St Rin#E il 4= L Fi ZBADL

LU Hua Beneficial owner 1,154,562 9,305,948 10,460,510 0.12
BE¥ BEHEAA

HUANG Wei Beneficial owner - 8,840,169 8,840,169 0.10
&g ESHEBA

DONG Fang Beneficial owner - 6,236,143 6,236,143 0.07
£yl BRBAA

LI Wai Keung Beneficial owner 1,180,880 - 1,180,880 0.01
FER ESHEBA

Note: The percentage was calculated based on 8,899,893,115 Shares in issue as at 31 W : BN HIREEZ2021F12831 8 2 E %7K
December 2021. 198,899,893, 115 %51 & -

Interests of the Directors in the share options of the Company are stated in detail ~ EERARAFERE 2 SR E—8 [BRE 2§
in the preceding section “Share Option Scheme”. FHEF o
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had, as at 31 December 2021, any interests or short positions in
any Shares and underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (which is the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests in short positions which were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of SFO), or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debts securities
(including debentures) of, the Company or its associated corporations and none
of the Directors, or their spouse or children under the age of 18, had any rights
to subscribe for equity or debt securities of the Company or its associated
corporations, or had exercised any such rights.

Substantial Shareholders

So far as is known to any director or chief executive of the Company, as at 31
December 2021, the interests and short positions of the shareholders (other
than directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:
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Interest in Shares: BRipkERS -

Number of Shares
Bin g8

Percentage of

Capacity Long Position Short Position Shares in issue
EE&TRD
51 = KB PA=R; )sé
(Note 1)
(Bit&E1)
Shum Yip Group Limited * (“SYG") Interest in controlled corporation 5,622,994,189 ((“‘F;’;ffi’) - 63.18
REEEBERRA ([REEE]) REEE R
Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited (“SYH”)  Beneficial owner 5,546,307,730 - 62.32
A% (&) BRAF (NR% (RE) 1) ERBAA
Interest in controlled corporation 76,686,459 ?‘;;;33)) - 0.86
RIEE s
ALPHA-OMEGA CORPORATION Beneficial owner 981,486,312 - 11.03
BESHEAA
Notes: FE

1. The percentage was calculated based on 8,899,893,115 Shares in issue as at 31 1. B NBEHZE2021F12 831 B 2B 317K 5
December 2021, 8,899,893,115(% 5T & -

2. SYG is deemed to be interested in the 5,622,994,189 Shares which SYH is interested in 2. AR (RE) RAXKE s g2 ENB AT
by virtue of SYH being its direct wholly-owned subsidiary. HMARSBEERANAE (KRB HEREZ
5,622,994,189 B A R HE A HE 4

3. These 76,686,459 Shares were held by Goldclass Industrial Limited, a wholly-owned 3. %%76,686,459 0% I% 15 Ea Successful Years Holdings

subsidiary of Successful Years Holdings Limited, which in turn is wholly-owned by Shum Limited2 2 EMBARMABEEERAAFEH -
Yip Finance Company Limited (“SYF"). SYF is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SYH and M Successful Years Holdings \LimitedEEiéTé%ﬁEEEﬁ%
accordingly, SYH is deemed to be interested in these 76,686,459 Shares. BRAR ([FESR]) 2EHE - FEERAR

¥ (KE)M2EMBRAR - Bt - FE (£E)
W tR AR S 725 76,686,459 I AL 1D AR B AE RS ©

* For identification purpose only

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Company had not been B EXFr#HEEEI - HE2021512A318 - BET
notified by any person (other than directors and chief executives of the Company) WAL (ARAFEERZRITHAERIN) CHMEAD
who had interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the ~ AERAAR KM KEBRH TP EEREEHFLGE
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or  &PIEXVEE2 REIH I 2 N BN BIEEF R
which were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the ~ HIEIEHIE336IFEFE 2 BRM 2 EELAE -
SFO.
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Equity-Linked Agreements

Other than the share option schemes of the Company as disclosed above, no
equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or
that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in the normal
course of business are provided under note 39 to the financial statements.
Some of these transactions also constituted non-exempt connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, for which the Company has complied with the applicable
disclosure requirements.

Connected Transactions

Set out below is the information in relation to the connected transactions carried
out by the Group during the year, particulars of which were previously disclosed
by way of announcements/circulars and are required under the Listing Rules to
be disclosed in this report.

1. On 28 May 2021, Shenzhen Kezhigu Investment Limited (the “Vendor”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Shumyip
Shahe (Group) Co., Ltd. (the ‘Purchaser”) entered into an equity transfer
agreement (the “Equity Transfer Agreement”) pursuant to which the Vendor
has conditionally agreed to sell, and the Purchaser has conditionally agreed
to acquire, 100% equity interest of Shum Yip Land Investment Development
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Shum Yip Land Investment”) together with the loan
in the aggregate amount of RMB71,888,762.54 advanced by the Vendor to
Shum Yip Land Investment and the interest accrued on the said loan at the
rate of 5.21% per annum for the period commencing from 1 January 2021
to the day on which the consideration is paid, at an aggregate consideration
of approximately RMB75.06 million (the “Transaction’). The consideration
will be payable by the Purchaser to the Vendor in cash within 10 working
days from the date of the Equity Transfer Agreement. The Directors
consider that the Transaction gives a good opportunity of the Group to
realize its investment in the Shum Yip Land Investment at an expected
book gain of approximately RMB50 million and to streamline its business
operations. As the Purchaser is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Shum
Yip Group, the ultimate holding company of the Company, the Purchaser is
therefore a connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the Transaction
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company and is subject to
the reporting and announcement requirements but is exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Details of the Transaction were set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 28 May 2021.
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On 18 October 2021, Shum Yip Group (as the transferor), Shum Yip
Holdings Limited, the Company, Shenzhen Nongke Holdings Company
Limited (‘Nongke”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
(as the transferee) and Shenzhen Nongke Dongcheng Estates Company
Limited (“Nongke Dongcheng”) entered into an acquisition Agreement (the
“Acquisition Agreement”) pursuant to which Nongke, as the transferee
designated by the Company, has conditionally agreed to acquire, and Shum
Yip Group has conditionally agreed to sell, the interests corresponding
to the land parcel for residential use located in Shahu-Biling area, Ping
Shan District, Shenzhen, the PRC with a total land area of 66,857.17
sg.m. and a GFA of 307,500 sg.m. (lot no.: G11333-0099, land parcel
code:440307205001GB00621), including but not limited to all interests in
the Shahu Land and the buildings, structures and related assets thereon
(if any) and the corresponding income therefrom (including but not limited
to income generated from the disposal or development of such assets) (the
“Shahu Land Interests”) at a cash consideration of RMB3,970 million (the
“Transaction”). The consideration is to be paid and satisfied by Nongke to
Shum Yip Group in cash in full on the completion date, being on a date
falling within 10 business days after the fulfillment of or (as the case
may be) waiver of the last of conditions precedent or which the parties
may otherwise agree. The Directors believe that the Transaction is in line
with the development strategy of the Group, and will further enhance
the profitability of the Group and promote the long-term sustainable
development of the Group. As Shum Yip Group is the ultimate holding
company of the Company, Shum Yip Group is therefore a connected person
of the Company. Accordingly, the Transaction constitutes a connected
transaction of the Company and is subject to the reporting, announcement,
circular and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of the Transaction were set out
in the circular of the Company dated 30 November 2021. The Transaction
was approved by the independent shareholders of the Company on 30
December 2021.

On 29 October 2021, Shenzhen Shumyip Minghong Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (the “Project Company”), an indirect 65%- owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Shenzhen Shumyip Xinhongcheng
Investment Co., Ltd. ("Xinhongcheng”) entered into the (i) first supplemental
agreement (“First Supplemental Agreement”) pursuant to which they have
conditionally agreed to vary the terms of compensation to Xinhongcheng
under the relocation and compensation agreement dated 27 March
2018 (“First Relocation and Compensation Agreement”) to the effect
that monetary compensation in the amount of RMB2,011.29 million
(“Substitute Compensation No. 1") would be paid by the Project Company to
Xinhongcheng instead of the provision of residential resettlement properties
with a total area of 41,989.99 sq.m. to be constructed on the project
land as originally agreed upon under First Relocation and Compensation
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Agreement, and (i) second supplemental agreement (“Second Supplemental
Agreement”) pursuant to which they have conditionally agreed to vary
the terms of compensation to Xinhongcheng under the relocation and
compensation agreement dated 27 March 2018 (“Second Relocation and
Compensation Agreement”) to the effect that monetary compensation in the
amount of RMB38.71 million (“Substitute Compensation No. 2") would be
paid by the Project Company to Xinhongcheng instead of the provision of
residential resettlement properties with a total area of 808.15 sg.m sg.m. to
be constructed on the project land as originally agreed upon under Second
Relocation and Compensation Agreement; and to make corresponding
changes to certain terms concerning the calculation and/or payment of
compensation for loss due to suspension of operation and allowances for
relocation and temporary settlement payable to Xinhongcheng under the
First Relocation and Compensation Agreement and Second Relocation
Compensation Agreement. Each of Substitute Compensation No. 1 and
Substitute Compensation No. 2 is required to be paid by the Project
Company to Xinhongcheng in two installments, (i) as to 50% to be paid
within one month from the date of completion of the Project Company's
filing of change of compensation method as contemplated under the
respective supplemental Agreement with the relevant departments but prior
to the application for pre-sale permit; and (ii) the remaining 50% is require
to be paid within two months from the abovementioned filing date but prior
to the application for pre-sale permit. The Directors consider that replacing
the provision of resettlement properties to Xinhongcheng by payment of the
substitute compensation is beneficial to the Project Company because it
would provide the Project Company with greater flexibility in overall sales
arrangement (as it is no longer necessary to take into consideration the
distribution of resettlement properties to Xinhongcheng) as well as tax
savings (mainly, value-added tax). As Xinhongcheng is a subsidiary of Shum
Yip Group, the ultimate holding company of the Company, it is a connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under
the First Supplemental Agreement and Second supplemental Agreement
(“Transactions”) constitute connected transactions of the Company and
are subject to the reporting, announcement, circular and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of the Transactions were set out in the circular of the
Company dated 30 November 2021. The Transactions were approved by
the independent shareholders of the Company on 30 December 2021.
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Purchases, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Securities
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed
any of its listed securities during the year.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of its Directors, throughout the year and up to the date of this report,
there is sufficient public float, as not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
Shares are held by the public.

Continuing Disclosure Requirements Under Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules

Banking facilities with covenants in relation to specific performance of the
controlling shareholder:

By an agreement (“1st Facility Agreement’) dated 9 August 2017 entered into
between the Company as borrower and a bank, up to a principal amount of
HK$500,000,000 transferable term loan facility (“1st Facility”) was provided to
the Company. The term of the 1st Facility is 48 months commencing from the
date of the 1st Facility Agreement.

On 16 August 2017, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter (“2nd
Facility Agreement”) relating to a transferable term loan facility up to a principal
amount of HK$600,000,000 (or its equivalent in United States dollars) (“2nd
Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The Company shall repay in full to the
lender each borrowing of a portion of the 2nd Facility on the date falling 48
months from the date such borrowing is made and all other sums (if any) then
owing under the 2nd Facility Agreement on the date falling 54 months from 21
August 2017.

On 18 December 2017, the Company as borrower entered into a facility
agreement (“3rd Facility Agreement’) relating to a transferable term loan facility
of up to HK$400,000,000 (“3rd Facility") with a bank as lender. The term of
the 3rd Facility is 48 months commencing from the date of the 3rd Facility
Agreement.

On 11 April 2018, the Company as horrower accepted the facility letter (“4th
Facility Agreement”) relating to a term loan facility of up to HK$1,500,000,000
(“4th Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The term of the 4th Facility is 4 years
from the date the first drawdown under the 4th Facility is made.
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On 26 June 2018, the Company as borrower entered into a facility agreement
(“5th Facility Agreement”) relating to a transferable term loan facility of up to a
principal amount of HK$10,000,000,000 (*5th Facility”) offered by certain banks
as lenders. The Company shall repay the borrowings under the 5th Facility by five
installments with all outstanding amounts under the 5th Facility fully repaid on
the date falling 60 months from the date of the 5th Facility Agreement.

On 26 June 2019, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter
("6th Facility Agreement”) relating to a revolving loan facility of up to
RMB1,000,000,000 (“6th Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The Facility is
subject to annual review by the lender.

On 14 September 2020, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter
(“7th Facility Agreement”) relating to an uncommitted term loan facility of up to
US$185,000,000 (or its equivalent in Hong Kong dollars) (“7th Facility”) offered
by a bank as lender. The last repayment date of the borrowing under the 7th
Facility is 48 months from the date of the first drawdown under the 7th Facility
Agreement.

On 17 September 2020, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter
(“8th Facility Agreement”) relating to a term loan facility of up to HK$800,000,000
(“8th Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The term of the 8th Facility is 3 years
from the date of the first drawdown under the 8th Facility Agreement.

On 7 April 2021, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter (“9th
Facility Agreement”) relating to a term loan facility of up to HK$500,000,000 (“9th
Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The term of the 9th Facility is 3 years from
the date of acceptance of the 9th Facility Agreement.

On 17 June 2021, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter (“10th
Facility Agreement”) relating to a term loan facility of up to HK$500,000,000
(“10th Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The term of the 10th Facility is 35
months commencing from the date of the first drawdown under the 10th Facility
Agreement.

On 29 June 2021, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter (“11th
Facility Agreement”) relating to an uncommitted term loan facility of up to
HK$600,000,000 (or its equivalent in United States dollars) (“11th Facility”)
offered by a bank as lender. The term of the 11th Facility is 3 years commencing
from the signing date of the 11th Facility Agreement.
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On 19 August 2021, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter (“12th
Facility Agreement”) relating to a term loan facility of up to HK$1,000,000,000
(“12th Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The term of the 12th Facility is 36
months commencing from the date of acceptance of the 12th Facility Agreement.

On 30 August 2021, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter (“13th
Facility Agreement”) relating to a term loan facility of up to HK$600,000,000
(“13th Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. The term of the 13th Facility is 36
months commencing from the first drawdown date of the 13th Facility Agreement.

On 23 November 2021, the Company as borrower entered into a facility
agreement (“14th Facility Agreement”) relating to a term loan facility of up to
HK$900,000,000 (“14th Facility”) offered by a bank as lender. HK$600,000,000
of the 14th Facility is for a term of 36 months and HK$300,000,000 of the 14th
Facility is for a term of 12 months, both commencing from the date of the 14th
Facility Agreement.

On 9 December 2021, the Company as borrower accepted the facility letter
(“15th Facility Agreement”, together with the 1st Facility Agreement, 2nd
Facility Agreement, 3rd Facility Agreement, 4th Facility Agreement, 5th
Facility Agreement, 6th Facility Agreement, 7th Facility Agreement, 8th Facility
Agreement, 9th Facility Agreement, 10th Facility Agreement, 11th Facility
Agreement, 12th Facility Agreement, 13th Facility Agreement and 14th Facility
Agreement collectively referred to as the “Facility Agreements”) relating to a term
loan facility of up to HK$1,000,000,000 (“15th Facility”) offered by a bank as
lender. The term of the 15th Facility is 36 months commencing from the date of
acceptance of the 15th Facility Agreement.

Under the Facility Agreements, it will be an event of default if Shum Yip Holdings
Company Limited ceases to own beneficially at least 35% of the issued share
capital of the Company, ceases to be the single largest shareholder of the
Company, ceases to have management control of the Company, or ceases
to remain beneficially owned as to at least 51% by the Shenzhen Municipal
People’'s Government of the People’s Republic of China and at any time after the
happening of an event of default, all amounts due under the facilities may be
declared to be immediately due and payable.

As at 31 December 2021, all advances made under the 1st Facility Agreement,
2nd Facility Agreement and 3rd Facility Agreement had been fully repaid.
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Permitted Indemnity

The articles of association of the Company provides that each Director, Secretary
or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities (to the fullest extent
permitted by the Companies Ordinance) which he may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. In
addition, the Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers liability
insurance in respect of relevant legal actions against the Directors and officers.

Audit Committee

The Group’s results for the year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
Information on the work of Audit Committee and its composition are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 74 to 102.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers (Certified Public
Accountants and Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Council Ordinance), who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

By Order of the Board

LU Hua
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate governance.
The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) strongly believes that good
corporate governance is essential for effective management, a healthy corporate
culture, successful business growth and enhancing shareholders’ value. The
Company has applied the principles and complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) throughout the year 2021.

Looking ahead, we will keep our corporate governance practices under continual

review to ensure their consistent application and to improve our practices having
regard to the latest developments including any new amendment to the CG Code.
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Board of Directors

Responsibilities and Delegation

Under the leadership of the Chairman, the Board is responsible for formulating
overall strategies and policies of the Company, supervising and evaluating
business and financial performance of the Company, determining appropriate
corporate governance practices applicable to the Company’s circumstances and
ensuring operational efficiency and effectiveness by establishing a comprehensive
corporate governance framework with appropriate risk control measures and
aiming to enhance long-term shareholders’ value.

The Board has delegated certain functions to respective committees, including
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee, the
details of the responsibilities, membership and activities during the year of
each of them are set out in the section headed “Board Committees” below.
These Board committees assist the Board to discharge its duties while the
responsibilities of the day-to-day operations and business management are
delegated to the executive directors and senior management. Matters specifically
reserved to the Board include approval of financial statements, dividend policy,
significant changes in corporate structure, mergers and acquisitions, major
investments, material acquisition and disposal of assets, selection of directors,
changes to remuneration policy for directors and senior management, terms of
reference of board committees, as well as major corporate policies.

All Board members have separate and independent access to the management,
and are provided with full and timely information about the conduct of the
business and development of the Company, including reports on significant
matters. Besides, all Board members are provided with monthly management
updates which contain periodic financials with summaries of key events, outlook
and business related matters of the Group. Should independent professional
advice be considered necessary by the directors, such kind of services would be
made available to the directors upon request.

The Company has arranged Directors & Officers Liability and Company
Reimbursement Insurance for its directors and officers in respect of legal
proceedings and other claims against them arising from their office and execution
of their powers, duties and responsibilities.
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Composition

The Board currently comprises three executive directors, one non-executive
director and three independent non-executive directors. Our independent non-
executive directors constitute not less than one-third of the Board.

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael and Mr. LI Wai Keung, our independent non-
executive directors, have served the Board for more than nine years. The Board
considers that they have continued to exercise independent judgment on the
matters of the Group and there is no evidence that length of tenure is having
an adverse impact on their independence. The Board therefore considers
that Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael and Mr. LI Wai Keung remain independent,
notwithstanding the length of their tenure.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive director a
confirmation of his independence pursuant to the criterion set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers that all independent non-executive directors are
independent.

All directors have a specific term of appointment which is not more than three
years. Each director has entered into an appointment letter with the Company and
pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, every director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. One third of the
directors (or if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
one-third) shall retire from office at each annual general meeting and eligible for
re-election by shareholders. Also, any director appointed to fill a casual vacancy
shall retire at the next general meeting of the Company and be eligible for re-
election by shareholders. A separate resolution is proposed for the re-election of
each director.

The Board members do not have any financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other. Brief biographical particulars of the
directors are set out from pages 44 to 50 of this report.
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Chairman of the Board and President

During the year, the roles of Chairman of the Board are performed by Dr. LU Hua,
whereas the roles of President are performed by Mr. HUANG Wei. The Chairman
of the Board is responsible for leading the Board to formulate good corporate
governance practices and procedures together with the directors, determine the
strategic directions, business plans and investment proposals of the Company,
assess its performance and supervise the business affairs of the management in
ensuring the effectiveness of the Board, whereas the President is responsible for
overseeing overall operations of the Company and ensuring the implementation of
plans efficiently.

Board Meeting

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating performance of
the Company and to discuss future strategy. Four regular Board meetings and
four special Board meetings were held in 2021. At the Board meetings, the Board
reviewed significant matters including the Company’s business development,
proposals for final and interim dividends, annual report and half-year report and
connected transactions. At least fourteen days’ notice of a regular Board meeting
was given to all directors who were provided with an opportunity to include
matters for discussion in the agenda. The agenda and the accompanying board
papers were sent to Directors at least three days before the intended date of a
Board meeting. Draft and final versions of minutes of each Board meeting were
circulated to directors for their comment and record respectively. In addition to
the Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board also held a separate meeting with
the independent non-executive directors without the present of other directors on
an annual basis.
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Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and ~— #HG G - EHEE G LA 5 2
General Meeting
The attendance record of each director at Board meetings, Board committee 20215 - KEZFHFEETe el  EFEE¢e

meetings and general meeting in 2021 is set out below: FRBEAGHESENMT
Audit  Nomination Remuneration Annual  Extraordinary
Board Committee Committee Committee General General
Meeting ' Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
e 37 REZ HMEEE R Hﬁ?ﬁ%@j
No. of meetings held BANERRY 8 3 2 2 1 1
Executive Directors HITES
LU Hua (Chairman) BE () 8/8 N/A 1/2 N/A v v
HUANG Wei (President) &R (#3) 3/8 N/A N/A N/A - -
CAI Xun 2 6/8 N/A N/A N/A v/ -
DONG Fang £l 6/8 N/A N/A N/A v -
SHI Xiaomei (note 1) B (M) 2/3 N/A N/A N/A N/A -
LIU Shichao (note 2) 2t (fsE2) 5/5 N/A N/A N/A v/ -
Independent Non-executive BYFHTES
Directors
WU Wai Chung Michael R 8/8 3/3 N/A 2/2 v v
LI Wai Keung B 8/8 3/3 2/2 2/2 v v
WONG Yau Kar David BERE 8/8 3/3 2/2 2/2 v/ v
Notes: MIaE -

1. Ms. SHI Xiaomei was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 August 1. SRR TR2021F8 827 HEZR T AARDTEH
2021. TEE -

2. Mr. LIU Shichao resigned as an executive director of the Company on 27 August 2021. 2. Bt AR2021F8A2THEBETARARNITE
®.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code”) as the code of conduct of the Company for dealing in securities of the
Company by the directors. Having made specific enquiry to all the directors, all
directors confirmed that throughout the year, they had complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code.

Directors’ Continuing Professional Development Programme
Each newly appointed director will be provided with necessary induction
information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the Company’s
operations and businesses as well as his/her responsibilities under relevant
statutes, laws, rules and regulations

Directors’ training is an on-going process, all directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Company also updates directors on any latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements from time to time to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

A summary of the training records reported by the directors for year 2021 is set
out as follow:

EZCCRMLTRAME+ B LMBTAESE
TEFXHOEESTA ([RETA]) - FRAAH
ESETEFIINTRED - ERZRESFLE
TEHK - 2REFOER - RSREEFEAN—E
BTRETAMENRETE -

SN L E SR
EMRENES YRRV ENAREIIER - U
BREHADANEERFEHARBER A2
RARZR THETEBEN TR -

EEEYBHRBE - ADARDNAEESRRA
TRER - UBRREMRABRRE - KRANT
BEEBRE LRI B R TR O
BREN - WRRAMLRAKHRECEEARR
SRR

EZ2RN2021 FRBIIENEERIINT

Type of training covered*

RSl laophidhy

LU Hua EES
HUANG Wei B
CAl Xun £
DONG Fang EYl
SHI Xiaomei FEEE
LIU Shichao 2|t
WU Wai Chung, Michael RIES
LI Wai Keung E3EE

WONG Yau Kar, David BRE

12,3
12,3
12,3
12,3
12,3
12,3

1,2
1,2
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1. Attending briefing/training seminars/conferences relevant to the industry, business and
their duties.

2. Reading industrial and regulatory updates/monthly management reports etc.

The Board is regularly kept up-to-date on key events, the performance, position and
outlook of the Group through the monthly management reports.

3. Site visit

Board Committee

The Board has appointed a number of committees to discharge its functions. The
respective roles, responsibilities and activities of each Board committee are set
out below:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive directors, who
are all equipped with commercial and financial skills and experiences required for
understanding of accounting information. It is chaired by Mr. LI Wai Keung and
other members are Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael and Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David.

Under its terms of reference, the duties of the Audit Committee include, but
not limited to, making recommendations on the appointment of external auditor
and monitoring the effectiveness of external audit, supervision of internal audit
and oversight of the integrity of financial information and the financial reporting
system, overseeing internal audit, risk management and internal control systems
of the Company and ensuring such functions are adequately resourced. The
full terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the Company’s
website and the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (*Stock
Exchange”).
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The Audit Committee performed the following in 2021:

Financial reporting/external audit and internal review

Reviewed the 2020 annual financial statements, annual report and results
announcement and recommended the same to the Board for approval,

Reviewed the 2021 half-year financial statements, half-year report and
results announcement and recommended the same to the Board for
approval;

Reviewed report submitted by external auditor on their statutory audit of the
2020 annual financial statements and their independent review of the 2021
half-year financial statements;

Reviewed and discussed the observations and recommendations on the
financial reporting and control matters set out in the 2020 management
letter submitted by external auditor;

Reviewed the representation letter issued by management to external
auditor in connection with their audit of the 2020 financial statements;

Reviewed with the external auditor their plan for statutory audit of the 2021
annual financial statements, including the nature and scope of the audit
and reporting obligations.

Risk management, internal control and internal audit

Reviewed the evaluation report on internal control and risk management
systems for year 2020 issued by the risk management department;

Reviewed with the risk management department on the risk management
and internal control systems and their effectiveness, the overall risk
management, internal control and internal audit work progress and findings,
and the adequacy of resources and staffing for such functions.

At the meeting held on 25 March 2022, the Audit Committee reviewed and
approved the 2021 annual financial statements, annual report and results
announcement and considered reports from the external auditor, and reviewed
the evaluation report on internal control and risk management systems for year
2021 issued by the risk management department.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set out in
the paragraph headed ‘Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board Committee
Meetings and General Meetings” of this report.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors. It is chaired by Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David and other members are Mr.
LI Wai Keung and Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael.

The Company adopted the model whereby the Remuneration Committee is
responsible for making recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive director and senior management according to its
terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration matters of non-executive
directors, the setting up of adequate and transparent procedures for setting such
remuneration. The full terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

No director or any of his/her associates is allowed to determine their own
remuneration. In making recommendation to the Board on the remuneration of
directors and senior management, the Remuneration Committee shall consider
factors such as industry remuneration level, time commitment and responsibilities
of directors, employment conditions of other positions within the Group and
whether their remuneration are performance-related.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the director fees
of non-executive directors and the remuneration of executive directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee also reviewed the overall
remuneration structure of the Group and considered the forms and adequacy of
the various performance-based incentive arrangements.

The remuneration of senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2021 is set out below:
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Number of Individuals

Remuneration Bands AE
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,500,000 1,500,001/ 0 £2,500,000/ 0 3
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,500,000 2,500,001 7c%3,500,0008 7T 2
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,500,000 3,500,001 % ;0% 4,500,000/ 7T -
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,500,000 4,500,001 % 702 5,500,000/& 70 1

The particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees are set out in notes 9(b) and 9(c) to the financial statements.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee is
set out in the paragraph headed “Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board
Committee Meetings and General Meetings” of this report.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three members of which two of them are
independent non-executive directors. It is chaired by Dr. WONG Yau Kar, David
and other members are Dr. LU Hua and Mr. LI Wai Keung.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board, assessing the independence of the independent non-
executive directors, identifying and evaluating individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members as required and making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and re-appointment of directors. The full terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee are available on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website.

During the year 2021, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size
and composition of the Board and opined that it has the skills, experience
and diversity of perspective appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. The Nomination Committee also reviewed and recommended to the
Board in relation to the re-election of the retiring directors at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 1 June 2021 and the appointment of Ms.
SHI Xiaomei as an executive director having due regard to the Board diversity
policy and nomination policy. The Nomination Committee also assessed the
independency of the independent non-executive directors.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee is set
out in the paragraph headed “Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board
Committee Meetings and General Meetings” of this report.

The Board recognizes the benefits of a diverse Board with members possessing
a balance of skills, experience and expertise which complement to the business
success of the Group, and seeks increasing diversity at Board level to enhance
the effectiveness of the Board and to achieve a sustainable and balanced
development. The Board diversity policy sets out the approach to achieve
diversity in the Board, namely through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis having due regard
to the overall effective functioning of the Board as a whole. And, the Nomination
Committee will review at least annually the appropriateness of the structure, size
and composition of the Board to ensure its effectiveness.
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The Board nomination policy sets out the principles which guide the Nomination
Committee to identify and evaluate a candidate for nomination to (i) the Board for
appointment or (i) the shareholders of the Company for election, as a director
of the Company with a view to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspective appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business. The Nomination Committee shall propose a candidate for
nomination or a director for re-election based on merit and other considerations
including the Board diversity policy, the expected contribution the candidate
would add to Board and whether the candidate is able to commit and devote
sufficient time and attention to the Company’s affairs etc. The Nomination
Committee may take such measures that it considers appropriate in connection
with its identification and evaluation of a candidate and make recommendation to
the Board for the Board's consideration.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for, and has performed during the year, the following
corporate governance duties:

e to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management;

e 1o review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to employees and directors;

e to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the corporate governance report.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

Responsibility

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control systems
and reviewing the effectiveness of such systems. Management is responsible for
designing and implementing an internal control system to manage the risks to the
Company to the maximum extent, in order to identify and manage these risks so
as to understand, reduce, mitigate, divert or avoid these risks. The Board hereby
explains that the systems are designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk
of failure to meet business objectives, and only to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Risk Management Structure

Board Oversight

Audit Committee, acting on behalf of the Board
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o Ensure that an appropriate and effective risk management framework is
established and maintained by the Company.

° Oversee management in the design, implementation and monitoring of
the risk management framework.

e (Qversee management in their risk mitigation efforts.

Risk Management, Reporting and Communication

Risk Management Department

o HRAFAERUKAEF-—ESENERNE
ﬁré")rﬁ

o EETHERARREBERBALG  BITR
EERFEATE -

s EEEHERRBRSEIEMIME-

ARERE ERRESE
Bl E S

° Being the specialized risk management department, is responsible for
the establishment and operation of the comprehensive risk management
system of the Company; guide and supervise the overall risk
management of other departments and the respective enterprises which
they belong to.

° Risk management: Regularly conduct systematic risk evaluation and
carry out risk audit to major businesses in advance.

o Internal control: inspect, evaluate and optimize the implementation of
internal control system, to avoid execution risks.

° Internal audit: conduct multi-level audit, implement auditing issues
rectification work, prevent operational risks.

o Ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the risk management
framework has been conducted at least annually and provide such
confirmation to the Board through the Audit Committee.
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Performing Daily Risk and Monitoring Responsibility

Functional Departments, Risk Management Departments of Subsidiaries and
Individuals

Responsible for carrying out risk management procedures and internal
control measures in their daily operations.

Regularly review the risk profile and report to the risk management
department and management on the risks within their respective
operating and functional areas.
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Risk Management Process

The Company adopts an integrated “bottom-up” and “top-down” risk review
process, requiring the heads of functional departments and business units of the
Company to participate in identifying operational risks and incorporate them into
various business and decision-making processes, including strategy formulation,
business development, business planning, capital allocation, investment
decisions, internal controls and daily operations, to enable
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(1) comprehensive identification and prioritization of all significant risks within (1) ZHEZBIRAADBHEHERRR - WiETE

the Company: Nz 353
(2)  reporting of significant risks to the appropriate management level; 2 WBEAEREHRZEENEEERR
(3) the management to effectively communicate about the risks. () RELERREBETEIER -

Bottom-up Process BT mLENER

e Business units and functional departments of the Company conduct risk
identification and evaluation of specific businesses within the scope of
responsibility, propose and implement risk management solutions and
report annually to the risk management department of the Company the
significant risks identified during the risk management process.

e All departments of the Company are responsible for sorting out their
own business processes, collecting and collating internal and external
risk initial information within their scope of functions extensively and
continuously. The risk management department regularly screens,
refines, compares, classifies and combines the initial risk information
collected by each department and draws the risk coordinates map
based on the risk evaluation results of each department to initially
determine the management priorities of various risks of the Company,
formulate risk management strategies, and propose and implement risk
management solutions.
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The Risk Management Department of the Company, through collection,
screening and sequencing and interview procedures, compiles the
annual comprehensive risk management work report and the “Evaluation
Report on Internal Control and Risk Management Systems”.

The Risk Management Department of the Company reports their works
to the Audit Committee annually and submits “Evaluation Report on
Internal Control and Risk Management Systems” to the Audit Committee
and the Board for their review.

Top-down Process

The Audit Committee inspects and reviews the new risks or significant
strategic risks that may have a significant long-term impact on the
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Company, and reviews the effectiveness of the risk management and B - R ARRRERERANIDEEZFHMK
internal control systems of the Company on an annual basis. o

In addition to the risk evaluation function, the management from the
functional departments is responsible for identifying and evaluating the
financial and other risks in different areas of the Company from the
aspects such as investment auditing and strategic planning, financial
management and legal compliance respectively, and forms a normalized
mechanism for risk evaluation to regularly conduct systematic significant
risk evaluation, so as to achieve dynamic management of significant
risks.

Formed a normalized mechanism for risk evaluation to regularly carry
out systematic significant risk evaluation, identify, evaluate and analyze
all kinds of existing or potential risks in current business development,
and timely track and monitor the moving trend of significant risks,
control the progress and effectiveness, so as to achieve dynamic
management of significant risks.

For major businesses such as land bidding, equity acquisition, joint
venture cooperation etc., a comprehensive risk assessment and audit
must be conducted in advance to achieve the operating mechanism
where audit opinions without prior risk evaluation may not be submitted
for approval so that significant business risks are effectively controlled.

Annual review is performed to strengthen the institutionalization and
standardization of internal audit work.
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Internal Control

The internal control system of the Company is based on the principles under the
COSO (the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission).
The risk management department of the Company conducts an annual
assessment and review of the internal control and risk management systems.
The review covers five aspects including control environment, risk assessment,
control activities, monitoring measures and information and communication, in
order to assess whether the internal control and risk management systems of the
Company is sound, appropriate, effective and sufficient. The risk management
department annually prepares an evaluation report on internal control and risk
management systems of the Company.

Principal Policies and Measures of Internal Control

Control Environment

Corporate Governance Report
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e The Company has established a code of discipline of corporate
governance policy, human resource management policy, regulatory
business operation and governance, as well as regular review and
refresher training on key ethical practices.

e  The Company has compiled a compilation of human resource system,
and through implementation of this system, the human resource
concepts, policies, systems are unified and standardized, and the
policies are more transparent. Each employee is subject to an
accountability system for internal control responsibilities.

e  The Company has, based on the need of management, formulated a
number of management measures, including the Management Approach
for Safety Inspection and Assessment of Construction Projects, the
Management Measures for Resources Assets Leases, the Management
Measures for Company Contracts and the Measures for Management of
Intellectual Property, to strengthen its business management and further
facilitate its standardized development.

e  The Company has amended the ‘Management Measures for Internal
Control” to clarify the principles and specific requirements for the
commencement of internal control self-evaluation and internal control
audit work of the Company and its subsidiaries and established the
“1+N" internal control system led by the construction and supervision
system of the internal control system and supported by various specific
operation regulations.
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Risk Assessment Vo=

The risk management functional department identifies and assesses the
systemic risks faced by the Company through regular risk management;
controls the risk position of subsidiaries as well as identifies and
assesses changes that may have a significant impact on the internal
control system through periodic risk management reporting systems of
the subsidiaries and risk assessment and monitoring of major projects
and businesses.

The relevant functional departments of the Company are responsible for
identifying and assessing financial and other risks in different areas of
the Company from the aspects such as strategy planning and investment
auditing, financial management, capital operation and legal compliance.

Compile a comprehensive risk management report and submit it to the
Audit Committee for consideration and timely take corresponding risk
management measures.

Control Activities

Ensure that policies are implemented effectively through the
development of policies with well-defined policies and procedures.

Key control systems and processes, including budget and cost control,
submitting management report, corporate policies and corporate daily
activities, for approval, review and division of duties through financial
reporting systems and processes. The internal control system of the
Company clearly defines the responsibilities and powers of each
unit. The Company has established policies and procedures for major
business functions and business units.

The Company established the “Administrative Rules on Supervision and
Management of Audit Rectification”, which included the completion
of audit rectification into annual appraisal indicators for related
subsidiaries, and complete a closed-loop management accountability
mechanism for auditing rectification supervision.

Through the “Request System on Key Issues’, the Company has
established strict decision-making mechanism for major businesses
and issues, such as major investments, appointments and removal of
key personnel and large-scale capital operations to ensure that the
Company's major decision-making arrangements are in place.
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Monitoring Measures

Continuously check compliance and conduct risk management and
internal control reviews.

The secretariat of the Board and relevant functional departments
are responsible for the overall assessment and monitoring for the
established procedures to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules and
to monitor the compliance with applicable laws and other key provisions.

The internal audit is performed by the Risk Management Department
of the Company, which is responsible for independent auditing of risk
management and internal control.

The Company developed the model clauses of contracts through the
‘Management Measures for Contracts” to finalize an integrated system
combining corporate decisions and legal risk prevention and control and
highlight the function of legal risk control.

The Company strictly follows the related published systems, such as the
‘Management Measures for Real Estate Investment” and the “Request
System on Key Issues”, for investments in real estate projects, as well
as implements the approval procedures required for project investments.

The Company implements business integrity risk prevention and
control over key areas, key processes and key posts. It oversees the
entire purchase bidding procedures for significant projects of the
Company and its subsidiaries and regulates the standard operation of
evaluation process to promote the company wide application of the
Sunshine Procurement Platform and realize sunshine transaction, online
information transparency and big data monitoring.

Corporate Governance Report
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Information and Communication

Implement, maintain and continuously develop business and information
management systems to support the business and operations of the
Company, including financial, information disclosure and collaborative
oversight.

Disseminate corporate information in a timely manner through the
intranet of the Company, collaborative office systems and e-mail system
of the Company.

Establish and implement the Company’s website and shareholder
communication policies to ensure that shareholders receive
comprehensive, clear, transparent and timely information about the
Company.

Establish a unified stock property management information system to
make the stock asset management more transparent and instant.

The Company constructed the cloud platform to ensure data security
and realize the dynamic extension of the computing platform in line with
business demand.
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Internal Auditing

The Risk Management Department is responsible for the internal audit of the
Company. It reviews the risks involved in daily operations of the Company
and its subsidiaries by using the audit plans and procedures set out in the
“Comprehensive Risk Management Manual” and the “Interim Measures for
Internal Audit Management” it established, and conducts regular post-evaluation
reviews on internal audit items to ensure the effectiveness of risk management
framework.

Each year, the Risk Management Department determines the internal audit work
priorities and formulates annual internal audit plans according to the Company’s
strategic deployment, business management needs and annual work schedule.

The annual internal audit plan shall include the following basic elements:

1)

2)

3)

Annual work objectives of internal audit;

The specific audit items to be implemented and their sequence;

The audit resources allocated to each audit item.
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According to the Interim Measures for Internal Audit Management, matters that 1R ( NESE TIREBE T EA) - WAEITEH

must be audited shall include the following:

Type of Audit

S
il

FEEETIHIEAE

Content
A

Economic Responsibility Audit
REREET

[tem Audit
ELEE:

Post-Evaluation Audit
kI EE

During the three-year tenure of the corporate management team, at least one internal
economic responsibility audit shall be performed
PERLEMFIFERGMHE  FEETEMRENEBEERT

The departure of a leader of enterprise requires an economic responsibility audit
PEREBABT - FEETLERESH

For significant investment projects, at least one audit in every three years is required
EAREER - SIFARBRTEN REH

For on-going operating projects, at least one audit in every three years is required
SECEIEE - B3FABRERTEDTRER

After an investment project is completed, a comprehensive post-evaluation audit of its
operation and economic benefits is required
REBEE2HTHE  FEHEEENCENGSETRENETESR

EM

_I_

=113

In addition to the above, the Risk Management Department will also conduct B Eilish - RBREBRHHITSREEEEETREN -
specialized internal audit on the operational priorities of each functional ~ AFIEEL{EER - WRABGEENTHH QAN
departments and subsidiaries according to the actual operational and ~ FERRIER - SEBAELM - WBLEXEESHH
management situation, the annual work priorities of the Company, as well as the ~ {TRERHBH LE - AHEREELHRAMED
risks faced by the Company as assessed at the beginning of each year. The risk & ~ ERGE T SEETRHRTEE -
management department conducts internal audit supervision on the following

matters of the wholly-owned and controlled enterprises of the Company:

e The implementation of the relevant financial laws, regulations, rules and ¢ BEIR - BN LT EHBFE@IEEE - &
regimes by the state, government and superior authorities; B BEMHENERITER

e The implementation of the operating guidelines, policies, rules and ® FIBZE - BREESTEOLE T - BUK -
regulations formulated by the wholly-owned and controlled enterprises of REHENERHITER

the Company;
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e The soundness, rationality, effectiveness and implementation of internal
control systems and regimes;

o Financial revenue and expenditure, asset quality, operating performance
and other related economic activities;

° The establishment and implementation of various operating plans, planned
budgets;

° Important economic contracts, investment projects, mortgages loans or
provision of guarantees, infrastructure projects, etc.

Review of Effectiveness of Risk Management and Internal Control and
Main Procedures to Address the Lack of Internal Control

Based on the above risk management and internal control systems, the Risk
Management Department of the Company conducts regular review and evaluation
in accordance with three aspects of risk management, internal control and
internal audit, to identify the deficiencies of internal control and improve the
system process.

The Risk Management Department establishes a work plan for the coming year in
the later part of every year, which sets out the objectives and scope of the audit.

Internal audits include the testing of the Company’s financial, operational
and compliance controls. The Risk Management Department engages an
external accounting firm to issue an annual internal audit report, and the Risk
Management Department will, towards the deficiencies in monitoring raised by
the accounting firm, make rectification on the details of the audit disclosed by
the internal audit report and on the audit results of the department concerned.

In response to the identified internal control deficiencies, the Risk Management
Department will promptly communicate the issues with the relevant functional
departments or subsidiaries, put forward measures of rectification and establish
corresponding policies after discussion with the management, and issue a
rectification notice to the functional departments or subsidiaries to urge them to
complete the rectification within the prescribed time.

The implementation of the rectification of various enterprises in the year
was good, and passed the second round of internal control conducted by the
accounting firm,

In the internal control work carried out during the year, the Risk Management
Department did not find any significant deficiencies. According to the relevant
audit results and management responses, the management believes that the
existing internal control system is still valid as a whole.
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Review on Effectiveness of Risk Management and Internal Control in
2021

The Risk Management Department has predicted and analyzed the possible
risks the Company’s operations and management may face in 2021. After
evaluation, the 3 major risks faced by the Company in 2021 mainly included 4
kinds of risks: (1) macroeconomic risks (operating results reduction risk, contract
performance risk); (2) policy risks (impact of industrial policies on our principle
business); (3) operational risks (risk of breach of contracts as a result of delay
in commencement or completion of a project); and (4) legal risks (matters
involving material litigation and arbitration). At the same time, during the year,
it strengthened pre-examination of major business risks, conducted special
risk audits on key projects, and regularly evaluated financial risk early warning
indicators such as solvency, asset operation capability, profitability and capital
operation capability to timely monitor changes in corporate financial risks.

During the year, the Risk Management Department has conducted internal audit
and examination on rectification of audit opinions for its subsidiaries:

o Conducted special audit on overseas investment and operation. In
order to improve the decision-making level and risk control level of the
corporate overseas investment to ensure the safety of the Company’s
assets and maintain and increase their values, the Company organized
and conducted special audit on the overseas investment and operation of
its subsidiaries. The Company conducted comprehensive inspection on
the overall situation and investment returns of the 47 overseas-invested
enterprises directly or indirectly held by it, as well as the key business
operations such as investment project establishment, decision-making,
operation and supervision of key overseas enterprises and key projects,
completed the audit tasks on time, and formed the “Special Audit Report on
the Overseas Investment and Operation of the Company”. The audit results
showed that the overseas enterprises of the Company had outstanding
overall economic benefits, excellent assets, reasonable resource allocation,
and sustainable development potential; it also had reasonable management
and control model, improved and regulated system establishment and
implementation, and basically effective risk control.
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Conducted an evaluation of 2020 internal control and risk
management systems of the Company. In accordance with the CG Code
and the five-factor criteria for improving internal controls set out in the
“Internal Controls and Risk Management-A Basic Framework” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Risk Management
Department conducted a careful review and evaluation of the annual
internal control and risk management system of Shenzhen Investment
Limited, completed the “Evaluation Report of Shenzhen Investment Limited
for Internal Control and Risk Management System for the Year 2020” on
time as required and submitted it to the Audit Committee and the Board for
review and approval. After comprehensive evaluation of the five components
of the internal control system, the existing internal control and risk
management system of the Company was found to be sound and effective.

Conducted post-evaluation of 2021 investment projects of the
Company. The Risk Management Department organized and completed
the post-evaluation of 2021 investment projects of the Company by means
of a full-coverage grading evaluation. Taking into account the factors such
as self-evaluation of projects directly managed by each enterprise and
the impact of such projects, eight real estate development projects with
sales as the main focus were selected for review and evaluation and post-
evaluation working team was sent to carry out site investigation, personnel
interviews, information inspection and other works. The team mainly studied
the discrepancies between the actual state and the feasibility study report
of the projects and the reasons thereof, analyzed the present situation
and benefits of the project operations, disclosed the problems and risks
associated with the projects, and formed 8 post-evaluation reports.

Conducted economic responsibility audit during the term of office.
During the year, an economic responsibility audit during the term of office
on the legal representatives of three subsidiaries were carried out and
audit reports on economic responsibility during the term of office were
issued with suggestions for improvement on operation and management
issues. The audit works focused on the business results, financial revenue
and expenditure, asset quality and related operating activities, major
operational decisions during the term of office, so as to objectively evaluate
the performance of the leaders during their term of office, and check the
implementation of the rectification of the problems identified in the audit.
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e  Conducted annual internal control audit. The Company engaged KPMG
to conduct an annual audit of its internal control in 2020, with a focus on 5
subsidiaries of the Company. KPMG issued the “2020 Internal Control Audit
Report” with its unqualified opinion. As shown in the report, the Company
has maintained effective internal control related to financial reporting in
accordance with “Basic Norms for Enterprise Internal Control” and the
relevant requirements in all material aspects during the reporting period.

During the year, the Audit Committee and the Risk Management Department
reviewed the risk management and internal control system of the Company for
the year 2021, covering financial, operational and compliance controls, as well as
the progress of overall risk management and internal control. The annual review
has also taken into account the adequacy of the resources, qualification and
experience of staff in accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions
of the Company; and the adequacy of the training courses received by the staff
and related budgets.

The Audit Committee and the Board have also reviewed the “Evaluation Report
for Internal Control and Risk Management System for the Year 2021 issued by
the risk management department. The Board is of the view that the existing risk
management and internal control system is effective and sufficient as a whole.

Procedures For Handling Inside Information and Internal
Control Measures

The Company requires any department or individual to keep any information
which may constitute inside information in strict confidentiality and not to leak
or report the contents involving inside information without the prior approval of
the Board. The Board makes timely disclosure decision on the inside information
(if necessary), and disclosure of the inside information is in charge by the
Board Office. In this connection, executive management and other relevant
employees who are privy to unpublished inside information are reminded of their
responsibilities to comply with the provisions of the Model Code.

Whistleblowing

The Board has adopted a whistleblowing policy which provides employees of the
Group and those who deal with the Group with reporting channels and guidance
to raise concerns about possible improprieties related to the Company, a copy
of which is available on the Company’s website. In 2021, the Board had not
received any whistleblowing enquiry or complaint.

Company Secretary

The Company has appointed a representative from an external secretarial
services provider as the company secretary of the Company, who has confirmed
his compliance with the relevant training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules. Our primary corporate contact person is Ms. Edith Wong, our
General Counsel.
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Constitutional Documents
There were no changes in the constitutional documents of the Company during
the year.

Director’'s Responsibilities on Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements of the Group that give a true and fair view of the Group’s affairs, its
results and cash flows in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and in compliance with the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

The responsibility statement issued by the auditors of the Company is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report in this report.

Dividend Policy

It is the Company's long term policy to provide stable ordinary dividends that are
linked to the underlying earnings performances of the business of the Group.
The Company aims to ensure that whilst allowing the shareholders to participate
in the Company’s earnings, adequate balance for future business expansion is
retained.

Generally, the Company pays dividends twice a year (annual interim dividend and
final dividend) regularly. The overall dividend plan including the amount and form
of any dividend is to be proposed/determined by the Board. The Board may also
declare/propose the payment of special dividends when there is special income
or circumstances and at any time as it deems appropriate.

In determining/recommending any dividend payout, the Board shall take into
account:

the actual and expected financial performance of Group;

° the cash-flow position, the expected working capital requirements and
future expansion plans of the Group;

e the general economic conditions, business cycle and other internal and
external factors that may have an impact on the business or financial

performance and position of the Group;

e the contractual restrictions imposed on the payment of dividends (if any);
and

o any other factors that the Board considers appropriate.
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Independent Auditor

KPMG was engaged as the Company’s external auditor since 2016. As the period
that the Company has continuously engaged KPMG as its external auditor has
reached the prescribed number of years according to the relevant regulations
issued by the Shenzhen Municipal People’s Government State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission regarding the audit work on financial
statements of state-owned enterprises in Shenzhen, the PRC, KPMG retired at the
close of the annual general meeting of the Company held on 1 June 2021 (“2021
AGM") and did not seek re-appointment. PricewaterhouseCoopers was engaged
in place of KPMG as the Company’s external auditor with effect from the close of
the 2021 AGM.

During the year, the services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers and the fees
for such services were as follows:

Audit fees:
Financial statements audit fees: HK$4,818,000 (2020: HK$4,750,000)

Other service fees:
Interim review: HK$1,325,000 (2020: HK$1,300,000)

Communication With Shareholders

The Board has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy setting out the
framework that the Company has put in place to promote effective communication
with shareholders, with the aim of ensuring shareholders are provided with timely
information about the Company and encouraging them to engage actively in
communication with the Company and to exercise their rights as shareholders in
an informed manner.

The Company endeavours to disclose all material information about the Group
to public in a timely manner. The Company maintains a corporate website
(www.shenzheninvestment.com) where important information about the
Group’s activities and corporate matters such as annual and interim reports to
shareholders, announcements, business development and operations, corporate
governance practices and other information are available for public’s access. The
Company’s annual general meeting provides a useful platform for face-to-face
communication between the Board and shareholders. Separate resolutions are
proposed on each issue at the general meetings.
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Investors Relations

The Company recognizes its responsibility to update its business activities to
persons with legitimate interests and respond to their questions. We meet
with investors on a regular basis to update them on our business progress and
strategy. In addition, we endeavor to share both financial and non-financial
information that is relevant and material, for instance, we publish unaudited
contracted sales performance voluntarily on a monthly basis, and respond
promptly to enquiries arising from general public and individual shareholders.
And, in all cases, great care is taken to ensure that no inside information is
disclosed to selected parties.

Shareholders’ Rights

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, including but not limited to the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “CQ"), the
Listing Rules, and the articles of association of the Company as amended from
time to time, shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) may call general
meeting, put forward proposals at annual general meetings (‘AGM”) and direct
enquiries to the Board in accordance with the following procedures:

—  Convening of General Meeting on Request

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than
one-twentieth of the paid up capital of the Company may request the directors to
convene an extraordinary general meeting pursuant to Sections 566 to 568 of the
CO0.

In accordance with Section 566 of the CO, the directors are required to
call a general meeting if the Company has received requests to do so from
Shareholders representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the
Shareholders having a right to vote at general meeting. Such requests must state
the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting; and may
include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be
moved at the meeting. Such requests may be sent to the Company and attention
to the Company Secretary in hard copy form (by depositing at the registered
office of the Company at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, No. 9 Science
Museum Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board)
or in electronic form (by fax: 852-2723-2263); and must be authenticated by
the person or persons making it. In accordance with Section 567 of the CO, the
directors must call a meeting within 21 days after the date on which they become
subject to the requirement under Section 566 of the CO and such meeting must
be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice convening
the meeting.
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- Putting Forward Proposals at AGM
To put forward a resolution at AGM, Shareholders are requested to follow the
requirements and procedures set out in Sections 615 and 616 of the CO.

Section 615 of the CO provides that the Company must give notice of a resolution
if it has received requests to do so from (a) the Shareholders representing at
least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders who have a right to
vote on the resolution at the AGM of the Company to which the requests relate;
or (b) at least 50 Shareholders who have the rights to vote on the resolution at
the AGM to which the requests relate.

Such requests (a) may be sent to the Company and attention to the Company
Secretary in hard copy form (by depositing at the registered office of the
Company at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, No. 9 Science Museum Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board) or in electronic
form (by fax: 852-2723-2263); (b) must identify the resolution of which notice is
to be given; (c) must be authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (d)
must be received by the Company not later than (i) 6 weeks before the AGM to
which the requests relate; or (ii) if later, the time at which notice is given of that
meeting. Section 616 of the CO provides that the Company that is required under
Section 615 of the CO to give notice of a resolution must send a copy of it at
the Company’s own expense to each Shareholder entitled to receive notice of the
AGM (a) in the same manner as the notice of the meeting; and (b) at the same
time as, or as soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the meeting.

The detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a
director can be found on the website of the Company headed “Investor Relations”
under the “Corporate Information” section.
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Procedures for directing enquiries to the Company

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries to the Board in writing through the Board
Office at the below contact details:

Address:  8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre,
No.9 Science Museum Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Email: ir@shumyip.com.hk
Tel: (852) 2723 8113
Fax: (852) 2723 2263

Share registration related matters

For share registration related matters, such as share transfer and registration,
change of name or address, loss of share certificates or dividend warrants, the
Shareholders can contact the Share Registrar, Tricor Standard Limited, at the
below contact details:

Address:  Level 54 Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
Tel: (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2861 1465
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Shenzhen Investment Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Shenzhen Investment Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages 114 to
248, which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021;

e the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
o Valuation of investment properties

o Valuation of the equity investment in Hengda Real Estate Group Company
Limited (“Hengda Investment”)

e Assessment of net realisable value of properties under development and
completed properties held for sale
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A a3 H ()

Key Audit Matter
BEETEE

Valuation of investment properties

REMEMSE

Refer to Note 2.8 investment properties, Note 4(b) fair value of
investment properties and Note 15 investment properties to the
consolidated financial statements.
FLHRAMBRERMNT28REME « M4 RENEZAR
BERHMFEISRENE -

As at 31 December 2021, the Group held investment properties
amounted to HK$37,328 million, which accounted for
approximately 23% of the Group's total assets. A decrease in fair
value of investment properties of HK$406 million was recognised
as in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then
ended, which accounted for 19% of the Group’s losses.
R2021F12A318 - BESEREREMEI7 28EE BT -
fh BEEEBEEMN23% -  REMELLERPI06EEETE
REERFENGEBERER - & EXEEEMI9% -

The Group’s investment properties are measured at fair value.
Management engaged an independent external valuer to assist
them in measuring the fair value of investment properties.
The determination of the fair value for investment properties
involved critical accounting judgements in selection of valuation
methodology and critical accounting estimates on certain key
assumptions including prevailing market rents, capitalisation rates
and vacancy rates.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRMEERRETSENGE

We have performed the following audit procedures to address this
key audit matter:
REEZBAREFEE - ZMBTT TIERER

(i)  Understood, evaluated and validated the management’s
internal controls over the process to determine the fair
value of investment properties and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors
including complexity and subjectivity;

) TH IAkBREERERNECREMEALGENRRETE
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(i) Evaluated the outcome of prior period assessments of the
valuation of investment properties to assess the effectiveness
of management’s estimation process;

(i) FHEHREVELENNRTGER - UTHERE S
EHMBRM

(i) Assessed the competence, capability and objectivity of the
gxternal valuer and understood the scope of their work;

(i) FPHEINBEEMNER « e HRFEY - Y THREIES
:

(iv) Involved our internal valuation specialists in examining the
valuation reports prepared by the external valuer, including
assessing the valuation methodology used by the external
valuer based on our knowledge and experience for similar
types of properties;
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

PSR HHE (A1)

Key Audit Matter
BRENEE

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)
REWMEME (R)

We focused on auditing the valuation of investment properties
because the total balance of investment properties is significant
to the consolidated financial statements and the valuation of the
investment properties is subject to a high degree of estimation
uncertainty, as the inherent risk in relation to the valuation
is considered relatively higher due to the subjectivity of key
assumptions used in the valuation and significant judgements
involved in selecting the valuation methodology.

M IHRBNERBEETEN - ERARENFNBHRBELR
EUBREMEEREXN - EANMEEMABEREENEEE R
BEMES LB REALY - AEEREHEERRIEAEY
F5  HRAWEEERESRE G AR -

The valuation of investment properties is, therefore, considered as
a key audit matter.

Rt - REDREERREBREASZER -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPRERRSTEENGE

(v)  Checked the key assumptions used in the valuations, on a
sample basis, to supporting evidence including:

V) BERSEEPERNERRR - UIEEE - 6

° compared the prevailing market rents, capitalisation
rates and vacancy rates used in the valuations against
the published industry benchmarks and comparable
market transactions;

o BEEPERNRT m%ﬁi B ERZEERER
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° checked the key terms of rental contracts, operating
expenditures details and rental income schedules, to
agree with the rental rates from existing tenancies used
in the valuations;

o REMESNNTERY  EEXHHFBERES KA
2 NEAEREANRABANESERRE -

° compared the key assumptions used in the valuation
against historical records and evaluated their
reasonableness based on our industry knowledge;

o  HBEETERNBRERERELDEETLR - URE
BMNTEABTEESEMY

(vi)  Assessed the adequacy of disclosures related to the valuation
of investment properties in the context of the applicable
financial reporting framework.
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Based on the above, we considered that management's
judgements and assumptions applied in the valuation of investment
properties were supportable by the available evidence obtained and
procedures performed.
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Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

Valuation of Hengda Investment
BEAREME

Refer to Note 2.12 financial assets, Note 4(c) fair value of Hengda
Investment, Note 3.3 fair value estimation and Note 20 financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss to the consolidated
financial statements.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group held Hengda Investment
amounted to HK$461 million. The investment was accounted for as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and measured
at fair value, with the decrease in fair value of HK$6,375 million
being recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for
the year then ended.
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Hengda Investment is classified as level 3 financial instruments in
the fair values hierarchy, using Market Approach Guideline Public
Company Method. Management engaged an external valuer in the
valuation of Hengda Investment, which involved critical judgement
and estimates on certain key assumptions including Price-to-book
ratio of market comparable company and discount due to lack of
marketability.
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We focused on auditing the valuation of Hengda Investment
because the decrease in fair value of Hengda Investment is
significant to the consolidated financial statements and the
valuation of the Hengda Investment is subject to a high degree
of estimation uncertainty, as the inherent risk in relation to the
valuation is considered relatively higher due to the subjectivity of
key assumptions used in the valuation and significant judgements
involved in selecting the valuation methodology.
AMBIHEARERENET - RAREARENRABERLH
GEMBREMSEREN - BMRNEEMABRERRNFEILR
RERMGERER S REXHE - BEERBNEERRHEAE
HER  WEAREMEFESERTHEEML -

The valuation of Hengda Investment is, therefore, considered as a
key audit matter.

At - EAREMERREEREASEER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EAPRERRSTEENSE

We have performed the following audit procedures to address this
key audit matter: B )
AREZBREFEE - ZMRTT TIERER

()  Obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
controls over the process to determine the fair values of
Hengda Investment and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors including
complexity and subjectivity;

() THREEERETEAREAABEMARREBONIEE
Bl WERERMEFTIREMNEERAMESRRREE
(BEEREMEEN) 8K TRTEERERFANEER

,‘%.
A

(i) Assessed the competence, capability and objectivity of the
gxternal valuer and understood the scope of their work;
(iy FHEINBRAEGERHNERE - LN REFBMRTRETESE :

(i) Inspected the agreements entered into among the Group,
Hengda Real Estate Group Company Limited and its
controlling parties to understand the relevant investment
terms and identify any conditions that were relevant to the
valuation of Hengda Investment;

(i) =B EEE - BEAMEREARDEREERA AR
%ﬁMT%H%&ﬁﬁ%&%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm%mﬁﬂ
IR )
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

PSR HHE (A1)

Key Audit Matter
HRETEE

Valuation of Hengda Investment (Continued)
BARREME (&)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMEERRETSEANG E

(v)  With the assistance of our internal valuation specialists, we:

(iv) ERMNABEEZREBE T - K

° Understood and evaluated the basis of selection of
valuation methodology adopted by the external valuer;
o TERFEINPEEMAARNEEGERANEE

Challenged the key assumptions used in the valuation;
ERMERANBRRR

Checked the Price-to-book ratio to the market data;
REMREEMIZEELE ;

° Checked the discount due to lack of marketability
against published industry benchmarks and comparable
market transactions;

o  HBAMMITEERRAELRMERS @ HEHNR
ZiERBIENITE

(v)  Assessed the adequacy of disclosures related to the valuation
of Hengda Investment in the context of the applicable
financial reporting framework.

(v) %@%M%ﬁ%ﬁ%?ﬁ%ﬁ@t&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@%&%%ﬁ

§j o

Based on the above, we considered that management’s
judgements and assumptions applied in the valuation of Hengda
Investment were supportable by the available evidence obtained
and procedures performed.

LT - BPRATEERERNREMETERMAE KBRS
AT FESNAABBNMRITNEF XS
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A a3 H (B0)

Key Audit Matter
HRETEE

Assessment of net realisable value of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale

BRETNERBEREZCRRNE 2 TREFEFME

Refer to Note 2.15 properties under development, Note 2.16
completed properties held for sale, Note 4(a) estimates for net
realisable value of properties under development and completed
properties held for sale, Note 22 properties under development
and Note 23 completed properties held for sale to the consolidated
financial statements.

FLRGREMBERRMT2ABETYE - WH216HBEFEL
ERKIE -~ M4 BERTYERFEFE D EKMENT
§ﬁ$@ﬁ3~W%n%@#%%&%%%%ﬁﬁﬁzaﬁﬁm

As at 31 December 2021, the Group held properties under
development (“PUD") and completed properties held for sale
(“PHS") of amounting to HK$51,177 million and HK$18,235 million
respectively, which in total accounted for approximately 43% of the
Group’s total assets. The carrying amounts of PUD and PHS are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value (‘NRV").
R2021F12A310 - EXESRIHARERYMZE ([PUD]) &
RERFEBERME ([PHS]1)51,177BEEHBTK18,235B 8
B AHE BEBREEL43% o PUD KPHSHIBREE AR A
EREIRFE ([NRV]) HBIEETIR o

Management assessed the NRV based on existing selling and
construction plans, and a forecast of future selling price based on
prevailing market conditions, with reference to the current market
price of properties of comparable type, size and location. The
determination of NRV involved critical accounting estimates on
the selling price, selling expenses estimated based on a certain
percentage of estimated selling price and, for PUD, the costs to
completion.

EREANRAITARERAHE RERTENRRREERA -
WRERR - RERNERENDENE R TEENRY © NRVAY
EESRHERE EREFEENETED LM HERAR -
PARFPUDME @ B ANEZ 5T

We focused on auditing the assessment of NRV of PUD and PHS
because the total balances of PUD and PHS are significant and
the estimation of the NRV is subject to a high degree of estimation
uncertainty. The assessment of NRV of PUD and PHS is, therefore,
considered as a key audit matter.

BB EREPUD RPHSHINRVET(E + ZF APUD RPHSH 4 #4
BEA - ENRVREEFESEMNMGFTHRENR - At - PUDR
PHSHINRVAHE AR (ERISE Tt B8 o

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMEERRETSEANG E

We have performed the following audit procedures to address this
key audit matter:
REBZHAREFEE - &M T TIERER

()  Obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
controls over the process to determine the assessment of
NRV and assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and
level of other inherent risk factors including complexity and
subjectivity;

() THEEBENEENRVAILBES EHNAIPES - WiEd
ZRMATIREMNEERAMESRRAEZ (BEEMT
MEBM) fKFRAEERERRANERRRE

(i) Compared the relevant PUD and PHS balances, on a sample
basis, against the result of management’s NRV assessment
made in the prior year to reconsider, with hindsight, the
accuracy of management’s historical NRV assessment
and reliability and appropriateness of the NRV assessment
methodology;

(i) RMEEERGIARPUD RPHSHAZEE F FE B EEITHINRY
AHEERETHER - NERENEREEEMERLNRVET
i B SEHE M DA RNRVRFE 7 AR AT SE M ROE & 1

(iiiy  Understood, evaluated and validated the management’s
internal controls over the process around the property
development cycle with particular focus on controls over cost
budgeting;

(i) TH - SEKREEREUMERAZBREHARENNIE
#l - CEREHKABENZES
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

PSR HHE (A1)

Key Audit Matter
BEEEE

Assessment of net realisable value of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale
(Continued)

BEPNERBESEZCERNEZ TR FETME ()

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMEERRETSENSE

Tested management'’s key estimates, on a sample basis, for:

A A EE RO BSR -

selling price which was estimated based on the
prevailing market conditions, we compared the
estimated selling price to recent transactions by making
reference to the Group's selling price of pre-sold units
or the prevailing market price of comparable properties
with comparable type, size and location;

HRERTTRMHNER - HM2E BEEEREE
UMEERER - RERUERENA LY ENRITH
B BAtEEERINRHETLR

selling expenses which were estimated based on
a certain percentage of estimated selling price, we
compared the above estimated percentage with
the approved budget and the actual average selling
expenses to revenue ratio of the Group in recent years;
REETEBN —EAD WA MEERAMS @ &
M# BB SR E%lﬁ&imﬁ&ﬁ RE
B SHE A S AR L TR

estimated costs to completion for PUD, we reconciled
the estimated costs to completion to the approved
budget and examined the construction contracts or
compared the anticipated completion costs to the
actual costs of similar types of completed properties of
the Group.

FLPUDMEET ST BN 5+ B P95 i 5T ST B B 7R B it
EEEETHER  URERES Hﬁhﬁﬁnmﬁ$
B ERERUBERMEENNERRAETLER

Based on the above, we considered that management’s judgements
and assumptions applied in the assessment of NRV of PUD and
PHS were supportable by the available evidence obtained and
procedures performed.

AR EIER - MR AEEEREPUD & PHSHINRYEFTFE F

HO 1 B AN

RRBE T ESN A AR R RARNITHIRFHOHE
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Audit Committee for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

e  FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

BRI 28 it A 6 B 35 AR 0 A AT

ZANBEE - —RYE WﬁﬁiELEmTTEE
RARERMETNERERBARG S ERE
HABERMEANZHMERE - AALRR %%
CRRIEDI) FA05RNBTE - BRAEEKEREHMA
MBS o BRIMSh - BMMBETARIERMRRE -
ﬁ1ﬁ$%$ﬁimWA'ﬂEﬂﬁmAiE§I%
BERAL - ARRBERSKTHORE - BTRRE
BRCBBRER) ETNRGT - E%—iﬁﬁﬁ
RAFEREEER o HRBRA AU AREFRE R
£ MRAEBHACHEFAEALRATELT ERE
MHBREERERBIBRRAMELNEERE - 8
BRMERRA A RRIEEX -

ERBECERET L) ETBAOBRED - RAE
RTEEHNE - R’ TEXRERE - BN

o BAIMFEERRFAHERMEB R MBRE
FREEASERRANAR - Rt RROTENE
FARHELRR  UARERZRMEEOR
ABRE - ERAMERMER o MR EEFATEE
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ﬁ%iﬁﬁ&@k%ﬂﬂm?* ERBRERM
BYNERERBANEE

o  THERTHBOAMEH - ARFEENE
AR - BERMILIEY EKIW%TMWE
MEHERER -

o HEEEMRASHBENKEERELEHE
AIRRARENA RN -

. gé%%%#fﬂ%éﬁﬁwm\ EMELE
o RIBFMEMMENRE  BERAFE
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements (continued)

e  FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Mr. Lam Sung Wan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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AR AR AR

Year ended 31 December
BE12ANBIEEE

2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAT
Revenue & 6 32,050,306 18,803,011
Cost of sales SHEA 8 (19,624,560) (9,988,431)
Gross profit EF 12,425,746 8,814,580
Other income and other gains Hg A R E A F15 7 239,025 1,922,564
Decrease in fair value of financial assets BERSRAAEHEZSREE
at fair value through profit or loss NTRIEN RS 20 (6,374,271) (469,433)
Losses result from changes in fair value of and RENELREZYRERERE
transfer to investment properties MEEEZFE 15 (405,651) (677,128)
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HERA 8 (399,135) (319,443)
Administrative expenses ABFAX 8 (1,552,156) (1,032,961)
Other expenses Hif% 8 (229,372) (571,539)
Impairment losses on goodwill EEREESE 17 (365,457) =
Net impairment losses on financial assets SREENEBETE (44,596) (6,240)
Operating profit RERF 3,294,133 7,660,400
Finance income A 10 247,787 210,956
Finance costs IR % 10 (737,388) (992,038)
Financial costs — net B TSP A SRR 10 (489,601) (781,082)
Share of results of joint ventures and associates ~ FEMHAE A A ML N AELRR 18,19 843,446 1,254,285
Profit before income tax BR T8 B AT A 3,647,978 8,133,603
Income tax expenses FrEBiAx 11 (5,748,231) (4,170,113
(Loss)/profit for the year £r (BR) /B (2,100,253) 3,963,490
(Loss)/profit attributable to: THIREL (BE) /%F -
— Owners of the Company — AREERRE (2,721,886) 3,722,856
— Non-controlling interests — IR 621,633 240,634
(2,100,253) 3,963,490
(Loss)/earning per share for profit attributable 4<% F R R R EIE R R 2
to the owners of the Company (HK cents) BR (BB) /B (Bl)
Basic R 12 (30.58) 42.03
Diluted e 12 (30.58) 42.03

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss should be read in conjunction

with the accompanying notes.

Lt e BaER RN T — 5 -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
fF A A WA R

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31BILEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TR FAL
(Loss)/profit for the year R (B8) /B5A (2,100,253) 3,963,490
Other comprehensive income Hitt2mE s
Items that may be reclassified to profit or l0ss: AREER P ER Bm s B -
— Share of other comprehensive income of — BIEAEARREE AT
joint ventures and associates HEip2mElE 250,319 415,545
— Exchange differences on translation of foreign operation — JAZ N ER 2 EH =5 2,765,352 3,700,390
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAZHKRZAE 915,418 8,079,425
Total comprehensive income attributable to: THEEZEKRALE
— Owners of the Company — AREEERR 149,167 7,572,287
— Non-controlling interests — FEER R 766,251 507,138
915,418 8,079,425
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in  Eiltéx on 7 B P T —BFBOFE o

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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f B B B IR L A&

As at 31 December

K12 8318
2021 2020
2021 & 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr THT
ASSETS &
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BER® 14 6,347,209 6,282,473
Investment properties REME 15 37,327,911 35,650,870
Investments in joint ventures REBDRRZERE 18 8,887,001 8,060,608
Investments in associates REE AR ZKE 19 6,201,291 5,836,961
Intangible assets BREE 17 518,112 440,589
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ~ BBEREARLENEZSREE 20 489,639 6,763,935
Financial assets at fair value through FREMPERSRALETEZ
other comprehensive income TREE 21 4,256 3,989
Trade and other receivables EC e ER 25 466,525 838,324
Deferred income tax assets EIEFREREE 31 2,953,554 2,632,401
63,195,498 66,510,150
Current assets REEE
Properties under development BRPYE 22 51,176,858 40,746,833
Completed properties held for sale RERFEZEERME 23 18,235,085 17,562,192
Inventories e 24 262,948 176,558
Trade and other receivables EC V&N L6 25 7,114,269 8,564,732
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ~ BBERRAREFEr 2 REE 20 1,807 1,982
Biological assets EMBE 3,799 2,939
Restricted bank deposits XBRHRITER 26 2,858,351 2,543,969
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY 26 19,917,256 16,166,471
99,570,373 85,765,676
Total assets BEEAE 162,765,871 152,275,826
EQUITY B
Share capital AR 27 22,071,756 22,071,756
Capital reserve VN 27 59,019 59,019
Other reserves Hfth 28 8,913,918 6,074,395
Retained earnings REBBF 18,130,233 22,419,115
49,174,926 50,624,285
Non-controlling interests FERER 5,194,954 4,781,563
Total equity BB 54,369,880 55,405,848
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A BB RN E

As at 31 December

W12B31H
2021 2020
20215 20204F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B et THT FEL
LIABILITIES &%
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank and other borrowings BITRAEMEE 30 26,138,203 18,088,589
Lease liabilities HEEE 16 254,873 340,587
Deferred income WA 22,148 29,114
Due to the immediate holding company R ERZER AR 34 - 698,963
Due to the ultimate holding company JE 5 S AR iR A B 3R0R 34 3,057,750 1,208,557
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMEHEaRE 31 9,421,630 9,491,481
38,894,604 29,857,291
Current liabilities RBEE
Bank and other borrowings BITRAEMEE 30 11,959,031 12,739,824
Contract liabilities EHEE 32 13,892,262 19,718,224
Trade and other payables B S NEMEMNT 33 17,100,876 14,829,595
Lease liabilities HEARE 16 140,842 115,046
Due to the immediate holding company e B ERR A BIFUA 34 2,477,415 1,071,781
Due to the ultimate holding company JE R BAIE R A R FUR 34 11,121,061 8,206,911
Tax payable e E 35 12,809,900 10,331,306
69,501,387 67,012,687
Total liabilities aEaE 108,395,991 96,869,978
Total equity and liabilities EnABEkaEas 162,765,871 152,275,826

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in  bilthra BHFEA 0 & FE BRI 55 — GBI -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 114 to 248 were approved by the Board of ~ F114ZE248 BRI EHmEAN2022F3A30BKLESE
Directors on 30 March 2022 and were signed on its behalf. SR TRERE o

Dr. LU Hua Ms. SHI Xiaomei
BERL SEMLL
Director Director

EX EX
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
OREREER

Attributable to the owners of the Company

KAARERRENG
Non-
Share Capital Other Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserves earnings Total interests equity
BA  EXRfE  EtRE  RERA aE  FERERz  BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TEL TEL THR THER T T
Balance at 1 January 2021 R2021 181 288 22,071,756 59,019 6,074,395 22,419,115 50,624,285 4,781,563 55,405,848
Comprehensive income 2EbE
(Loss)/profit for the year En(BR) /&7 - - - (2,721,886) (2,721,886) 621,633 (2,100,253)
Other comprehensive income:  E 2
Exchange differences on RERINER 2
translation of foreign ERES
operations - - 2,620,734 - 2,620,734 144,618 2,765,352
Share of other comprehensive  [E(EAE R TR
income of joint ventures BENAEM
and associates 2EME - - 250,319 - 250,319 - 250,319
Total comprehensive income ~ ER2ERFAE
for the year - - 2,871,063 (2,721,886) 149,167 766,251 915,418
Transactions with owners ARRRREZRS
Capital injections from IR ER
non-controlling interests B = = = = - 617,544 617,544
Dividends declared for ARRER
shareholders b)) - - - (1,601,981) (1,601,981) - (1,601,981)
Dividends provided for RFEEERR
non-controlling shareholders BEZRS - - - - - (970,404)  (970,404)
Disposals of a subsidiary HE—RHBAR - - (34,985) 34,985 - - -
Equity-settled share option RAZ 2
expense ERER - - 3,455 - 3,455 - 3,455
Total transactions with owners ~ EERRRZ X FH 8% = = (31,530) (1,566,996) (1,598,526)  (352,860) (1,951,386)
Balance at 31 December 2021 20215128318 2 &8 22,071,756 59,019 8,913,918 18,130,233 49,174,926 5,194,954 54,369,880
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
o R

Attributable to the owners of the Company
AR SE

Non-
Share Capital QOther Retained controlling

capital reserve reserves garnings CIENY
BA  BEAGE HbRE RERA aE  HERER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT TR BT TR BT TR

Balance at 1 January 2020 R2020F1 A1B 2458 21,910,268 59,019 1,870,605 20,634,764 44,474,656 3,897,639 48,372,295

Comprehensive income 2EMbE
Profit for the year EREH = — - 3,722,856 3,722,856 240,634 3,963,490
Other comprehensive income: Eemba
Exchange differences on BEGNER L

translation of foreign ERER

operations - - 3,433,886 - 3,433,886 266,504 3,700,390
Share of other comprehensive EEEEDAR

income of joint ventures YN E )

and associates 2EME - - 415545 - 415545 - 415545
Total comprehensive income  ER2ERFAE

for the year - - 3,849,431 3722856 7,572,287 507,138 8,079,425
Transactions with owners HRERRRZRS
Dividends declared for ARRER

shareholders KB 161,488 - - (1,594,671) (1,433,183) 593,353 (839,830)
Dividends declared to non- RFEERRR

controlling shareholders EkZRE - - - - - (216,567)  (216,567)
Equity-settled share option DBAS T2

expense BRER - - 10,525 - 10,525 - 10,525

Transfer from retained profits SRERDER - 343,834 (343,834) = = =

Total transactions with owners BEGRRE/RFLE 161,488

354359 (1,938,505 (1,422,658) 376,786 (1,045,872

Balance at 31 December 2020 2020612831 A 248 22,071,756 59,019 6,074,395 22,419,115 50,624,285 4,781,563 55,405,848

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in  FHFAREZEFHRELMNT—HEE -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Year ended 31 December
BE12ANBIEEE

2021

20215
HK$'000
FTHT

2020
20204
HK$'000
FHT

Cash flows from operating activities

REZPELZBERE

Cash used in operations ReExBmAcZ RS 36(a) (2,365,517) (115,861)
Interest paid BERFHE (1,189,490) (1,366,784)
Income tax paid ERAER (3,770,263) (2,498,090)
Net cash used in operating activities REZHAARLSFE (7,325,270) (3,980,735)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHEEZHERE
Interest received B8 663,269 350,124
Dividends received from financial assets BREBEREAAENEZ

fair value through profit or loss TREERE 2,036 1,626,639
Dividends received from associates B E A BIRE 157,171 223,094
Dividends received from joint ventures BlaENARE 24,396 1,104,180
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEMRE

plant and equipment FT{S A 61 10,033
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BAME  BEISE (353,334) (299,506)
Capital injection to joint ventures ARERANTE (58,500) (553,701)
Proceeds from disposal of an associate HE ML N RMEI0E 1,153 48,242
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired  WE—ENBAT - HKLFERS - (568,043)
Payment for loans to joint ventures YRGB TFEERAIZER (1,172,570) =
Repayment of loans to joint ventures BTEEDRIZEFER 277,012 422,367
Repayment of loans to associates BRIBENRIZERER 2,167 1,125
Payment for loans to a non-controlling SR EFIFERER Y

shareholders R - (1,942,212)
Repayment of loans to a non-controlling WY —BHEERBRZ

shareholders BFET 951,476 =
Net cash generated from investing activites = REFBHEEZREFE 494,337 422,342
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HEBEREE

Year ended 31 December
BE12ANBILEE

Cash flows from financing activities

Capital element of lease rentals paid
Dividends paid to the Company’s shareholders
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders
Proceeds from loans from non-controlling

2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHAL

METHEEZRERE 36(b)
BENEERE 2 EAHH (155,656) (122,667)
TRARRRRZRE (1,601,981) (1,433,183
SUERE T bl (970,404) (421,648)

I Hxﬂx%%%xﬁﬁ%ﬁ

shareholders 524,389 -
Repayment of loans from non-controlling BEFERBREER

shareholders (56,908) (501,804)
Received investment from non-controlling BUGEIERRRIRE

shareholders 617,544 -
Proceeds from loans from related parties W B TS R0A 30,225,656 13,162,665
Repayment of loans from related parties EE@EH T ER (25,986,224) (6,937,524)
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings BITRAEMEEREHA 20,150,202 15,786,414
Repayment of bank and other borrowings EERTLEMEE (13,221,747)  (10,061,410)
Net cash generated from financing activites @ BEEFBDEL2HLFE 9,524,871 9,470,843
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BEeRBSEEYEMEE 2,693,938 5,912,450
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year £ 2B E&REEZEY 16,166,471 9,653,239
Exchange differences on cash BERBRESEYZ

and cash equivalents ERER 1,056,847 600,782
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FERZEERBREEEY 19,917,256 16,166,471

The above consolidated cash flows statement should be read in conjunction with ~— Fili4RA IR &% 8 & FE RN 3T — (93 -

the accompanying notes.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 &#5455) - HrE £ BB THIR)

General information

Shenzhen Investment Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of the Company's registered
office is located at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, 9 Science Museum
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are described in Note
5. The principal activities of the Group’s joint ventures and associates are
described in Notes 18 and 19.

In the opinions of the directors, the immediate holding company of the
Company is Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited (“Shum Yip Holdings”, /% %
(£8) BR2 7)), which is a private company incorporated in Hong Kong.
The ultimate holding company of the Company is ZZ£EE AR A7 (‘Shum
Yip Group”), which is a state-owned company established in Shenzhen, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The consolidated financial information is presented in Hong Kong dollar
(“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000)
except when otherwise indicated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by
the Board of Directors on 30 March 2022.

Summary of significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in
the preparation of these consolidated financial statements. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the year presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
(a)  Going concern basis

Due to the volatility of the property market in the PRC and the
unfavourable impact on the presale performance during the
year and subsequent to the year end date, the directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to the future liquidity
and performance of the Group and its available sources of
financing in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to continue as a going concern for at least
of 12 months from 31 December 2021.

— &R

FINERERDA ([ARF]) B—HERES
HMRIzBEREEANT - KATZEMEE
BUREBNENEREIORFTRETEDLS
B RAARREMBLR (KBAIAEE])
ZEBEBERIES AR - AEEBEQFR
BENANTEEEBEHNMFTI18 K19

EZRR  FRAZEEEBRRAARER
AMAELZTARE —RE (RB) ERAF
(MRF (RE) |) - ARAZEERERRER
R EARKME ([FE]) RYKIZBEER
Al - REEEARAR ([REEE]) -

ARRBRHRELY X ZABR AR LM °

BRARBEAEI  SAMBERDUET (178
1) 23 MASBRABERRATM (T8
) ©

LERANBBRRETR2022F3A300EES
SHETIE -

T E A BOR B
AHERIRAAF R P BERRERAZIE
S HR - BRABETIH REZBEREERE
FRZJINABEE °

2.1 AR

(a) FFEEERE
ARTPENENSEBARFARSE
HABRBERRNTFTZE - AR
AEEETHAREE2021F12 A31
Az 12 AREEARTBEE
RUERBERLEE  DREZEK
SERNRRAHES REBARER
BRREER -
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

@

(b)

(c)

(@)

Going concern basis (continued)

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group's
cash flow projections, which covers a period twelve months
from 31 December 2021. The directors of the Company are
of the opinion that, taking into account the anticipated cash
flows generated from the Group’s operations as well as the
possible changes in its operating performance, the Group’s
existing and future plan of land acquisitions; and the continued
availability of the Group’s bank and other borrowings as well as
the Group's ability to raise new financing under the prevailing
rules and regulations, the Group will have sufficient working
capital to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due within the coming twelve months from 31 December 2021.
Accordingly, these consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern.

Compliance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS’) and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with applicable HKFRS and
requirements under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap.
622.

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a historical cost basis, except for financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (‘FVTPL"), financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCI”), and investment
properties, which are carried at fair value.

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following amendments for the first
time for their annual reporting period commencing 1 January
2021:

° Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 —
amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16.

The Group did not have to change its accounting policies or
make retrospective adjustments as a result of adopting these
standards.

2 EEEGBCREE (8)

() FEEEEE

(b)

(c)

(@)

ARBEZEER T AEENES
REER - BE2021F12A31H
B12BAHE - ARAIEZRAE -
REEAEBEBELNEDRRER
ERHEBERENTREDY - 1%
EBEARAKNLKETE - K
SEUHEESRITREMEENR
AEERERITHRARBOEEHR
BRI AEEBEERERYE
B - M2021F12A31BEKRXE
12@ARBATESSUBET - B
I ZERAVBERRDIRFEL
EEERS o

BFEENBREER ([ BEHE
HEER ) REER D
ARESFAMHRRCRBEREE
PHREERREEDAIEDF622
ENRTERH

ELH2ED

GEMBBRRCRELRAEER
8 HERBERRAAERE ([E
BREREAAERE]) 22BE
E - ZREtE2ERRRARER
B ([EoEt2RREERAER
B ZeRBERRENZEERA
(ERCIES

L EERAZ FAT RASIEETER
REER2021F1 A1 BEHBZFE
W EAR B R A T BT

o FIEEEREFE -F_MEER -
BRRBMERAEIN - B
BEERIFE395% - BEMK
RERRETH - BERBH
EEANF4RRBERHRE
EHIFE165R 27T

HREMZEED - AREHAR
BFHEHBRAFHENAE -
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FEG BB (8D

2.1 B (B])

AR FTER R 2

BB ZETHA REETER
REAIRBEARAFEREH AL

N

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(e)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (e)
Certain new and revised standards, amendments to existing
standards have been published that are not effective in current

year and have not been early adopted by the Group.

W REETFARTARA o

Effective for the
annual periods

beginning on or after

RT3 B8
ZERIR 2
FEABEX

Amendment to HKFRS 16

BEMBREENE165 2B
Amendment to HKFRS 3
BERBREEEIR BT
Amendments to HKAS 16
BRETRAE165 2 1E3]
Amendments to HKAS 37
BBETRAEITHR BT
Annual improvement project
FENHIER

Accounting Guideline 5 (Revised)
23HE315 (B3 TA)

HK Interpretation 5

BERBELN

HKFRS 17
BRMBREEAETH

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

BRI ERE 1R L BAMY

RERABHRER2R BT

Amendments to HKAS 1
BRGTREAE 1R 2B
Amendments to HKAS 8
BB GRS 2 BT
Amendments to HKAS 12

BRGTERE12R 2185
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

ELHBBEEAE0R
EBRRAIZ88 0 1T

Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond
31 December 2021

2021512 A31 B2 HCovid-19BMH S ESR
Reference to the conceptual framework

U ER R

Proceeds before intended use

fERE ARG SR

Cost of fulfilling a contract

BHETER

Annual improvements 2018-2020 Cycle

2018 FZE 2020 F B v FE

Merger accounting for common control combinations
REEHE SR EE

Presentation of financial statements-classification by the borrower
of a term loan that contains a repayment on demand clause

EM‘%@;@Z%@J —ERAHBRERBERREERXZBHERL
JIRA

Insurance contracts
RERAD
Classification for liabilities as current or non-current

BREIBARDIIRD

Disclosure of Accounting Polices
S HRNEE

Definition of Accounting Estimates
S NTER

Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single
transaction

E-RHELCBRERABHBETHEA

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture

REEREMENRARAERRZANEENERTE

1 April 2021

2021F4A1H
1 January 2022
2022F1A1H
1 January 2022
2022F1A1H
1 January 2022
202251 A1A
1 January 2022
2022F1A1H
1 January 2022
2022F1A1H
1 January 2022

202251 A1H

1 January 2023
2023F1A1H
1 January 2023

20231 A1H

1 January 2023
2023F1A1H
1 January 2023
2023F1A1H
1 January 2023

2023F1A1H
To be determined

N

sHi
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(e)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (continueaq)

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
impact of these new or revised standards and amendments,
certain of which are relevant to the Group’s operations.
According to the preliminary assessment made by the Group, no
significant impact on the financial performance and position of
the Group is expected when they become effective.

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

@

(b)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity where
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
business combinations by the group (refer to Note 2.3).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries
are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes
in equity and statement of financial position respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the
case where the group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised
at cost.

2 EEEGBCREE (8)
2.1 MR (8)

(&)

IR BRI R 2 ()

$%l5ﬁﬁ&ﬁMT%ﬂi%%J
EARETORFE  BTHATNE
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B - REAKEHELONLSFE -

ARSI B BT LR RETR
ERRTEHARENGHERR RN
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2.2 A bl at

@

(b)

K& 2 a]

B QR AR EEREA EHEN A
BER (BRARILER) - E4K
BAEIBEEE2ERERELY
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NATE AR HRE - A5 B
ZEE - MEA Tﬁiﬂ%ﬁ%

AEEYRR2EAH - HEA
ERSIEILL Y AERRAH o

AKEFERKBEHEEERAME
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REIZAZR S - REARAHERS
ZEGRARBR S T ASE - R
BHEBERTTUHE  BRIERS

FEBREACEREEHNRARE -
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(continued)

()

@

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures. The classification depends on the contractual rights
and obligations of each investor, rather than the legal structure
of the joint arrangement.. The Group has assessed the nature
of its joint arrangements and determined them to be joint
ventures. Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method, after initially being recognised at cost in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from
associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in
the carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including
any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not
recognize further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of equity-accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

2

FEE BRI ()
2.2 AR erat R (80
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(continued)

(&)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in
an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve within
equity attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for
an investment because of a loss of control, joint control or
significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

2 EEEGBCREE (8)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FEEFBURME (&)
2.3 Business combinations 2.3 EEAH

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all
business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments
or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business

° equity interests issued by the group

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Concentration test as prescribed by IFRS 3 “Business Combination”
has been applied by the Group to consider whether the set of
activities and assets of subsidiaries acquired are individually
businesses. If the fair value of total net assets acquired substantially
equals to the fair value of an identifiable asset acquired, the
transaction would be accounted for as asset acquisition instead of
business acquisition. The consideration is then directly allocated to
the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

The group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Business combinations (continued)

The excess of the:
° consideration transferred,

° amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity,
and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the
acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the
net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred,
the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present
value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the
entity's incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar
borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under
comparable terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is
classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified
as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date
carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains
or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

Changes in ownership interests in Subsidiaries without change of
control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions-that is,
as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

FEE BRI (8)
2.3 EBAH ()

INZERE

o MEZAE-

e RUBEBNCAFZREZS
BqR

o REWBEELAMNTMBRAEER
Wi B R RFE

BB AT BRI B E R BN DA EE
EZBABEIEK - W LR BERAK
BEBRBANEEFENLAE  AHE
HeERRAEBBEERNARER -

fEMHHRERNENGHEET - B
ENSEMRERSIRAREHANERE -
FERMMRETEBMNEEREER - ]
FEA L ETAEET - AIABLREA
REGRUBENNE - IRKEREAR
B eBAE  FERATBAENTSE
HRENEEZELAE  RABEEINA

XL Tk
HHER ©

fis XA G0 BEBUETT - AUMET KRR
ARAMEE T MR AR R KR B R AR
ERMERHEHNZRAENE - RAH
B EMEENEMREXEREIRE
SRR o

LT LGB L AR D E
L
TEFRREH R FEFERERHA
BIIERRR S — NAEE ANEERE
BASHETHRS - ENERKERAA
EEMEERBARFEEREECER
AR o HEFERESRARER
TRat A s



1 30 Shenzhen Investment Limited &3 A BRA =) » Annual Report 4 3§ 2021

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

g A

WA

S 25 i A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 &#5455) - HrE £ BB THIR)

2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3

2.4

Business combinations (continued)

Disposals of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in
the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when control
is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. It means the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRS.

Investments in subsidiaries of the Company

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the investments in
subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the investee's net assets
including goodwill.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost also includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the investee's net assets
including goodwill.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5

2.6

Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.

The Group’s most senior executive management assesses the
financial performance and position of the Group and makes strategic
decisions of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.
They have been identified as being the chief operating decision
maker, consists of the chief executive officer, the chief financial
officer and the manager for corporate planning.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Foreign currency translation

@  Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group'’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the
functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollar (HK$), which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency.

Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

)

()

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised
in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate to
qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges or are attributable to part of the net investment in a
foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are
presented in the statement of profit or loss, within finance costs.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
the statement of profit or loss on a net basis within other gains/
(losses).

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on
assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation differences
on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences
on non-monetary assets such as equities classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

e assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

()

(@

Group companies (continued)

° income and expenses for each statement of profit
or loss and statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions), and

° all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and
of borrowings and other financial instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment are repaid, the
associated exchange differences are reclassified to profit or
loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
venture that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a
foreign operation), all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the
Group losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership
interest in associates or joint ventures that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or joint control), the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation and any impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the

financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over

their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Ownership interest in over the

leasehold land lease terms
Buildings 30-50 year
Building improvements 5 year
Plant and machinery 4-10 year
Transportation equipment 5-10 year
Furniture, fitting and equipment 3-10 year

Furniture, fittings and equipment include assets received in the form
of free store fit outs are recognised at their fair value. These assets
and other leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of
their useful life or the lease term, unless the entity expects to use the

assets beyond the lease term.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.11).

Construction in progress represents the direct costs of construction
incurred of property, plant and equipment less any impairment losses.
No provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress
until such time the relevant assets are completed and put into use.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount and are recognised within ‘other income and
other gains -net’ in the consolidated income statement.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally freehold office buildings, are held for
long-term rental yields and are not occupied by the Group. Investment
property is initially measured at cost, including related transaction
costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequently, they are
carried at fair value.

Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If the information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets.
Changes in fair values are presented in profit or loss as part of other
income.

If an item of owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting
between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at
the date of transfer is treated in the same way as a revaluation
under HKAS 16. Any resulting increase in the carrying amount
of the property is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it
reverses a previous impairment loss, with any remaining increase
recognised in other comprehensive income and increase directly to
equity in revaluation surplus within equity. Any resulting decrease
in the carrying amount of the property is initially charged in other
comprehensive income against any previously recognised revaluation
surplus, with any remaining decrease charged to profit or loss. For a
transfer from completed properties held for sale or properties under
development to investment properties that will be carried at fair value,
any difference between the fair value of the property at that date and
its previous carrying amount shall be recognised in profit or loss.

The Group shall transfer a property from investment property to
property under development when it commences related development
with a view to sale. For a transfer from investment property that is
carried at fair value to property under development, related property
under development shall be recognised at fair value at the transfer
date.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.9 Intangible assets

@

)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs"), or Groups of CGUs, that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
Group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the
lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the
operating segment level.

Goodwill is not amortized but its impairment reviews are
undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The carrying
value of the CGU containing the goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and the
fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Concession right

The Group adopts the construction and operation transfer
method to participate in the operation of an infrastructure
facility. The project company obtains the management right of
the facility from the national administrative department (contract
awarding party) and participates in the construction and
operation of the facility. After the expiration of the management
rights, the project company shall hand over the relevant project
to the state administrative department.

If the contract stipulates that the project company has the right
to collect fees from the service objects during a certain period
of operation after the completion of the relevant infrastructure
facility, but the amount of fees is uncertain, such right does
not constitute an unconditional right to receive cash, and the
project company recognizes intangible assets when the relevant
construction costs are incurred. These costs are amortised over
the concession period of 40 years on a straight-line basis.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.9 Intangible assets (continued)

(c)  Computer Software
Acquired computer software programmes are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over the estimated
useful lives of 5 to 10 year on a straight-line basis. Costs
associated with maintaining computer software programmes are
recognised as an expense as incurred.

(@)  Research and development expenses
Research and development expenditures that do not meet the
capitalised criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not
recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

2.10 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.

The Group leases various properties. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. These property lease agreements do not impose any
covenants, but leased properties may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising that option.

FEE BRI (8)
29 EEEE ()

© EEE
e v BB F R ER AR
FPREEHHAHERMTEEZN
AFUBERE - ZERARESE0
FHEEFAIEAFHNRAES LS
o BERSREMETEENK
AREERERAEMY -

(@ HEAZ
TRBARENTERINESE
BRER AR o SRR BRI
REXARE KRBT HERREE -

2.10 HE

HERAKERERHEEEEE AR R
EREEERAEAR -

AREHEZENE  YEREETH
o BREIBBAR G o
NEEEHE T BINERNRE - BHE
ETGREERERY -

T
w5

HEEANEERBBINRERAENE -
HERGEERATHENRFHRE -

o BEENFK(BREZEEMN) ME
AEKEEESE

o EREBSAAFHEZARAEN
% - RARREE A ERL I
s e

o AEEBHELIMNOFGEEERS
B

. %T%Zﬁﬁﬁﬁ(ﬁ$ﬁﬁé@ﬁ
BRI EERE)

o  MNKRIEEMER (HMAHRBKRA
SETEENRILED) -



1 38 Shenzhen Investment Limited &3 A BRA =) » Annual Report 4 3§ 2021

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A7 A B R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 &#5455) - HrE £ BB THIR)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FEEFBURME (&)
2.10 Leases (continued) 2.10 % (4)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual
lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar
terms and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by
the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing was
received;

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest
rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which
does not have recent third party financing; and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,
currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data) which has
a similar payment profile to the lease, then the Group entities use that
rate as a starting point to determine the incremental borrowing rate.
Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liabilities;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received;

° any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.10 Leases (continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-
of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor
is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term (Note 7). Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset
and recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis
as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in the
balance sheet based on their nature.

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are Grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each of each
reporting period.

2.12 Financial assets

@)  Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income (“OCI"), or through
profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity’s business model for

managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.12 Financial assets (continued)

@

)

()

Classification (continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in debt
instruments, this will depend on the business model in which
the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments,
this will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at FVTPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.12 Financial assets (continued)

()

Measurement (continueq)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the statement of profit
or loss.

o FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for
the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss and recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains/
(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.12 Financial assets (continued)

(©

Measurement (continueq)

Debt instruments (continued)

° FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVTPL
is recognised in profit or loss and presented net within
other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present
fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there
is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses
to profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in
profit or loss as other income when the Group's right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVTPL are
recognised in ‘other income and other gains -net’ in profit
or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at financial
assets at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes
in fair value.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FEGFHBURME ()
2.13 Impairment of financial assets 2.13 4Rl A

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses
(‘ECL") on financial assets which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9 (including trade and other receivables, loans to joint
ventures and associates and cash and more than that).

The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. Lifetime ECL represents
the ECL that will result from all possible default events over the
expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. To
measure ECL, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The ECL on these
assets are assessed using simplified expected credit loss model.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognizes lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

2.14 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the consolidated statement of financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.15 Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by reference
to the sale proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable selling expenses and the anticipated costs
to completion, or by management estimates based on prevailing
marketing conditions.

Development cost of property comprises cost of land use rights,
construction costs, depreciation of machinery and equipment,
borrowing costs capitalised for qualifying assets and professional fees
incurred during the development period. On completion, the properties
are transferred to completed properties held for sale.

Properties under development are classified as current assets when
the construction of the relevant properties commences unless the
construction period of the relevant property development project is
expected to complete beyond normal operating cycle. The normal
operating cycle is usually around 3 years.

Costs to fulfill a contract comprise the development cost and land
use right cost directly related to an existing contract that will be used
to satisfy performance obligations in the future. The costs to fulfill
a contract are recorded in properties under development if they are
expected to be recovered. The amount is amortised on a systematic
basis, consistent with the pattern of revenue recognition of the
contract to which the asset relates.

2.16 Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties remaining unsold at year end are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost comprises development costs attributable to the unsold
properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the sale proceeds
of properties sold in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
selling expenses, or by management estimates based on prevailing
marketing conditions.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FEGFHBURME ()
2.17 Inventories 217 HE

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.18 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from buyers for properties sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of
trade and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment.

2.19 Contract assets and contract liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a buyer, the Group obtains rights
to receive consideration from the buyer and assumes performance
obligations to transfer goods or provide services to the buyer. The
combination of those rights and performance obligations gives rise to
a net asset or a net liability depending on the relationship between
the remaining rights and the performance obligations. The contract
is an asset and recognised as contract assets if the measure of the
remaining rights exceeds the measure of the remaining performance
obligations. Conversely, the contract is a liability and recognised
as contract liabilities if the measure of the remaining performance
obligations exceeds the measure of the remaining rights.

The Group recognises the incremental costs of obtaining a contract
with a buyer as contract acquisition cost within contract assets if the
Group expects to recover those costs.

2.20 Cash and bank balances

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with
financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

FERRAR A BT FENREEFIR o
KARBMETIDEETE - IEHFET
REBEBBRT 2 EERHEENT
HOFETRA

2.18 ¥ 5 BRI REBGK

FBUREFRTIRASESBRTHEENE
YET%WWE%EHZ* o fHEHR
HihERFBHN — EYELMWW(Y
FE%%% SERS ('R ) KE - 8l
ERNPBARHEE - B8 - EERDE
ER5IH o

EW% K E M YRR IR D A B RE
B RRAERERHRA LB HEKA -
RERERETE

NE R AR

HERRIAOK - AEEERESK
BEXXMANER - B REAES
ENIRGEBLLERNBORS - B
MMBTEENESEH T FEENT
BEMEL - EEORRFISMEFNMETE
BZEMER - SO EORRKE
BATRHRBORBOBNEIREGNE
E - R2 - NBBOZRBEENGFURE
MEHNRRRENERE -

@ﬁ?/ﬂﬂsm}}i‘rﬂb

AREREGEEZRRINANMELR
BERAR AR@E - BHAERRA
WEETHRNIEAA

2.20 H & RBITH R

HEVRERERME F RekERRE
BEBRTFRAES FRRSREEMNE
BEY - HtEHanaRE (RAHH
BNEBB=EA - LrAHEERAE A
BORE  HARFEREEZIARMN
R) RBITEX - REEBERT - 817
BXINARBEENERA o



1 46 Shenzhen Investment Limited &3 A BRA =) » Annual Report 4 3§ 2021

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A7 A B R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 &#5455) - HrE £ BB THIR)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FEEFBURME (&)
2.21 Share capital 2.21 A

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Where any Group company purchases the Company’s equity share
capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from
equity attributable to the owners of Company until the shares are
cancelled or reissued. Where such shares are subsequently reissued,
any consideration received, net of any directly attributable incremental
transaction costs and the related income tax effect is included in
equity attributable to the owners of Company.

2.22 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the
costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income
and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

2.23 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FEGFHBURME ()
2.24 Borrowings 2.24 f5 &

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity
issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part of the
liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss, which is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity
instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting period.

2.25 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

EENRRAREMRAEENZHKA

R o EEERRBHNAGE - WMk
KRR B ERERREEEHR
8 ARNMEERRNAERMNEEERR
RTHER

EANTHRECEERE - BURRER
B EEREERERTHIR - CHEX
BETRHeRARCEAEREX
RE (BRENEBRZ RS EESR
izl CRCER - ERRETR
R o

HEMBTE AEBARERNGT - MERE
MERABITIRATAEIR A IHH
BE (EXaEREHR)  BIHEEEEBR
BanER  TRZERAENREESR
BINERTANRABZERHE -

GEAEEEREREREBEBELE
REPREV12(A7 - BRBEERRDE
RRBEIE -

P

2.25 B R

ERRERUE  ERSLEREREE
(BRBRERNTAERERERHE
MEE) O—REBEERKAS IMAZ
FEENKAT EEEEAB EHZEA
EREREIHERL -

EREEFBIFAEREENHAMER
RIEREMRBORERAGEERE
AREVERACA R AR o

FEAEERANEELHRAERSHE

=
o ©



1 48 Shenzhen Investment Limited 342 B R A7)

e Annual Report % 2021

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

JEYN

WA

S 25 i A B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 &#5455) - HrE £ BB THIR)

2

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.26 Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on
the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

@

)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the company and
its subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and considers whether it
is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either based
on the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on
which method provides a better prediction of the resolution of
the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment property that
is measured at fair value is determined assuming the property
will be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.26 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

)

(c)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in foreign operations where the company
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Investment allowances and similar tax incentives

Companies within the Group may be entitled to claim special tax
deductions for investments in qualifying assets or in relation to
qualifying expenditure (e.g. the Research and Development Tax
Incentive regime in Oneland or other investment allowances).
The Group accounts for such allowances as tax credits, which
means that the allowance reduces income tax payable and
current tax expense. A deferred tax asset is recognised for
unclaimed tax credits that are carried forward as deferred tax
assets.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.27 Employee benefits

@

)

()

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary
benefits and accumulating sick leave that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service are recognised
in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as
current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for long service leave and annual leave that are
not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end
of the period in which the employees render the related service.
These obligations are therefore measured as the present
value of expected future payments to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting
period using the projected unit credit method. Consideration
is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience
of employee departures and periods of service. Expected
future payments are discounted using market yields at the end
of the reporting period of high-quality corporate bonds with
terms and currencies that match, as closely as possible, the
estimated future cash outflows. Remeasurements as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the
balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right
to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting
period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to
occur.

Post-employment obligations

The Group operates various post-employment schemes,
including defined contribution pension plans and post-
employment medical plans.

There were no forfeited contributions (by employers on behalf of
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in such
contributions) to offset existing contributions under the defined
contribution schemes.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.27 Employee benefits (continued)

(@)

(e)

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and
profit-sharing based on a formula that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the company’s shareholders after
certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date, or
when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange
for these benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when
the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the
scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment of terminations
benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to present value.

2.28 Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the Group receives services from
employees as consideration for equity instruments (including shares
options and awarded shares) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of the equity
instruments is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments granted:

including any market performance conditions (for example, an
entity’s share price);

excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.28 Share-based payments (continued)

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the
period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the
non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of equity instruments that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide services
in advance of the grant date and therefore the grant date fair value
is estimated for the purposes of recognising the expense during the
period between service commencement period and grant date.

The grant by the Company of equity instruments over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiaries in the Group is treated
as a capital contribution. The fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised over
the vesting period as an increase to investments in subsidiaries, with
a corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity accounts.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of equity instruments that are expected to vest based on
the non-marketing performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the share options are exercised, the Company issues new
shares. The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital.

2.29 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FEGFHBURME ()
2.29 Provisions (continued) 2.29 s (8)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.30 Revenue recognition

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from the
sale of goods, the provision of services or the use by others of the
Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary course of the Group's
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service is
transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the right to use the
asset, at the amount of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component which provides
a significant financing benefit to the customer for more than 12
months, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected
in a separate financing transaction with the customer, and interest
income is accrued separately under the effective interest method.
Where the contract contains a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under
that contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method.

The Group takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for any effects
of a significant financing component if the period of financing is 12
months or less.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.30 Revenue recognition (continued)

@

)

()

Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised upon the point in
time when the customers has the ability to direct the use of the
property and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of
the property. Deposits and instalments received on properties
sold prior to the date of revenue recognition are included in the
statement of financial position under contract liabilities.

When residential properties are marketed by the Group while
the property is still under construction, the Group may offer
a discount compared to the listed sales price, provided the
customer agrees to pay the balance of the consideration
early. In such cases, if the advance payments are regarded as
providing a significant financing benefit to the Group, interest
expense arising from the adjustment of time value of money will
be accrued by the Group during the period between the payment
date and when control of completed property is transferred
to the customer. This accrual increases the balance of the
contract liability during the period of construction, and therefore
increases the amount of revenue recognised when control of the
completed property is transferred to the customer. The interest
is expensed as accrued unless it is eligible to be capitalised
under HKAS 23.

Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes possession of
and accepts the products. If the products are a partial fulfilment
of a contract covering other goods and/or services, then the
amount of revenue recognised is an appropriate proportion of
the total transaction price under the contract, allocated between
all the goods and services promised under the contract on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis.

Construction income

A contract with a customer is classified by the Group as a
construction contract when the contract relates to work on real
estate assets under the control of the customer and therefore
the Group’s construction activities create or enhance an asset
under the customer’s control.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be reasonably
measured, revenue from the contract is recognised progressively
over time using the cost-to-cost method, i. e. based on the
proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the estimated
total costs.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.30 Revenue recognition (continued)
(c)  Construction income (continued)
The likelihood of the Group earning contractual bonuses for
early completion or suffering contractual penalties for late
completion are taken into account in making these estimates,
such that revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.

When the outcome of the contract cannot be reasonably
measured, revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract
costs incurred that are expected to be recovered.

(d)  Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

(e)  Property management service income

The Group provides property management services and bills the
property owners a fixed lump sum amount for services provided
on a monthly basis. Under this arrangement, the Group acts as
a principal and is primary responsible for providing the property
management services to the property owners. The Group
recognises the fee received or receivable from property owners
as its revenue when the Group has a right to invoice and that
corresponds directly with the value of performance completed,
and all related property management costs as its cost of
services.

2.31 Interest income
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial
assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.32 Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

2.33 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors of the Company, where appropriate.

2.34 Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised in respect of the
financial guarantee provided by the Group to the banks for property
purchasers.

Financial guarantee liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the
financial guarantee liabilities. After initial recognition, such liabilities
are measured at the higher of the present value of the best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation and the
amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation of fees
recognised.

Financial guarantee liabilities are derecognised from the balance
sheet when, and only when, the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged or cancelled or expired.

2.35 Comparative figures
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with
the current year’s presentation. There is no impact on net profit, net
assets or net cash flows as a result of the reclassification.

Financial risk management

The Group’s major operations are mainly located in the PRC and is
subject to special considerations and significant risks. These include
risks associated with, among others, the political, economic and legal
environment, influence of national authorities over pricing regulation and
competition in the industry.
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Financial risk management (continued)

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (mainly including currency risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance. The property industry is highly sensitive to the
economic environment in the PRC, which will affect the volumes of
property transactions and selling prices. The Group mainly relies on sales
of properties and debt financing to fund its operations. The Group has
alternative plans to monitor liquidity risk should there be significant adverse
changes on the Group’s cash flow projections.

3.1 Financial risk factors
@  Market risk

The Group’s market risk arises mainly from interest rate risk
of long-term bank and other borrowings. Bank and other
borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk which is partially offset by cash held at
variable rates. Bank and other borrowings obtained at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The
Group closely monitors trend of interest rate and its impact on
the Group’s interest rate risk exposure. The Group currently has
no interest rate swap arrangements but will consider hedging
interest rate risk should the need arise.

() Currency risk
Most of the operating income of the Group’s business is in
RMB and the Group'’s assets held and all of the committed
borrowings of the Group are mainly denominated in RMB,
except for certain US$-denominated bank loans held by
the Company.

The Group currently does not have a policy on foreign
currency risk as it had minimal transactions denominated
in foreign currencies during the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 and the impact of foreign currency risk on
the Group’s operation is minimal. The US$-denominated
bank loans are currently not hedged as the directors
consider the risk of movements in exchange rates
between the United States dollar and the Hong Kong dollar
(the Company’s functional currency) to be insignificant.
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3  Financial risk management (continued) 3 WEmEEE (4)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MEREFEE (5)
(a)  Market risk (continued) @) T5EE (&)
(i)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk iy BRERERAALEFNXRRR

The Group's market risk arises mainly from interest rate
risk of long-term bank and other borrowings. Bank and
other borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk which is partially
offset by cash held at variable rates. Bank and other
borrowings obtained at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk. The Group closely monitors trend
of interest rate and its impact on the Group’s interest
rate risk exposure. The Group currently has not used any
interest rate swap arrangements but will consider hedging
interest rate risk should the need arise.

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate
changes and the contractual re-pricing dates of the
borrowings at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

ARENMEAREIERER
HRTRAMESNNEE
o FBMERRITREME
ESASBEES BN KRERTD
MERARSHEHNRTRE
FMZRER - ERERTREME
BESAREAERABNERE
ko ARETYEENXBS
R E R SR N 2R L e ik ) Y
FE o AREREYENBE
A= RLY - EFERR
SEBENEEB -

BB R A S B B
E£HERREE ANEE
FEAHNT -

2021 2020
2021 % 20204
% of % of
HK$'000 total loans HK$'000 total loans
EE™;
TR BEY
Variable rate horrowings FEEE 23,391,490 62% 25,353,000 82%
Fixed rate borrowings — repricing  EEEE — &%
or maturity dates: EEHIEA
Less than 1 year DR1E 2,091,577 5% 1,533,560 5%
1 -5 years 1—5%F 5,854,377 15% 1,804,282 6%
Over 5 years 5 F 6,759,790 18% 2,137,571 7%
38,097,234 100% 30,828,413 100%
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Financial risk management (continued) 3 WEmEEE (4)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MEREEE (5)
@) Market risk (continued) @ TEEE (&)
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (continued) i) BeREeEMDAEFNEZER

At 31 December 2021, the Group had
HK$23,391,490,000 (2020: HK$25,353,000,000)
variable interest rate borrowings which expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. If the interest rate of
these borrowings had increased/decreased by 0.5% and
all other factors remained unchanged, the profit before
tax for the year of the Group would have decreased/
increased by approximately 2021: HK$116,957,000
(2020: HK$126,765,000). If the fixed rate of these
borrowings had increased/decreased by 0.5% and all
other factors remained unchanged, the profit before
tax for the year of the Group would have decreased/
increased by approximately 2021: HK$73,529,000 (2020:
HK$27,377,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit before tax that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and the impact on the
Group’s profit before tax is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest expense or income of such a change
in interest rates. The analysis is performed on the same
basis as 2020.

(&)
R2021F12H318 » &
SERFSEKERAXR S
REMNERRBRZFEEER
23,391,490,00078 7t (2020
£ : 25,353,000,000/87T) o
WZEEENNMELH /TR
0.5%MmAAE LA ZRET
x C REEAEE BTG
BRd /ME20214F ¢
116,957,0005%73 (20204 :
126,765,0005870) ° fWZ%ZE
ERMETFREN/ B
0.5% * MATEEME XS
& 2021 EAEEER
BRE ARG MR D/ BN
73,529,000/ 70 (20204 :
27,377,000 7T) °

HREDMBTRASBRRE
AR AR EERMAEGES) -
EPREAMNEEHENRE D
REE  MZMNEEHHEAX
SENBRHANEFI N2
BHMERTIMANELE
“o“ﬁ%%%ﬁmmﬁﬁﬁ
M EEETT
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3  Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a)  Market risk (continued)
(iii) ~ Price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
listed and unlisted equity investments held for trading and

non-trading purposes.

The Group's listed equity investments are listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and Shanghai Stock
Exchange. Decisions to buy or sell trading securities
are based on the performance of individual securities
compared to that of the relevant stock market Index and
other industry indicators, as well as the Group’s liquidity
needs. Listed equity investments that are not held for
trading purposes have been chosen based on their longer
term growth potential and are monitored regularly for
performance against expectations.

The Group’s unlisted equity investments are not held
for trading purposes and have been chosen based on
their longer term growth potential. Their performance
is assessed regularly and the decisions to buy or sell is
based on the Group’s long term strategic plans.

2021
20215

Effect on profit
after tax and
Retained profits

HEHE
AR R E
pgllEZ

HK$'000
TiEn

3

S e o B (%)
3.1 WMBEEEZE (8)
@ TEER ()

(i) EEER
AEERBREERIFEERE
Hm#EA MW RIEEMRRE
REMELSNREGRES -

AEEN EHRERERER
RN EBRBERAME

e BARHERERESMR
mﬁ%%ﬂ% alisEapNEL
BREMSEBNLEMITRER
MERARASEH RS E S
MBEE - YHFREBERMMEF
ﬁ%tﬁ%%&ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ
BERANEEN  YEHE
%Ef@ﬁﬁmmﬁAﬁ%O

AEBOE L TREREYLIF
REBENMES - MERE
ERBTHEENMER - KX

EHHE - mMEERE
ENAEEO KRR E/E

s
B

1%
(1%)

Increase 3,686

Decrease

(3,686)

H oo

2020

2020
Effect on other  Effect on profit Effect on other
components after tax and components
of equity  Retained profits of equity
S i ' i
2R  H{iaR
BoHxe Hlg 52
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAL FAL
43 50,745 40
(43) (50,745) (40)

The Group'’s exposure to equity securities price risk arises
from investments held by the Group and classified in
the balance sheet either as at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTPL) (Note 21) or at fair value
through profit or loss (FVOCI) (Note 20).

AEBZREZEHFBRARK
EARERENRE  NEE
BEXANEABBBRRD
K EFEFVTPL) (Hf5E21)
Lﬂﬁ@iﬁ% SRR A B
& (Fvocl) (FzE20) o
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Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risks refer to the risk of losses incurred by the inabilities
of debtors or counterparties to fulfil their contractual obligations
or by the adverse changes in their credit conditions. The
Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its cash and cash
equivalents and restricted bank deposits, trade and other
receivables and financial guarantee contracts.

For trade receivables in respect of property development, the
Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made
to purchasers with an appropriate financial strength and
appropriate percentage of down payments. It also has other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
regularly the recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivables to ensure that adequate loss allowance are made
for irrecoverable amounts.

For other trade receivables not related to property development,
the Group’s customer base is diversified and has no significant
concentrations of credit risk. Trade receivables are due from
30 to 180 days to from the date of billing. The Group has a
policy to closely monitor the settlement status of these trade
receivables and all long outstanding balances are requested to
be settled before any further credit is granted. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

For the financial guarantee contracts provided by the Group to
banks in connection with the customers’ borrowing of mortgage
loans to finance their purchase of properties, the Group
measured the loss allowance on financial guarantee contracts
by reference to the historical default rate of the purchasers,
the loss on default based on the current property value and the
pre- sale deposits already received and the forward- looking
information. Detailed disclosure of such guarantees is made in
Note 37.
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3  Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

)

Credit risk (continued)

The directors of the Company considered that the loss
allowances on financial guarantee contracts at 1 January 2021
and 31 December 2021 were insignificant to the Group. For
properties which have been pre- sold, or for the completed
properties that sold but the building ownership certificate not
yet issued, the Group typically provides guarantees to banks in
connection with the customers’ borrowing of mortgage loans
to finance their purchase of the properties for an amount up to
70% of the total purchase price of the property. If a purchaser
defaults on the payment of its mortgage during the term of
guarantee, the bank holding the mortgage may demand the
Group to repay the outstanding amount of the loan and any
accrued interest thereon. Under such circumstances, the
Group is able to retain the customer’'s deposit and sell the
property to recover any amounts paid by the Group to the bank.
Unless the selling price would drop by more than the buyer’s
deposits received, the Group may not be in a loss position for
financial guarantee contracts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risks of other receivables and deposits paid for
acquisitions are managed through an internal process. The
credit quality of each counterparty is investigated before credit
is granted. The Group also actively monitors the outstanding
amounts owed by each debtor and identifies any credit risks in
a timely manner in order to reduce the risk of a credit related
loss. The Group reviews the recoverable amount of these
receivables at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment assessment

The Group formulates the credit losses of cash and cash
equivalents, restricted bank deposits, trade and other
receivables, and financial guarantees contracts using ECL
models according to HKFRS 9 requirements.

3
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Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

)

Credit risk (continued)

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires lifetime expected
credit losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the
receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics. The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach in measuring expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.

For financial assets whose impairment losses are measured
using three-stages general approach ECL assessment except
for trade receivables, the Group assesses whether their credit
risk has increased significantly since their initial recognition,
and applies a three-stage impairment model to calculate their
impairment allowance and recognise their ECL, as follows:

e  Stage 1: If the credit risk has not increased significantly
since its initial recognition, the financial asset is included
in stage 1.

° Stage 2: If the credit risk has increased significantly since
its initial recognition but is not yet deemed to be credit-
impaired, the financial instrument is included in stage
2. The description of how the Group determines when a
significant increase in credit risk has occurred is disclosed
in the following section of ‘judgement of significant
increase in credit risk”.

° Stage 3: If the financial instruments are credit-impaired,
the financial instruments are included in stage 3. The
definition of credit-impaired financial assets is disclosed in
the following section of “the definition of credit-impaired
assets”.
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3  Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group considers the credit risk characteristics of different
financial instruments when determining if there is significant
increase in credit risk. For financial instruments with or without
significant increase in credit risk, 12-month or lifetime expected
credit losses are provided respectively.

The expected credit loss is the result of discounting the product
of exposure at default, probabilities of default (“PD”) and loss
given default (“LGD"). According to whether the credit risk
has increased significantly or whether the assets have been
impaired, the Group measures the loss allowance with the
expected credit losses of 12-month or the lifetime due to the
credit risk characteristics of different assets.

Judgement of significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”)

Under HKFRS 9, when considering the impairment stages for
financial assets, the Group evaluates the credit risk at initial
recognition and also whether there is any significant increase
in credit risk for each reporting period. The Group considers
various reasonable supporting information to judge if there is
significant increase in credit risk when determining the ECL
staging for financial assets. Major factors being considered
include solvency and operational capabilities. The Group
could base on individual financial instruments or portfolios of
financial instruments with similar credit risk characteristics to
determine ECL staging by comparing the credit risks of the
financial instruments at the reporting date with those at initial
recognition.

The Group set quantitative and qualitative criteria to judge
whether the credit risk has SICR after initial recognition. The
judgement criteria mainly include the PD changes of the
debtors, changes of credit risk categories and other indicators
of SICR, etc.
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Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

)

Credit risk (continued)

The definition of credit-impaired assets

Under HKFRS 9, in order to determine whether credit impairment
occurs, the defined standards adopted by the Group are
consistent with the internal credit risk management objectives
for relevant financial assets, while considering quantitative and
qualitative indicators. When the Group assesses whether the
debtor has credit impairment, the following factors are mainly
considered:

° The debt has overdue for more than 90 days after the
contract payment date.

e  The lender gives the debtor concessions for economic
or contractual reasons due to the debtor’s financial
difficulties, where such concessions are normally reluctant
to be made by the lender.

e The debtor has significant financial difficulties.

° The debtor is likely to go bankrupt or needs other financial
restructuring.

The credit impairment of financial assets may be caused by
the joint effects of multiple events, and may not be caused by
separately identifiable events.

Forward-looking information

The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting
the ability of the debtors to settle the receivables.

The Group comprehensively considers internal and external
data, expert forecasts and statistical analysis to determine the
relationship between economic indicators with PD and LGD. The
Group evaluates and forecasts these economic indicators at
least annually, provides the best estimates for the future, and
regularly evaluates the results.

Similar to other economic forecasts, the estimates of economic
indicators have high inherent uncertainties, actual results may
have significant difference with estimates. The Group considered
the estimates above represented the optimal estimation of
possible outcomes.

Credit risk exposure of financial assets

Without considering the impact of collateral and other credit
enhancement, for on-balance sheet assets, the maximum
exposures are based on net carrying amounts as reported in
the consolidated financial statements. Concentration of credit
risk reflects the sensitivity of the Group’s operating results to a
particular customer, industry or geographic location.
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3  Financial risk management (continued) 3 WEmEEE (4)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 Eﬁ%ﬂﬁ"’l? (%)
(b)  Credit risk (continued) ) EEEE (&)
()  Impairment of deposits and other receivables (i) Be RAMERZERE
The Group's other receivables mainly include amounts AEEEMEKTFEEIZEDRE
due from third parties, related parties and non-controlling BUWE=F - BH RIEER
interests. To measure the expected credit losses of other BRZE - BrrEEtEKR
receivables, other receivables have been grouped based EzBHERER  HtEK
on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past FECREL EZ% 5@%
due. BRaBREETS
For other receivables, management makes periodic BREMERFIENES - B8
collective assessments as well as individual assessment EREFLEELHLBEL
on the recoverability of outstanding balances based on &% - Eﬁﬁiﬁigiﬁﬁﬁ?\ﬂ'ﬂﬂ
historical settlement records and past experience. U (o 14 e 17 S B8 R4 K fE BI AT
fif o
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect FREe REMERKENE
of deposit and other receivables during the year is as BREENEHNT -
follows:
Deposits
and other
receivables
RERHM
FEW R
HK$'000
THEx
Balance at 1 January 2021 M202151 A1 Ba&eR 254,597
Impairment losses for the year FRRBEEE 39,761
Exchange differences PEHERR (2,100)
Balance at 31 December 2021 12021512 A31 BRI &84 292,258
Deposits
and other
receivables
e MEAM
FH&ZW\
HK$'000
TAT
Balance at 1 January 2020 R20205F1 A1 BA & 261,250
Impairment losses for the year FRRBEEE (23,870)
Amounts written off during the year FAMHESE (79)
Exchange differences e ET 17,296

Balance at 31 December 2020 1202012 A31 BR & 254,597
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Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

)

(i

Trade receivables
The Group applies the simplified approach to providing
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for
trade receivables.

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables:

3 WMEEkEE (F)
3.1 MEREEE (5)
b) EEEE (&)

(i

FEURBR R
AEERERBMBEHRE RS
FIORMHATRAMILAT A
AARBAERABAEE  ZE
AR FFREERRARETE
HFRHBREE -

TREFIFEEEENEER
2 Rk KRR RRERBX

R

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
BHEAR REAE PR
% HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THET
Less than one year past due BHOR—F 5% 934,126 47,029
One to two years past due BH—FEEWE 17% 37,987 6,377
Two to three years past due BEWEE=F 36% 18,746 6,655
Over three years past due A=A L 80% 132,940 106,618
1,123,799 166,679

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
REEAE REAE BREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Less than one year past due BRHON—F 5% 513,518 25,676
One to two years past due BH—FEME 12% 315,119 38,129
Two to three years past due BRMEE=F 29% 136,584 40,565
Over three years past due BE=FEN 80% 72,317 58,030

1,037,538 162,400
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(o8]

3  Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b)  Credit risk (continued)
(i) Trade receivables (continued)
Expected loss rates are estimated using a provision
matrix, taking into account the past due status of the
customers. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance based on
past due status is not further distinguished between the
Group’s different customer bases. The expected loss rates
are adjusted periodically to reflect changes in current
economic conditions and the Group’s view of forecast
economic conditions over the expected lives of the trade
receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of
trade receivables during the year is as follows:

B 75 i 5 B ()
3.1 MEREFEE (5)
) EEmEE (&)

(i

FEURBRR (&)
BHBARDEABBERS
i EERIATFPHASM
n o ARARENESR ERE
KEBIRKATIRAE PR
BAEAREREEZER - Fit
ERBARRROBRBEETE
E-—SROAKENTRER
B BOIRRZRETHHAE -
DA S R Rl A AR B 4 DA
RASBHRERERERFH
TR B AR ERES o

FARRBRURFBREER
ZEHMT

2021 2020

20215 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THT

Balance at 1 January W A1 BRI ES 162,400 132,264
Impairment losses recognised during FAERH

the year VRIEECES 4,835 21,965

Amounts written off during the year FAMBENEE = (400)

Exchange differences fE R (556) 8,571

Balance at 31 December W12 A31 BREEH 166,679 162,400
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Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

(i)~ Cash and bank balances
The credit risks on cash and cash equivalents, restricted
bank deposits are limited because the counterparties are
banks/financial institutions with acceptable credit ratings
and have no default records in the past.

Ligquiaity risk

Liquidity risk arises when the Group is unable to meet its
current liabilities that fall due. The Group’s objective is to
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of short and long term bank loans and other
borrowings. Through maintaining a reasonable proportion in
its asset and liability structure, the Group is able to meet its
ongoing financial needs.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of
the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.

3 WEmEEH (5)
3.1 MEREAZ (4)
) (EEER (&)

(i) He RRTER
ARRGEHFHREBIES
EETRARTEERDTHEMN
BT/ SEEE - BEERR
SEEY - XBHRTERD
FERRER -

€ RHEER
EAREREERERIORBAR
BAEERDERR - AREEE
BRERERLRBRTERNAM
BE #SESRHEHEATEN
2P - BRBAEEABERR
RERELR - AREAMEER

BRBHE -

TRETRBEHRTEBNH
BEZHTANIHME - DREA
HWARERRENE (BREAGHM
R EZMEMNF - RWAEZEH
L ARBENRE AR ERAFE
AE) RBERAREER RF A
miFH -
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3

Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(©

Liguidity risk (continuea)

Less than
1 year

—FR
HKS'000
TEn

3

Between 1
and 2 years

-EmE
HK§'000
TEn

B 75 i 5 B ()
3.1 MEERBEZE (8)

© EEEERE (E)

QOver
3 years

Between 2
and 3 years

WEZE
HK$'000
i

BA=F
HK$'000
Fax

Total

RE
HK§'000
TR

Carrying
amount at

31 December
2021

20215
12A31A
A

HKS'000
TER

Interest-hearing bank and

ARRITRAMLER

other borrowings 12,785,121 8,873,962 8,983,129 9,219,646 30,861,858 38,007,234
Lease liabilities feafE 148,573 120,604 155,049 75,900 500,126 395,715
Trade payables BN 4,408,200 - - - 4408200 4,408,200
Other payables EREME 8,745,771 = = - 8745771 8745771
Loans from fellow subsidiaries ~ REFZHEAT
JEF 2,751,651 = - - 2751651 2,683,482
Loans from joint ventures RAREARIZER 127,151 - - - 127,151 124,757
Loans from other related parties ~ REHMEE L ZEH 192,015 - - - 192,015 191,401
Loans from non-controlling REFERELLZ
interests B 634,272 - - - 634,272 612,556
Due to the immediate holding ENERERAF
company R 2,518,679 - - - 2518679 2477415
Due to the ultimate holding R REERAF
company 3B 11,680,224 1,504,780 1,871,733 - 15,056,737 14,178,811
Total % 43991657 10,499,346 11,009,911  9,295546 74,796,460 71,915,342
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3  Financial risk management (continued) 3 WEmEEE (4)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MEREEE (5)
(c)  Liguidity risk (continued) © EEEERE (&)

Carrying
amount at
Less than Between 1 Between 2 31 December
1year and2years and 3 years 2020

H20205

12A31H
—fR  ERF  WEZF EESF ZEEfE

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 ~ HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
TR BT TAL TATL TATL TR

Interest-bearing bank and other 518 &7 REH

horrowings EE 13,578,116 6,358,157 8,537,702 4274326 32,748,301 30,828,413
Lease liabilities HERE 134017 116250 103,121 165160 518557 455633
Trade payables AL 3,863,062 - - - 3863062 3,863,062
Other payables HERFE 7,333,665 - - - 7333665 7,333,665
Loans from fellow subsidiaries ~ RERZMER
ZER 3,206,631 - - - 3206631 3,137,120
Loans from joint ventures REAERFAZEN 123,866 - - - 123866 123435
Loans from other related parties ~ REEtBHH 2 EF 40,000 148,184 = = 188,184 185,961
Loans from non-controlling REFERER ER
interests 186,352 = — = 186,352 186,352
Due to the immediate holding R ERERAGHA
company 1,046,261 28,930 698,963 - 1774154 1,770,744
Due to the ultimate holding EAREERAR
company 8,661,023 1,144,743 = - 9805766 9,415,468
Total % 38,172,993 7,796,264 9,339,786 4,439,495 59,748,538 57,299,853
3.2 Capital management 3.2 HAEH
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the AEEEREAERAERAREREL
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide e - UARRRELDRAEMFIZE
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to BARENS - URBREEREEUR
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. EEEKA -
In order to optimise the capital structure, the Group may adjust the AEBIEAERE  AEBTREHAEER
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, buy back of shares, issue BEZ MRS SE - BERD - 175

new shares or sell assets. BSHEBE -
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3  Financial risk management (continued)
3.2 Capital management (continued)

Consistent with other companies in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as
net debt divided by equity attributable to owners of the Company.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including bank and other
borrowings as shown in the consolidated statement of financial

position) less cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash.

The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

R B B ()

3.2 EAREH ()
AEBUABRRAEEERENR  HEM
REE B - AEXRVREBFEBRUK
DEVERREEEERE o FEBRE
HEE (BRERAMBKRRAM R
DEMEE) BRERERBESEORT
REREFTE -

(o8]

R2021F 2020512 A31 BM B EX N

T
2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Total borrowings (Note 30) fEEEE (F1730) 38,097,234 30,828,413
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 26) W ReERREEEY (MFE26) (19,917,256) (16,166,471)
restricted cash and term deposits XEHEERTHFR
(Note 26) (Ht:E26) (2,858,351) (2,543,969)
Net debt BB FE 15,321,627 12,117,973
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A2 Bl#Eas R E(G RS 49,174,926 50,624,285
Gearing ratio BEX 31% 249%

The directors of the Company consider the Group’s gearing ratio is

within the healthy range.

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried or presented
at fair value, by level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to

measure fair value. The different levels are defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets

or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the assets or liabilities, either directly (that is, as

prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2)

° Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on

observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3)

ARAEERALREZ ABRRRNER
BEA -

3.3 ARfaflE
TRIEFAEANEMBREREZEAE
BHEAMBELAREBIEXZI 28T
Ao TRABHATHOT :

o RZEAESEBEZERMBRE (K
AR (F—H) -

s KRE-RFBRBREI  BEXA
EzABEBALE - JREER (B
mER) kMK (BNREER) (£
&) e

o HAERABRVIEATBERMHHE
ZHBAE (AR HEEGEAE) (B
=) -
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3 e (8)
3.3 Anfafhit (8)

Level 1
E—&

HK$'000
TER

Level 2
et
HK$'000
TER

Level 3 Total
E=R ok
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TET

FVTPL

BRBRRAAERE

— Listed equity investments in Hong Kong ~ — A&z LTIRERE 1,807 = = 1,807
— Listed equity investments in — RPBEAE 2

Mainland China FiRERE 28,530 - - 28,530
— Unlisted equity investments in —RPBEAEy

Mainland China I EikER & - - 461,109 461,109
FvoCl BB EARERAR

B5tHE

— Unlisted equity investments in —RPEREL

Mainland China FETRRERE - - 4,256 4,256
Investment properties REME - - 37,327,911 37,327,911

30,337 - 37,793,276 37,823,613

Level 1
F—R

HK$'000
TET

Level 2
FH
HK$'000
TH7

Level 3 Total
EF=/& e
HK$'000 HK$'000
AL TER

FVTPL

BRBERRAAERE

— Listed equity investments in Hong Kong ~ — R&E#& 7 FTRERE 1,982 - - 1,982
— Listed equity investments in — R BEARE 2

Mainland China iR E 26,935 - - 26,935
— Unlisted equity investments in — RPBEAE 2

Mainland China FLARERE - - 6,737,000 6,737,000
FVOCI BBAMEERBEAL

B E

— Unlisted equity investments in —RPBEAEz

Mainland China FEEMRELE - - 3,989 3,989
Investment properties KEME - - 35,650,870 35,650,870

28,917 — 42,391,859 42,420,776

There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and 3 for recurring fair
value measurements during the year ended 31 December 2021 and

2020.

HZE2021F K%2020F12 A31BILFE

REEDR

EEE

BAEE— ZR=RZMHEYL
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3  Financial risk management (continued) 3 WEmEEE (4)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AnfafhE (8)
(@) Financial instruments in level 3 (@ FE=HzHTA
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments THREJNEHE2021E K 20205E12 A
for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020: S1BIFEZE=HTAEH
2021 2020
2021 %F 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FEL
At 1 January ®1A18 42,391,859 41,033,790
Fair value changes of financial assets CREEAAEE (6,374,889) (462,499)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries U BE B /B A7) - 103,076
Transfer from completed properties held for sale & EHEFED ERME 1,026,510 12,681
Transfer to property under development ERBRRAYE = (180,871)
Transfer from/(to) property, plant and equipment ##5 /(&) 9% -
S 38,179 (6,654)
Recognition of change in fair value upon Eﬁé:ﬁxﬁ%%&
transfer to investment properties BRAREED (120,163) (1,545)
Decrease in fair value of investment properties &£ A 4 B (285,488) (675,583)
Exchange differences iE K EHE 1,117,268 2,569,464
At 31 December Mm12A31H 37,793,276 42,391,859
There is no unrealised gain or loss recognised in profit or loss AEBUENRE RIS EHBENR
in the current year (2020: nil) attributable to balances held at ZREZBRZRERRENER
the end of the reporting period. (2020 : &) -

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the year. FR - HEFETEES o
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3  Financial risk management (continued) 3 WEmEEE (4)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AnffhE (8)
(b)  Information about level 3 fair value measurements ) BEE=RAAEFEZEF

VETE) Significant
techniques unobservable inputs Range
ELE ERTAHERAE &E

Unlisted equity investment in Market Approach Guideline Price-to-book ratio 0.09 (31 December 2020: 1.19)

Hengda Investment Public Company Method

REBAREZE FTRERE  MGERSIARARDE miRE 0.09 (20204 12A31H : 1.19)

Discount for lack of 30% (31 December 2020 : 24%)
marketability

B mZRBTE 30% (2020F12H31H : 24%)

Investment properties— Income capitalisation Vacancy rate 2%-25% (31 December 2020:
commercial properties and method 2%-25%)
others
REME —AENERAM  WABRbE FEX 2%-25% (20205 12A318 :
2%-25%)
Capitalisation rate 3%-7% (31 December 2020:
3%-7% )
B 3%-7% (2020124318 :
3%-7%)

Monthly rental (RMB/ 15-484 (31 December 2020:
square meter/month) 14-475)

AT4 (ARE /FFH  15-484 (20205128318 :

*/R) 14-475)
Investment properties—car Income capitalisation Vacancy rate 3%-60% (31 December 2020:
parking space method 3%-60%)
REYZE — FEM WABREE FEX 3%-60% (20209127318 :
3%-60%)
Capitalisation rate 4% (31 December 2020:
4%)
BAREE 4% (2020124318 :
4%)

Monthly rental (RMB/car 250-850 (31 December 2020:
parking spaces/month)  250-850)

Aflg (ARE/ 250-850 (2020%12 A311 -
BEf,/B) 250-850)
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3  Financial risk management (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

)

Information about level 3 fair value measurements (continued)
The fair value of the unlisted equity instruments in
Hengda Investment amounting to HK$461,109,000 (2020:
HK$6,737,000,000) is determined using market approach
guideline public company method, which uses the price-to-book
ratios of comparable listed company as benchmark and adjusted
discount for lack of marketability, based on the evidence
available as of this report date. The fair value measurement is
positively correlated to the price-to-book ratios and negatively
correlated to the discount for lack of marketability.

As at 31 December 2021, it is estimated that with all other
variables held constant, a decrease/increase in discount for lack
of marketability by 1% would have increased/decreased the
Group’s profit after tax and retained profits by HK$6,587,000
(2020: HK$14,233,000). The Hengda Investment were revalued
at 31 December 2021 based on valuation performed by Jones
Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited (“JLL"),
an independent firm of professionally qualified valuers.

The Group’s finance department performs the valuations
of financial assets required for financial reporting purpose,
including Level 3 fair values. The financial department reports
directly to the executive directors. Discussions of valuation
results are held between the executive directors and the
financial department on a semi-annual basis and upon the
transferral dates, in line with the Group’s annual reporting
dates.

3

B 75 i 5 B ()
3.3 AnfEfhEt (58)

()

BEEZRASBFEZER ()
BAREMELTREIANAA
461,109,000/ 7 (20204 :
6,737,000,000/%7T) HIREEHEAR
BEQHNERERTSE TS
NRIAREET  EFATELR
EhARMmERARER RS T
BRAETE®ETHAE - ARER
SETERRZFAENRERZ TSR
BETE2EEE -

R2021F128318 - MifEEM
BERFTE  BHBRZTERE
HITEGR D /1% - BERR
EEBRHERFNREBEFEM,
46,587,000/ 7T (2020%F
14,233,00087L) - BAEER
202112 A1 BRBEBUEEARE
BYEGEMPSHTEETERE
ABRAR ([THET]) #1721
BT NER -

AREHBRIIARETHHERE
MARHNEREERE  BRF=
BARE - BEBFERRRITE
ZER - RTEZTEMBHPIEA
SEEFEREAY  ELEBEER
RNEE B BRETTREERTW®
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the consolidated financial
statements are evaluated and based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The Group makes estimates and
assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will,
by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that may have a significant effect on the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a)

Estimates for net realisable value of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale

The carrying amounts of properties under development and completed
properties held for sale amounted to HK$53,989 million (2020:
HK$40,746 million) and HK$15,144 million (2020: HK$17,562
million) respectively as at 31 December 2021, which in total
accounted for approximately 43% (2020: 36%) of the Group’s total
assets. The Group assesses the carrying amounts of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale according to their
net realisable values based on the realisability of these properties.
Net realisable value for properties under development is determined
by reference to management’s estimates of the selling price based on
prevailing market conditions, less applicable variable selling expenses
based on certain percentage of estimated selling price and the
anticipated costs to completion. Net realisable value for completed
properties held for sale is determined by reference to management’s
estimates of the selling price based on prevailing market conditions,
less applicable variable selling expenses. Based on management’s
best estimates, there was no material impairment for properties
under development and completed properties held for sale as at 31
December 2021.

ZE SRR R RE] |
FAERESRA W ERREFERNGR RHETD
DBAECRIEMEAR (BEEERBRTHE
AABRRREHMEDR) BKE - AEEH K
REEL AR RERE - BIETER @ BN
RO EAENERERER o TXE®AUE
HTEMHEENEEMBERAEGEATE
R EET AR ©

(a) BRAMERSEAEZCHERDEN
S BLEHA MR
R2021512 8310 » BRETMERFE
BERMENEREED B A53,989
BEET (20204 : 40,746 BB L)
% 15,1445 8% (2020F : 17,5628
EBT) ARGLEAEEREENII%
(2020 : 36%) - AEEREERTY
ERBEFEZET ﬁm@%ﬁ’ﬂ AR E
(ERZEMENTEREN) THERE
B - BEFYENTTE iﬁ@fﬁﬁ*%‘%?
BOMRmERERNER - NRER
E’ﬂ HERY (REBMHFIEEN—TE
DHEHE) RBHATIRAET © HEF
EZEEBMENTERFENLREER
BAMAREREMTHEE - MRER
MAZHERYET - REEEENRE
izt M2021F12A31 B ERYER
BIEGFEZEERMETEENNE -
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4

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

(b)

(c)

Fair value of investment properties

The fair value of each investment property is individually determined
at each reporting date by independent external valuers based on
a market value assessment. Fair values of investment properties
are derived using the income capitalisation method approach. The
valuations are dependent on certain key assumptions that require
significant judgement, including prevailing market rents, capitalisation
rates and vacancy rates.

Significant judgement and assumptions are required in assessing the
fair value of the investment properties. Details of the judgement and
assumptions used in the valuation of the investment properties are
disclosed in Note 15.

Fair value of Hengda Investment
The fair value of Hengda Investment, which is not traded in an active
market, is estimated using valuation technique. The Group uses its

judgement to apply the Market Approach Guideline Public Company

Method for the selection of valuation method and key assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of
each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions used and the
impact of changes to these assumptions are disclosed in Notes 3.3
and 20.

Current and deferred income tax

Significant judgements are required in determining the provision for
income tax. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such difference will
impact the income tax and deferred income tax provision in the period
in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers to be
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of
their actual utilisation may be different.

4

A St At oMU (A1)

(b)

(c)

(d)

BREMEZ AR

EREMENR R EHBILINBREERR
BHEFERSRERHIFIET - BE
NENDABERRGEEMMOESE
HERRRAETEAABMNETEER
& BREATTSES AMMEXRREE

% o

EFERENENAAERAETERH
B R BRR - HRENFETHRERMAN
FIET R BRRFBRIME15HE

R G A R

BARE (RRNERTHEE) WAAE

FRMERETHGT © Kﬁlﬂ%ﬁﬂﬁ

%%ﬁ%&iﬁ AEANERBETER
ﬁ¢%XﬁﬁmﬁmﬁﬁE£&12

F“ FTANEERZRZERRE

Z0FHBERME3.3R20HE -

B BB B
RETMEHBERAELERAE - 1
AREBBRET - FERXHRERKET
B TRE o MRS FENREBH
BRTIARRNZENEE - AIRTER
th A BIRTE < B PR S B B RE AT 15 3
B

fisf & 12 B B S R AR AT BE TR B Tt R R AR A
EMENERIEZRAAEHER - I
RELTRKUEZRNAEREREHENET
FIGHEE - AERERERAER -
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4 (Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

(e)

(f)

Land appreciation taxes

PRC land appreciation tax (‘LAT") is levied at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds of sales of properties less deductible expenditures including
land cost, borrowing costs and all property development expenditures.

The subsidiaries of the Group engaging in property development
business in the PRC are subject to land appreciation taxes, which
have been included in the income tax expenses. However, the
implementation of these taxes varies amongst various PRC cities
and the Group has not finalised its land appreciation tax returns with
various tax authorities for certain projects. Accordingly, judgement
is required in determining the amount of land appreciation and its
related taxes payable. The Group recognises these liabilities based
on management’s best estimates. Where the final tax outcome
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax expenses and provisions of
land appreciation taxes in the period in which such determination is
made.

Determining the lease term

As explained in policy Note 2.10, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments payable over
the lease term. In determining the lease term at the commencement
date for leases that include renewal options exercisable by the
Group, the Group evaluates the likelihood of exercising the renewal
options taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise the option,
including favourable terms, leasehold improvements undertaken and
the importance of that underlying asset to the Group’s operation.
The lease term is reassessed when there is a significant event or
significant change in circumstance that is within the Group’s control.
Any increase or decrease in the lease term would affect the amount
of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised in future year.
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Segment information

The Group manages its businesses by business units, which are organised
based on their products and services. In a manner congistent with the
way in which information is reported internally to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented the following five
reportable segments:

=

) the property development segment engages in the development of
residential and commercial properties;

(b)  the property investment segment invests in commercial properties for
their rental income potential;

(c) the property management segment engages in the management of
both properties developed by the Group and external parties;

(d) the manufacture segment engages in the manufacture and sale of
industrial and commercial products; and

(e) the “others” segment comprises, principally, the hotel operations,
manufacture and sale of aluminum alloy products and agricultural
products, provision of construction services and other businesses.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s senior executive management
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets exclude unallocated assets such as deferred tax assets,
restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets and other
head office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a Group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated liabilities such as interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, an amount due to the ultimate holding
company, tax payable, an amount due to the immediate holding company,
deferred tax liabilities and other head office and corporate liabilities as
these liabilities are managed on a Group basis.

Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before taxation from continuing
operations. The adjusted profit before taxation from is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit before taxation except that other income
and other gains, finance costs, net fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss as well as head office and
corporate expenses are excluded from such measurement.
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5

Segment information (continued)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the purpose of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance for the year ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 is set out below.
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SEER (4

@izomiﬁzozoimﬂ S1HIEFERM
AEBRSITHERABURORERLTED
BRANKAEETZRABERFZIWOT o

Property Property Property
development investment management Manufacturing Others Total
NERE YXRE WHEEE B Hith am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER T T T T T
Revenue from contracts with customers B%F 7 BHARE 4
A

Recognised at a point of time RE—BRESER 26,830,979 - - 456,448 419,231 27,706,658

Recognised over time E-BERRED - - 2,661,887 - 580,279 3,242,166
Revenue from other sources Ei R &

Rental income HekA - 1,521,631 - - - 1,521,631
Total segment revenue PN EE 26,830,979 1,521,631 2,661,887 456,448 999,510 32,470,455
Inter-segment revenue PHERRE (170,751) (24,204)  (184,245) - (40,949)  (420,149)
Revenue from external customers ~ RERMPEFHKE 26,660,228 1,497,427 2,477,642 456,448 958,561 32,050,306
Segment results before decrease in fair REMER A EHOH

value of investment properties INEEE 8,410,429 773,445 467,451 54,573 299,234 10,005,132
Losses result from changes in fair RENENABEDR

value of and transfer to investment ~ ERERENEES

properties BB - (405,651) - - - (405,651)
Segment results after decrease RENELAERD B

in fair value of investment LAERE

properties 8,410,429 367,794 467,451 54,573 299,234 9,599,481
Share of results of joint ventures and ~ [ERAE R 7]

associates ﬁﬁéﬁ %«%rm% 667,578 85,806 40,089 - 49,973 843,446
Other income and other gains ERAREMBFIE 239,025
Fair value loss of financial assets FRERENAEHE

measured at fair value through LEBEAEAAE

profit or loss, net BEFE (6,374,271)
Corporate and other unallocated ARREM,

expenses RORER (170,102)
Finance costs -net HEMAFE (489,601)
Profit before taxation BB AR R 3,647,978
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5 Segment information (continued) 5 HHER ()

Property Property Property
development investment management Manufacturing Others Total

NRER NRRE NREE R Hith #E

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER

Segment assets TBEE 88,242,870 41,236,192 1,734,327 133,720 3,693,379 135,040,488
Corporate and other unallocated assets 2RI REMANEEE 27,725,383
Total assets BEE 162,765,871
Segment liabilities PERE 56,247,649 4,283,209 866,302 43542 619,166 62,059,868
Corporate and other unallocated R REM

liabilities RAREE 46,336,123
Total liabilities Bk 108,395,991
Other segment information: Hit P EEH
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH 149,411 58,171 44,299 6,717 136,264 394,862
Interests in associates REENAER 3,624,840 1,477,764 338 - 1,098,349 6,201,291
Interests in joint ventures RABDAER 8,579,945 177,715 29,047 - 100,294 8,887,001
Additions to non-current segment ERREERY

assets during the year PEEE 35,333 179,937 248,253 185,072 648,595




Segment information (continued)
The segment information provided to the executive directors of the
Company for the reportable segments for the year ended 31 December
2020 is as follows:
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<l

HRER (B)

BZE2020512A31BILEE - #A2

HHER

ARRRTESRENDEERNT ¢

Property Property Property
development investment management  Manufacturing QOthers
) NERE  NEER gig =]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL T8 FHT THL AT
Revenue from contracts with customers B%F 7 BHARE 4
ilON
Recognised at a point of time RE—RESER 14,079,639 - - 347,293 528,687 14,955,619
Recognised over time E-BERNER - - 2319477 - 577,050 2,896,527
Revenue from other sources LR
Rental income ik ON - 1,233,023 - - - 1,233,023
Total segment revenue PElERE 14,079,639 1,233,023 2,319,477 347,293 1,105,737 19,085,169
Inter-segment revenue PRk = (9,828) (93,530) - (178,800)  (282,158)
Revenue from external customers ~ RERMPEFHKE 14,079,639 1,223,195 2,225,947 347,293 926,937 18,803,011
Segment results before decrease in fair REMER A EHDH
value of investment properties LHEEE 6,002,402 859,456 169,555 71,328 (98,499) 7,004,242
Losses result from changes in fair ~ RENELABEEDR
value of and transfer to investment ~ EETREWMEEL
properties ZER - (677,128) - - - (677,128)
Segment results after decrease ~ REWELAABHI%
in fair value of investment pAg ES
properties 6,002,402 182,328 169,555 71,328 (98,499) 6,327,114
Share of results of joint ventures and ~ [EEAE R AR
associates ﬁ%%ﬁ BERR 1,036,363 111,939 22,255 - 83,728 1,254,285
Other income and other gains A REMFIE 1,922,564
Fair value loss of financial assets PBBERAAES
measured at fair value through Z%@?éﬁ?‘md
profit or loss, net BEFE (469,433)
Corporate and other unallocated AR EA
expenses RORER (119,845)
Finance costs -net [ pr RN (781,082)
Profit before taxation BB ATRR 8,133,603
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5 Segment information (continued) 5 #HER ()

Property Property Property

development investment management  Manufacturing QOthers
B WERE  WEEE g 2t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THEx 51 THT T T
Segment assets PHEE 76,799,217 41,870,169 920,456 169,820 3,529,809 123,289,471
Corporate and other unallocated assets 2 AR EMANEEE 28,986,355
Total assets BEE 152,275,826
Segment liabilities PEER 39,452,988 4,933,344 755,803 130,204 946,439 46,218,778
Corporate and other unallocated R REAM
liahilties AALAR 50,651,200
Total liabilities Bafk 96,869,978
Other segment information: Hit D EEH
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH 104,304 40,609 30,925 4,689 96,318 276,845
Interests in associates REENRER 3,415,068 1,392,084 328 - 1,029481 5,836,961
Interests in joint ventures RABDAER 7,786,553 155,652 20,971 - 97,432 8,060,608
Additions to non-current segment ERRBERY
assets during the year PEEE 8,602 43,807 60,439 = 45,057 157,905
As the Group generates substantially all of its revenues from customers HRAEER RSO ES MNP B ARE
domiciled in the Mainland China and majority of its non-current assets are BF  BABHIERDEEHMAHEARE -

located in Mainland China, no geographical information is presented. R 2R EE R o
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6  Revenue 6 Wi
Revenue, represents sale of completed properties, commercial and WHECERYE  BERIFEMIHE
industrial goods, rental income, property management fee income and WA - WEERBRAREMKA -
others.
Revenue from contracts with customers by major products and service lines BREEZERIRBEEE S cHRF ZHANARE
is as follows: AEREATT -
2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Revenue from contracts with customers HEFZHENEGREENKA
Sales of properties HEWE 26,660,228 14,079,639
Property management service income MEERRBEKA 2,477,642 2,225,947
Sales of commercial and industrial goods HEMERTEER 456,448 347,293
Others Hit 958,561 926,937
30,552,879 17,579,816
Revenue from other sources Hi R b2
Rental income HEWA 1,497,427 1,223,195
32,050,306 18,803,011
7  Other income and other gains 7 HABA R
2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx THEL
Interest income FEMA 102,073 141,148
Dividend income from financial assets at FVTPL (a) BBERE AL ENECEREE
R EHA (a) 2,036 1,626,639
Government grants B 8) 41,055 59,197
Others Hth 93,861 95,580
239,025 1,922,564
(@  The Group received dividends mainly from Hengda Investment amounting to @ AEER2020FEZHEAKEWREERE
HK$1,626,542,000 in 2020. No such dividend was received from Hengda 1,626,542,00078 7T ° 72021 F I & BB

Investment in 2021, BWBBBRKRE -
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R 2 J A 2
SAAHERS - BHEETHEHREER  THE
AREMERANERITAOT :

8  Expenses by nature 3
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing expenses,
administrative expenses and other expenses were analysed as follows:

9

2021 2020

20215 20204

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER AT

Costs of properties sold BEEMERR 15,915,974 6,720,360

Costs of services provided ERERBKA 3,708,586 3,268,071

Employee benefit expenses (Note 9(a)) EERFIHZ (f393a) 1,266,633 773,295

Advertising and promotion costs EEREERERY 82,307 67,968

Other taxes and levies Heh B & R 78,593 71,807

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M - BERRBENE 165,461 96,765

Amortisation of Intangible assets B EEHH 9,541 7,761

Auditors’ remuneration ZHMB &

— Audit services — RERS 4,818 4,750

— Non-audit services — R 1,325 1,300

Others Hit 571,985 900,297
Total cost of sales, selling and marketing costs, — SEEMAK « B RMIBHEES

administrative expenses and other expenses THERANREMERRARE 21,805,223 11,912,374

Employee benefit expenses and benefits and interests of

directors

(a) Employee benefit expenses

9

@ B A BA S L R 3 R e e i

(a) 1EBMmAZ

2021 2020

20216 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FHET

Wages and salaries TELE® 1,003,113 670,119

Pension costs — defined contribution plans  BR& A — B FEH 2 260,065 92,651
Share options granted to directors and RYESRES 2 ERE

employee 3,455 10,525

Total employee benefit expenses BEERFFEX B 1,266,633 773,295
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9 Employee benefit expenses and benefits and interests of 9 {EEEHE XA RESE ZEA KRS ()
directors (continued)

(b) Directors’ remuneration (b) HHEME
The remuneration of every director and chief executive officer of the ARABEZTRITREH 2 G ME W
Company is set out below: T
For the year ended 31 December 2021: HE2021F12A31ALEEE -

Salaries, Equity settled

allowances Retirement share option

Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme expense
fees in kind bonuses contributions (Note)

PR XA

e 2R £fhE ZBRRERX
Ese REUNE  BERAL SEEX G

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FTER TR TER FTER

Executive directors HTES
LU Hua SES = 3,304 1,007 690 179 5,180
HUANG Wei (i =300 - 2,174 883 547 170 3,774
CAl Xun 2z - 638 758 149 - 1,545
DONG Fang EVil - 664 1,657 471 38 2,830
SHI Xiaomei () PEEE() 110 - - - - 110
LIU Shichao (i) 278 () 220 - - - - 220
330 6,780 4,305 1,857 387 13,659
Independent b
non-executive directors FHTES
LI Wai Keung £t 380 - - - - 380
WU Wai Chung, Michael RER 330 - - - - 330
WONG Yau Kar, David BRE 380 - - - - 380
1,090 - - - - 1,090
1,420 6,780 4,305 1,857 387 14,749
() On 27 August 2021, Liu Shichao resigned as an executive director. On ()  M2021F8H27H © Bt BETHIT
the same day, Shi Xiaomei was appointed as an executive director of the EEX-{A CHRIBEZTAAAR
Company. HITES -
(i) On 30 March 2022, Huang Wei resigned as an executive director and (i) M20229F3H30R F HEBTAAF
president of the Company. BITERTRE -
Salary paid to a director of the Company is generally an emolument ENARRIZEEHBEANGEEER
paid or payable in respect of that person’s other services in NAIGEMBLRIMSEEAEBRHEMRS
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company or its A ERH#E

subsidiaries.
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9 Employee benefit expenses and benefits and interests of 9 {EEEHBF XA RERZHBA KRR ()
directors (continued)

(b) Directors’ remuneration (continued) (b) HHEME (8
For the year ended 31 December 2020: HE2020F12 A31HIEFE ¢
Salaries, Equity settled
allowances Retirement  share option
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme expense
fees in kind bonuses  contributions (Note)
X BikE : :
EEHe S HiETEAL FTEIfH B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
THEL TEL TEL TAL TAL AL
Executive directors: HITES !
Lu Hua B - 3,304 1,628 777 636 6,345
Liu Chong (i) 2= - 375 1,318 251 426 2,370
Huang Wei =1 - 3,139 1,542 742 604 6,027
Mou Yong (i) 2E() - = 430 = 426 856
Liu Shichao (i) 2t # i) 165 - - - - 165
Dong Fang (ii) E71i) = 957 2,079 457 95 3,588
Cai Xun (i) 22 i - 316 452 107 - 875
165 8,091 7,449 2,334 2,187 20,226
Non-executive directors: FHTEE :
Wu Jiesi () REE(W) 248 = = = = 248
Liu Shichao (i) 2t # i) 165 - - - - 165
413 - - - - 413
Independent non-executive iﬁ_LéFiﬁm
directors:
Wu Wai Chung, Michael ~ R{&58 330 - - - - 330
Li Wai Keung FER 380 - - - - 380
Wong Yau Kar, David BRE 380 - - - - 380
1,090 - - - - 1,090
1,668 8,091 7,449 2,334 2,187 21,729
Notes: BisE -
() On 26 May 2020, Mou Yong retired as an executive director. (i) 7‘;2020@5% 268 - 2BRANTE
(i)~ On 23 July 2020, Liu Chong resigned as an executive director, and Dong (i) 20202097 A230 @ BIZBHENITE
Fang was appointed as executive director. On the same day, Liu Shichao =k %E?ﬁgif RWTESF - [AA
was re-designated as an executive director of the Company. %Uﬂii.ﬂ&ﬁ'ﬁ NEITESE °
(i)~ On 27 August 2020, Cai Xun was appointed as an executive director. (iii) Ef%if)%)iwﬂ 278 - BESEZERH
7
(ivy  On 14 September 2020, Wu Jiesi resigned as a non-executive director. (iv)  TR2020F9F 148 » RERBBEIEH

TEE -
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9 Employee benefit expenses and benefits and interests of 9
directors (continued)

Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included three

directors (2020: four directors), details of whose remuneration are set

out in Note 9(b) above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the

remaining two(2020: one) non-director highest paid employees of the

(c)

i B4 A B S DA R S 2 i el (780)

(c)

ERA5TF 4]

AEE 4R HEERE-4ES
(2020F : WREE) ZSESZZHE
FABEHN EXMEID) - T4 (2020
F:—Z) RRAEEZREFEER

Company are as follows: AEEZMeFRERT ¢
2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ERREDHZ 5,957 1,030
Discretionary bonuses BYIETEAL 1,137 937
Equity-settled share option expense AR A 2 EAR R 334 202
Retirement scheme contributions BIREFHEMER 27 375
7,455 2,544

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

REZN  MLBUTEEZSSHES
ZEMT :

$2,000,001 to $4,000,000 2,000,0017T%4,000,0007T 1 1
$4,000,001 to $6,000,000 4,000,0017C£6,000,0007C 1 =
2 1

Note: Share options were granted to one(2020: one) non-director highest paid
employees in respect of his services to the Group, further details of which
are included in the disclosures in Note 29 to the financial statements. The
fair value of these options, which has been recognised in the statement of
profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant
and the amount included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above non-director highest paid employees’ remuneration
disclosures.

i —%& (2020F : — %) BEHEE
182 %5 5 7 o (8 OR 75 0 95 L R
1 ARE— SRR B
M0 BEBEHA - ZEWE
228 (HERBE RN A
HEAER) BREE A BT
Tt AR F SRS % 2 & B0 5
ALXBESIN REFREEHS
ZHEBAERN -
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10 Financial costs — net 10 HE AT
2021 2020
2021 % 20204
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Finance income BB
— Interest income from bank deposits — RITEHF B WA (247,787) (210,956)
Finance costs: BERA
— Interest expenses of bank loans — RITERZFBRAY 762,493 861,045
— Interest expenses of other borrowings — HitiERZFBHS 242,587 187,042
— Lease liabilities —HEAE 27,540 22,383
— Loans from the ultimate holding company — RERKIERRRZER 201,610 117,646
— Loans from the immediate holding company — REEBRERARZER 29,467 19,348
— Loans from fellow subsidiaries — RERZMBRAZER 97,025 148,157
— Loans from a joint venture —RE—HAERNAIZEX 4,781 4,944
— Loans from other related company — REEMBHAR 2 EX 7,968 7,322
— Loans from non-controlling shareholders — REFERBERZER 12,080 =
Total interest expense on financial liabilities not WIHEBESEARBINEL
at fair value through profit or loss CREEZA ST AR 1,385,551 1,367,887
Interest accrued on contract liabilities EHBEREZFE 187,682 466,227
1,573,233 1,834,114
Less: Interest capitalised into properties under W BRFMEFEEARL
development (835,845) (842,076)
737,388 992,038
Finance costs — net B R AN R EE 489,601 781,082
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11 Income tax expenses 11 P2
(a) Income tax expense (a) FIfBLEA L

2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT

Current income tax TS
— Mainland China CIT — mEREMEMEH 2,202,634 1,936,585
— Withholding tax on dividend — R BFEHH 54,567 164,194
— LAT in Mainland China — B KR L I ER 4,078,029 3,070,079
6,335,230 5,170,858

Deferred income tax EEFMEH
— Mainland China CIT — mERECEMEHR (531,589) (1,036,861)
— Withholding tax on dividend — REFBENH 159,808 196,461
— LAT in Mainland China — HE KR IR ER (215,218) (160,345)
(586,999) (1,000,745)

5,748,231 4,170,113
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11 Income tax expenses (continued) 11 Friasip sz ()
(a) Income tax expense (continued) (a) FIfBiRAE ()
The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical AEERFINGET 2 HIEFRNERARE
amount that would arise using the tax rate applicable to profits of the EERSMNAEACHEELA  BRS
entities of the Group as follows: BERWT
2021 2020
2021 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR
Profit before income tax BRETEHLATE A 3,647,978 8,133,603
Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated BEwRERN X E BB AR
at the rates applicable to the respective tax Mz Z&HE
jurisdictions 918,926 2,048,668
Profits less losses attributable to joint ventures and A& 72 B R Bt 2 BIFE(G 4 FIRL
associates 518 (210,862) (274,246)
Income not subject to tax BEMT 2 WA (112,923) (455,764)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REBRAZHEBE R E 1,655,745 218,685
Tax effect of prior years' tax losses utilised HEBLEERBEBR TG
% (302) (49,784)
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised ~ FAEHRAZEBZE KT E 243,588 20,459
Expenses not deductible for tax TEMB 2 FAX 142,574 119,140
Effect of withholding tax on distributable profits of & EH B KB B2 8] A 5
the Group's subsidiaries in Mainland China RRH 2 BMBZE 214,375 360,655
LAT THIEER 3,862,811 2,909,734
LAT deductible for PRC CIT purpose HABEEMEH AR i
BER (965,701) (727,434)
Income tax expense FEERX 5,748,231 4,170,113
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended 31 BE2021F12A31HLEEE - BEF
December 2021 is calculated at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) of the B0 BERRE QM ERB MR
estimated assessable profits for the year. No provision for Hong Kong 16.5% (2020 : 16.5%) < B &G H o
Profits Tax was made as the Group has no assessable profits arising ARAEERNFAL EREBEEIRR
in or derived from Hong Kong for year (2020: nil). ERFGF - MTEREBFEH TR

(20205 : &) o

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British Virgin Islands RERBRLHESE ([KBRZEE]) 2
(“BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income tax. REURBAG - NEBBEHNEMAE
Under the relevant income tax law, the Mainland China subsidiaries RERBAERE - FR - REKRENB
are subject to corporate income tax (“CIT”) at a statutory rate of 25% NAARE BERTMAREERE25%

on their respective taxable income during the year. BamEMER ([LEMER]) -
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Income tax expenses (continued) 11 FifaBiB 2 ()

(a) Income tax expense (continued) (a) FIfaBLBAE (4)
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (‘LAT’) is levied at progressive rates B TR ER ([T ER ) it
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being EEBHEI0%E60% ZEHEH - £
the proceeds from sale of properties less deductible expenditures HEERHANLENEMERERBEL
including mortization of land use rights, borrowing costs and all MEFRERE « BENARMEMERSE
property development expenditures. THERZTIERY ©
Dividend withholding income tax iR S BHIFTIEH
Pursuant to the Detailed Implementation Regulations for BRECCERBHZERMAA) - FEA
Implementation of the Corporate Income Tax Law, dividends BIM2008F1 A1 BABIEHFIE S &R
distributed from the profits generated by the PRC companies after KBEIMTEERIRE - B10% M XRE
1 January 2008 to their foreign investors shall be subject to a FTBH o WP RMBARMERERAR
withholding income tax of 10%. A lower 5% withholding tax rate BEFEEFEZANHBFBELHFA
may be applied when the immediate holding companies of the PRC ERMEERER AT ERARENS%
subsidiaries are qualified as tax residents of Hong Kong according to BHWE -

the tax treat arrangements between the PRC and Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, deferred HZE2021F %2020F12 A31HLEFE -
income tax liabilities had been recognised for the withholding tax that NP EE A ERATERRRD K
would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries AORBEFEFIMNERAF - MAKER
in the PRC, as these earnings are expected to be distributed by the FAHEMRBARNZSRMFRENMG
PRC subsidiaries and would be remitted to their overseas holding i o

companies in the foreseeable future.

Earnings per share 12 HREF
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable AR E A 2R Th R B A A1) 48 255 % B 4 4 I B
to the owners of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary AEIRE BT BB INETIIEGE -

shares in issue during the period.

2021 2020
202146 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
(Loss)/profit attributable to the owners of the AR ERRRIENG
Company (HK$'000) (B1B),/&H (FHx) (2,721,886) 3,722,856
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue HAA 2 34T & @A NE FHE
during the period 8,899,893,115 8,858,380,832
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the effect of conversion of share BE2021F12A31HILFE « ERERIETZ
option scheme (Note 29) were anti-dilutive and therefore not included in the (M3E29) MFEARES - AREFANETRE

calculation of diluted losses per share for the year. BEEBNTEEFREER -
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13 Dividends 13 BE

2021
20215

2020
20204
HK$'000
THIT

HK$'000
TER

BRABFADRZBE
2020 F ERA M E — B

Dividends recognised as distribution during the year:
Final dividend declared for 2020 — HK11 cents

per share (2020: declared for 2019 — HK11 cents
per share) (Note (a))

Bl (20204 : 2019 B R AH
e — FR11EI) (K@)

Scrip shares RERH - 161,488
Cash Bé 978,988 810,190
978,988 971,678

Interim dividend for 2021 — HK7 cents per share 2021 ERPERE — FR7EN
(2020: HK7 cents per share) (Note (b)) (20204 : BR7AM) (HEED) 622,993 622,993
1,601,981 1,594,671

The Company declared a final dividend of HK11.00 cents per share in respect of
year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately HK$978,988,000. The
final dividend has been paid in cash on 8 July 2021.

The Company declared a final dividend of HK11.00 cents per share in respect of
year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to approximately HK$971,678,000,
of which HK$810,190,000 were paid in cash and the remaining balance of
HK$161,488,000 were settled in the form of 66,456,067 scrip shares on 17
August 2020.

The Company declared an interim dividend of HK7.00 cents (2020: HK7.00
cents) per share in respect of year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to
HK$622,993,000 (2020: HK$622,993,000), which were fully paid in cash (2020:
HK$622,993,000 were paid in cash).

On 30 March 2022, the board of directors recommends a final dividend of HK8.00
cents per share, amounted to HK$711,991,000, for the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: final dividends of HK11.00 cents per share, which will be fully paid in
cash.). The proposed final dividends for the year are subject to the approval of the
Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting and has not
been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period. The amount of the
final dividend for 2021 was calculated on the basis of 8,899,893,115 shares in
issue as at 30 March 2022.

ARABERZEZE2020F12A31 B IEF
BZRPBKEFRI1.0081WL - & £H
978,988,000/ T - AR HAMK B E M 2021F7 A
8HUABR S I -

RAREREE2019F12 A31 B 1L &
BEZRPBEFK11.0081WL - &1L
971,678,000 7T -+ FH#810,190,00078 7T AER
ST RET 4 #7161,488,00078 7L H 2020
8 A17 H bA66,456,067 B X BB (H 2 72 =
fEfT -

ARBERZEZE2021E12 831 B ILFE
Z R HARR B E A% 7.0081L (20204 : 7.00
L) - A ££622,993,0005 7T (20204 -
622,993,000/8 L) * WE LB S BH I
(20204F : 622,993,000/ L AR & 1) ©

R20229F3A308 - EFEHEE2021F
12A31HIEFEEZHRRETARS.00%E( -
4 ££711,991,00078 70,2 R EARR & (20204 :
REBEFA11.008L - THLAREE
I AFEEHERPRSBAEARD
AIREREERREFAE AT R T
HHRERERABRE - 2021 F 2 KHARK
B3 IREN2022F3 8308 2B %17
8,899,893, 115X AL A5t & o
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14 3% -~ W5 Rt

Furniture,
Plantand Transportation  fitting and  Construction
Building machinery  equipment  equipment in progress
G - %BR
BT HERES BBk #_ EEIE 3]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL T TET TEL
Year ended 31 December 2021 BZ2021512831R
LEE
Opening net book amount BOREFE 3,186,789 34,726 11,895 64,395 2,984,668 6,282,473
Additions B 424,841 21,320 7,231 23,976 162,817 640,185
Transfer from/(to) investment properties £#8 / (Z) &EN% 1,508 - - = (39,686) (38,178)
Transfer from completed properties ~ EEEHEFE 2B EK
held for sale nx 122,142 - - - - 122,142
Transfer from construction in progress  EEBERIR 22,599 - - - (22,599) -
Derecognition of right-of-use assets R I-EREHEEE (4,450) = = = = (4,450)
Disposals of subsidiaries LEWBLR - - - (466) - (466)
Other decreases s (42,536) (1,955) (92) (1,245) (437,842) (483,670)
Depreciation e (350,791) (9,250) (3,380) (21,900) - (385,321)
Exchange differences EREE 113,565 1,147 374 16,979 82,429 214,494
Closing net book amount BRREFE 3,473,667 45,988 16,028 81,739 2,729,787 6,347,209
At 31 December 2021 #2021%12R318
Cost BA 5,039,379 107,201 106,514 422346 2729787 8,405,227
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (1,565,712) (61,213) (90,486)  (340,607) - (2,058,018)
Net book amount REFE 3,473,667 45,988 16,028 81,739 2,729,787 6,347,209
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14 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

14 W% - WB Rt (8)

Furniture,
Plant and  Transportation fiting and  Construction
Building machinery equipment equipment in progress Total
KER

BF BERRE R #E ERIE &3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
S TAL TATL TAL TR

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE2020512A31H

58
Opening net book amount HNEETE 3,178,043 33,356 11,634 41408 2829494 6,093,935
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WENBAR 6,347 - 1,559 17,765 - 25,671
Additions HE 104,246 5,287 3,070 14,116 8,602 135,321
Transfer g% 54,432 511 - 25,388 (52,936) 27,395
Derecognition of right-of-use assets BRI AREE (15,011) = = = = (15,011)
Impairment losses BEER (117.427) = = = = (117,427)
Other disposals HtHE (1,351) (1,052) (1,325) (7,988) - (11,716)
Depreciation change REZY (225,909) (5,482) (3,765) (33,928) = (269,084)
Exchange differences ERER 203,419 2,106 722 7,634 199,508 413,389
Closing net book amount AREERE 3,186,789 34,726 11,895 64395 2984668 6262473
At 31 December 2020 R2020512A31R
Cost e 4,401,710 86,689 90,147 383,102 2,984,668 7,946,316
Accumulated depreciation 2itiE (1,214,921) (51,963) (78252 (318,707) - (1,663,843
Net book amount REE 3,186,789 34,726 11,895 64,395 2,984,668 6,282,473
Depreciation charge was capitalised or expensed in the following categories NEBRADINGAUBRRRIEGRE WE KR
in the consolidated statement of financial position or the consolidated ATERIEAbRE N ¢

income statement respectively:

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THEIL

Properties under development BEPUE 20,661 34,894
Cost of sales SHERKA 199,199 137,425
Selling and marketing costs BHEETMISHEER 493 418
Administrative expenses THAX 164,968 96,347
385,321 269,084




14 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s land and buildings in Mainland China
with a net book value of HK$20,445,000 (2020: HK$261,040,000) were
pledged as collateral for the Group’s bank and other borrowings to secure

15

bank loans granted to the Group (Note 30(b)).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has not yet obtained the
ownership title certificates in respect of buildings with net book value of

HK$720,660,000 (2020: HK$264,984,000).

Investment properties
Completed investment properties at fair value:
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14 W% -~ WB Rt (8)

R2021F12A310 » AEERPEKESR
B REEEA20,445,00078 T (20204 :
261,040,000/ 70) 2 & T L RIEFEHKMA -

ERARBERRRITENZER (HE30(0))

) ZBFZMEREE

15 #®EWH

#2021512A31 8 - AEEHAREREFE
/720,660,000 7T (2020 : 264,984,0007%

BOABEHEZDERBENE -

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET
At 1 January M1A1H 35,650,870 34,241,821
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WEEH B AR - 103,076
Transfer from completed properties held for sale ERERBERECEREDE 1,026,510 12,681
Transfer to property under development ERERRPYE = (180,871)
Transfer from/(to) property, plant and equipment #a,/(2) 0% BREER 38,179 (6,654)
Recognition of change in fair value upon transfer to ~ EREREMEGER DL EE
investment properties (120,163) (1,545)
Decrease in fair value of investment properties REMERRERD (285,488) (675,583)
Exchange differences fEHZ5 1,018,003 2,157,945
At 31 December MW12H31H 37,327,911 35,650,870
Amounts recognised in profit or loss for investment ~ KEMF RN BHBR L S -
properties:
— Rental income — el 1,497,427 1,223,195
Loss arising from changes in fair value of and REMEA R EEEREEE
transfer to investment properties represent: REMEEL 2 EEE -
— Revaluation loss upon transfer of properties under ~— EBREREHYE RIFESFEY
development and completed properties held for BERMENEHIEX
sale (120,163) (1,545)
— Fair value and revaluation loss — RREREMHRE (285,488) (675,583)
(405,651) (677,128)
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15

Investment properties (continued)

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain investment properties of the
Group with a net carrying amount of approximately HK$2,227,999,000 as
at 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$2,432,494,000) have not yet been issued
by the relevant PRC authorities. The Group is in the process of obtaining
the relevant certificates.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's investment properties with
a net carrying value of approximately HK$8,334,326,000 (2020:
HK$2,438,662,000) was pledged to secure bank loans granted to the
Group (Note 30(b)).

(a) Fair value hierarchy
The Group's investment properties are located in Mainland China
and are held under medium lease terms. The Group’s investment
properties were revalued at 31 December 2021 based on valuation
performed by JLL, an independent firm of professionally qualified
property valuers.

All of the Group’s investment properties are measured at Level 3
valuation (Note 3.3(n)).

The Group’s property managers and the General Manager of Financial
Management Department have discussion with the JLL on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at each reporting date.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties in the Mainland
China is determined using income capitalisation method.

Income capitalisation method determines fair values by discounting
the projected cash flows associated with the properties using
capitalisation rates. The valuation takes into account expected
market rental growth and vacancy rate of the respective properties.
The discount rates used have been adjusted for the quality and
location of the buildings and the tenant credit quality. The fair
value measurement is positively correlated to the expected market
rental growth, and negatively correlated to the vacancy rate and the
capitalisation rates.

15 HEWE (H)
M2021F12A31HYEEMFENA
2,227,999,0005 7T (20204 : 2,432,494,000
B ZASEETREME MK EFBIEHED
MEEMBES - XEEDENEZREBEEREL
FE-

R2021F12A310 ' XEEEEFELA
8,334,326,00078 7T (20204 : 2,438,662,000
BT CREMECERE - EARSBERRT
BEHZER (B530(b)) °

(a)

VA RIES T S

AEBEZHREMEL AR BIARE RS
HANAAHE - AEBZREMER
2021F12 A3 ARBBUEXEERY
EHEMPERTET 2 HETAER -

AEEZRENFEHEERE=RMHE
(FH5E3.3(D)) ©

REHEHRETHER  ARENEL
ERPGERHFAIACESRMERTH
midERRREEER

AEBURFEAEZRENERAER
FRABRMOATAET -

WABRMEEBRBER X RAR
NEZEAIREREBELAE - AR
EEZRIENE REMSHSERRE
BEX - ANREDHETNEZRRINE
UEBEPEEEREHRE - RAEME
HEHHSHSEREMRRE  EEEEX
RERCRERM
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15 Investment properties (continued) 15 HEWE (H)
(b) Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable (b)  ANTAIUE R M 2 AR BB A
operating leases
The Group leases out investment properties under operating leases. FEERELEHENRLEDE - AL
The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 15 year, with an —ROFBBIE156F - WHERNEIEHA
option to renew the lease after that date at which time all terms are EH - RNEFEIMEER - BEMNK
renegotiated. Lease payments are usually increased every year to —REFEN—K  UkMmEHEE - &
reflect market rentals. Certain leases include variable lease payment THOBEEREAPUENTERENR
terms that are based on the revenue of tenants. f5x
Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases AEENARBEBKRAREBBERTL
in place at the reporting date will be receivable by the Group in future AR EEERE 2 AMBRBER KM
periods as follows: N
2021 2020
20216 20204
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR FAT
Within one year —ER 789,594 941,786
After one year but within five years —FRERFA 1,614,095 1,771,935
After five years HE% 519,532 90,619

2,923,221 2,804,340
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16 Leases 16 HME
(a) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet (a) REEAEEHRZZEH
The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases: BEABRBIATEEESH 25 ¢
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Right-of-use assets FHEEE
Buildings EF 307,633 238,580
307,633 238,580
Lease liabilities HEEE
Current e 140,842 115,046
Non-current e 254,873 340,587
395,715 455,633
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2021 financial year N FHHEEAN - FEEFAREER
were HK$81,149,000(2020 — HK$43,807,000). 81,149,000/ T (20204 — 43,807,000
BIT) °
(b) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss (b) MEBEMRZEH
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets was HK$46,577,000 FREEECTERY 46,577,000
(2020 — HK$44,511,000). Expense relating to short-term leases and 7t (20204 —44,511,00087C) ° 52
low-value assets was HK$20,293,000 (2020 — HK$7,475,000) and MEEREEEEERB 2 AXIRAR
HK$603,000 (2020 — HK$445,000) separately. 20,293,000/ (20204 —7,475,000/&
70) }603,000% 7T (20204 — 445,000
BT °
The total cash outflow for leases in 2021 was HK$155,656,000 (2020 Q021 EHEZ R ENHEARER
— HK$156,262,000). 155,656,000% 7T (20204F —

156,262,000/ 7C) °
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Intangible assets
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17

wygE

Patents,
trademarks
and other Computer Concession
rights software Goodwill right Total
55 - BER A
HigR  AERRHA HE  BERER @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TaAx TAT TEx TEx Tax
Year ended 31 December 2021 BZ2021F12A318
LFE
Opening net book amount R FE 121 58,486 381,982 = 440,589
Additions NE 6,365 2,043 - 437,700 446,108
Amortisation B (935) (8,606) - - (9,541)
Impairment charge REER - - (365,457) - (365,457)
Exchange differences EHES (1,100) 1,966 5,547 = 6,413
Closing net book amount HREEFE 4,451 53,889 22,072 437,700 518,112
At 31 December 2021 R2021512A310
Cost KA 6,839 81,901 381,982 437,700 908,422
Accumulated amortisation and impairment ~ 2;HE#HKRE (2,388) (28,012) (359,910) - (390,310)
Net book amount RHFE 4,451 53,889 22,072 437,700 518,112
Year ended 31 December 2020 EZ2020F12A31R
ILEE

Opening net book amount BOERE 91 43,895 358,868 - 402,854
Additions NE 39 18,915 - - 18,954
Amortisation B (16) (7,745) = - (7,761)
Exchange differences EREE 7 3,421 23,114 = 26,542
Closing net book amount HARREE 121 58,486 381,982 - 440,589
At 31 December 2020 R2020%1231A
Cost A 465 78,088 381,982 - 460,535
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2 5HEE KR (E (344) (19,602) - = (19,946)
Net book amount BEFE 121 58,486 381,082 - 440589
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17

18

Intangible assets (continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill. Goodwill
acquired through business combinations is primarily related to a cash-
generating unit (‘CGU") engaged in property development activities. The
recoverable amounts of the CGU are determined based on a value-in-use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering
a three-year period approved by the Group’s senior management. The
cash flows are discounted using a discount rate of 16% (2020:16%). The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the
relevant business.

Investments in joint ventures

17 WEEE (8)
BEEEZHLELEMURENS - BRER
ABFMBB R RN EMERBERB 2 —
BReELEM ([REEESEM]) HE - B
SELEUZ BB EBNERERERSRE
BABEZ =FHMMEHEEFRARERER
BABEZEREEET - RERERA16%T
& (20204 : 16%) TUAIE - FEA 2
BREREAN RIEABERZBRER

18 REBAFZIRE

2021 2020
20215 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THL

Unlisted LW

8,887,001 8,060,608




Shenzhen Investment Limited & 3[{2A% A BR A7) » Annual Report 4 3§ 2021 203

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
&7 A B S R I

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (/5 5&#5855) » Fr& & B9 ETH7)

18 Investments in joint ventures (continued) 18 MaEAFZEE (4)
Particulars of the Group’s material joint ventures, which is accounted for FREREINGEUBREAR ARBE 2
using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements, are as BEDEFEBENT -
follows:

Nominal value of  Place of registration Ownership Voting Profit
registered capital  and business interest power sharing Principal activities

AMEAEE HERRERBH e gRR REE BN2E IERH

Shenzhen Langtong Property RMB100,000,000  PRG/mainland China 50 50 50 Property development and
Development Company Limited property investment
(‘Langtong”)

MITHREHEREERLA AR#100,0000007c HEl/FEARE 50 50 50 MERZERNERE
(88 1)

Shenzhen Tianan Gyber Park (Group) US$62,000,000  PRC/mainland China 37.53" 50 37.53* Property investment and
Company Limited* (‘Tianan") development

RRHEH (£8) ERAA" 62,000,000%7w &/ HEKE 3753 50 3753 MERERAE
([XR%Z])

Taizhou Shum Yip Investment RMB100,000,000  PRG/mainland China 51 50 51 Provision of land
Development Limited (“Taizhou development service
Shum Yip")

RN AR RERRARAT AR¥100,000,0007T &/ EARE 51 50 51 HRft+HFRRE
(FHiR2)

Shum King Company Limited (“Shum HK$2  Hong Kong Special 50 50 50 Property development and
King") Administrative Region property investment

ZERAR (MF%)) 2B BARATHE 50 50 50 MERERNERE

Guangzhou Pik Sum Real Estate RMB69,832,402  PRC/mainland China 14.28 14.28 14.28 Property development and
Development Company Limited** property investment
("Pik Sum”)

RNERFHERZERAA AR¥69,832,402 B /EKME 14.28 14.28 14.28 NXAERMFEE
(1E%))

* The 50% ownership interest in Tianan is held by Shum Yip Terra (Holdings) * AEZH0%FT B EEDHR —BAEEFR
Company Limited (‘Shum Yip Terra’), a 75.05% non-wholly owned subsidiary of 75.05% 2 EEEMBRARIFERA (&
the Group. Therefore, the Group’s effective ownership interest and profit sharing is B)ROBRAR (RERA) BE -
37.53%. U NEBEEWRAAERER KON D #G

37.53% °

** On 9 February 2018, the Group entered into investment agreements with * FA2018F2A9H  AKEBEHEMNERE
Guangzhou Pik Sum Real Estate Development Company Limited (‘Pik Sum’) by WMERZFEARAE (BRI TIRER
contributing RMB9,972,000 (equivalent to HK$11,381,000) for joint control of Pik & BBITEARYQ972,000T (FHER
Sum to engage in a property development project in Panyu, Guangzhou. Although 11,381,000 70) HEHEHIEHR S HEMNEF
the Group's effective ownership interests in Pik Sum was only 14.28%, all the B2 —TEMEREIEE - BEAKERER
decisions about significant operating, financing and investing activities of Pik Sum 2B AEREEREN14.28% BFIBEHBRE
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control and as such, Pik Sum EREAEE - UBREEETH ZAKY
is accounted for as a joint venture of the Group. FEAEGEZAANFEE—BAE - &

It BRRAEESERFAR -
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18 Investments in joint ventures (continued) 18 ReBErnZ&E (H)
(a) The movement of investments in joint ventures is as follows: (a) REBDRZEEBEHMT :

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR FET

Share of net assets: EBEEEFE :
Opening balances HBEs 8,060,608 6,811,843
Addition NE 117,137 595,176
Share of results eI S4E 568,058 778,971
Share of other comprehensive income FE(E E b2 W 5,736 105,523
Dividends i (24,396) (250,077)
Exchange differences ERERE 159,858 19,172
Closing balances HiR 45k 8,887,001 8,060,608
()  There were no commitments relating to the Group’s interests in () AEEREGELREHEESELRE-

the joint ventures.



18 Investments in joint ventures (continued)
Set out below are the summarised financial information for
material joint ventures
The following table sets out the summarised financial information
in respect of Langtong adjusted for any differences in accounting

(b)
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18
(b)

Ra8E

BAFAZEYE (8)

TARTUR T BB R R

TRITHBENBE - THERBBBE
AEFHRERELABRLTHEAREN

policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial BIREAZRAE
statements:
2021 2020
20214 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THIT
Current assets MEEE 1,004,407 1,014,891
Non-current assets FERBEE 2,100,400 2,235,628
Current liabilities MEEE (538,449) (686,517)
Non-current liabilities FRBERE (7,470) (108,802)
Net assets BERE 2,558,888 2,455,200
Included in the above assets and liabilities: FALREEREE -
Cash and cash equivalents RekBE2EEY 696,515 722,958
Revenue Yogs 247,058 418,354
Profit for the year FREF 42,299 46,856
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEKERE 42,299 46,856
Dividend received from Langtong BUSRBZ R - 225,060
Included in the above profit; A L& -
Depreciation and amortisation TEREE (18,026) (5,694)
Interest income MEKA 20,442 18,148
Income tax expense Fr{S B 14,195 (15,553)
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the ~ HEARZREAREE AT
joint venture: R
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBFAR LI 50% 50%
Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture ~ AEEDEAZE N RIBEFE 1,279,444 1,227,600
Goodwill on acquisition recognised by the Group ~ ANEERER 2 WS 6,116 6,116
Carrying amount of the investment REZEKAE 1,285,560 1,233,716
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18 Investments in joint ventures (continued) 18 ReBErnZ&E (H)
(b) Set out below are the summarised financial information for (b) TRFIR B A E A A B R
material joint ventures (continued) (%)
The following table sets out the summarised financial information in TRITRMEEHHE - NEERTHE
respect of Tianan adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, et REz R AR HEREEE
and reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial ARERER Y EEE -
N ; g
statements:
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
Current assets MEEE 23,152,407 18,708,539
Non-current assets FRBEE 9,952,962 9,719,766
Current liabilities MEBE (14,750,273) (11,461,106)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (8,796,300) (8,178,372)
Net assets EEFE 9,558,796 8,788,827
Less: non-controlling interests B TR (293,132) (267,913)
Net assets attributable to equity shareholders of &% A AIERM R B EEEE
the joint venture 9,265,664 8,520,914
Included in the above assets and liabilities: FALBEERERE :
Cash and cash equivalents BekBReEEY 2,797,453 2,476,671
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and ~ FEEHMEE (TBHEEHR
other payables and provisions) H BT R R B8 ) (5,746,335) (3,294,496)
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade  3EZESRERB (TREZEH R
and other payables and provisions) Hib R R R EE) 8,569,220 (5,020,610
Revenue Wiz 3,771,905 3,280,218
Profit for the year syl 407,599 651,830
Total comprehensive income for the year FREAKGBE 407,599 651,830
Included in the above profit; BPNIS I
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (26,917) (26,608)
Interest income FLEWA 28,730 95,770
Interest expense FER% (135,456) (283,029)
Income tax expense FrEHRA% (161,507) (238,923)

Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the HEREZAEEARGE QAT
joint venture: i

Proportion of the Group's ownership REBEFBRE LA 50% 50%
Group's share of net assets of the joint venture ~ ANEEDEA L ABEEFRE 4,632,832 4,260,457
Loan to the joint venture BTRERNAZER 183,465 178,230

Carrying amount of the investment REZEAE 4,816,297 4,438,687
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18 Investments in joint ventures (continued) 18 MaEAFZEE (4)

(b) Set out below are the summarised financial information for (b) TFRFIREERE A v 0GR
material joint ventures (continued)
The following table sets out the summarised financial information
in respect of Taizhou Shum Yip adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the
financial statements:

(&)

TRIGHBEHBEE - DEBRMNAE
REMEFTERERFLABLEH KRR
EMBREAAZEEE :

2021 2020
20215 2020F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT
Current assets MEBEE 4,340,147 3,080,095
Non-current assets FRBEE 3,170,742 3,170,909
Current liabilities mEBEE (3,443,388) (2,530,377
Non-current liabilities FRBERE (1,834,650) (2,126,878)
Net assets BERE 2,232,851 1,593,749
Included in the above assets and liabilities: FALREEREE -
Cash and cash equivalents BekBE£EEY 580,900 836,299
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and ~ FE2BEE (TBHEEHR
other payables and provisions) H B ) = (147,812)
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade ~ 3ERBEHMEE (TEBHEEHR
and other payables and provisions) HA BT SR ) (1,834,650) (2,126,878)
Revenue Wz 1,502,369 1,465,108
Profit for the year FREF 583,233 244,916
Total comprehensive income for the year FNEENGELRE 583,233 244,916
Included in the above profit; FTALER -
Depreciation and amortisation TEREHE (210) (212)
Interest income ISV N 1,640 =
Interest expense FEMAXZ (87,222) (58,316)
Income tax expense FT{S B (194,411) (95,921)
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the HRARZAEERGE QT2
joint venture: R
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEEFERE LG 51% 51%
Carrying amount of the investment REZEHE 1,138,754 812,812
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18 Investments in joint ventures (continued) 18 ReBErnZ&E (H)
(b) Set out below are the summarised financial information for (b) TFRFIREERE A w0 E G R
material joint ventures (continued)
The following table sets out the summarised financial information
in respect of Shum King adjusted for any differences in accounting

(#)
TRITHBENBE - HABRYFE
AEFERERFLABRLTHEAREN

policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial

BHEAAZREE

statements:
2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Current assets MEEE 4,429,793 3,909,757
Current liabilities mEaE (135,724) (38,196)
Non-current liabilities FRBERE (4,321,264) (3,891,651)
Net liabilities BEFE (27,195) (20,090)
Included in the above assets and liabilities: FALBEERARE -
Cash and cash equivalents BRekBReEEY 51,930 31,540
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and ~ FEEHMEE (TEBHEEHR
other payables and provisions) HibER R EE) (4,321,264) (3,891,652)
Loss for the year FREE (7,103) (5,018)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREAKGBE (7,103) (5,018)
Included in the above loss: ST LiEE
Interest income FIEWA b5 151
Interest expense FIBHX = =
Income tax expense FTEHiF % - =
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the ~ HERARZAEENALE AT Z
joint venture: R
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEEMARE 2L 50% 50%
Group's share of net assets of the joint venture ~ RNEENHAEL DN RIEEEE (13,597) (10,045)
Loan to the joint venture BTEERRZER 1,341,563 1,224,426
Carrying amount of the investment BEZEKHE 1,327,966 1,214,381
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Investments in associates

.
B

19 it

VAl Z R

L\\

2021 2020
20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FAT

Unlisted EL okl 170,211 167,488
Listed in Hong Kong REB LW 6,847,080 6,485,473

Provision for impairment* AR (816,000) (816,000)
6,201,291 5,836,961

* The provision for impairment is related to the Company's interest in Coastal
Greenland Limited.

Particulars of the material associate, which is accounted for using the
equity method in the consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Business

structure business

Issued ordinary/
registered
share capital

AR EREREX CRITEE ER

Y OREBRERRTANEERERERRAA
2SR -

BRESENGAMBBEAEZ T EREAT
HEMT

Proportion of
effective

ownership interest
held by the Group Principal activities

ARERERER
FEREEASE TEXK

EREE 1 26 %N
Road King Corporate Bermuda/Mainland 749,336,566
China ordinary shares of
$0.1 each
39 NG BRE/HEAE 749,336,566 %
FREBOITL

Road King is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and its
ordinary shares with a nominal value of $0.10 each are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The principal location
of Road King’s business is Mainland China.

The Group’s shareholdings in the associates comprise equity shares held
by the Company, except for Road King, the shareholdings of which are held
through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Fair value of stakes in listed associates as at 31 December 2021 is
HK$1,474,179,000 (31 December 2020: HK$2,086,722,200).

27.00 Development, operation and
management of toll roads and
property development and
investment

27.00 BE - EBRERBKEBLERAR
MERBRILE

RO DREREEIMAIZEREAELRA - &
BREENIOT . EBAREREHA R 2MAR
RAERLET - BYTBEXRMHATEK

BE o

AEERBERRZREREARRRE 2 E
Bein - BB RRRZBENBBAR
AlZ2BHBLRRRE -

R2021F12A318 » EMBEQAHRGH
NAMEAR1,474,179,00058 T (2020412 A 31
B :2,086,722,200/87T) ©
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19

Investments in associates (continued)

Both external and internal sources of information of associates are
considered in assessing whether there is any indication that the investment
may be impaired, including but not limited to financial position, business
performance and market capitalisation. The Group carries out impairment
assessment on those investments with impairment indications, and the
respective recoverable amounts of investments are determined with
reference to the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. As a result, the Group made an aggregate impairment provision of
approximately HK$816,000,000 (2020: HK$816,000,000) which is related
to the Company'’s interest in Coastal Greenland Limited. The impairment
provision/reversal mainly resulted from revisions of financial/business
outlook of the associates and changes in the market environment of the
underlying business.

(@  The movement of investments in associates is as follows:

19

R A2 BE (8)
EFERRARRRARE A HRAER -
EERBERANNELABERKR - 81
BARREBRR - XHRELTE - FRE
HEREFROREETHRENRG - Y2RA
AEREERAEEREENRREEERE
HAKESE - Fit - AEERARARAS
REREARARCESIRAERBEEED
816,000,000/ 7T (20204 : 816,000,000/%
7)o REEE BEOEERARBE QM
%/ $BASOABRARMBEBOTERSE
B -

(@ REZEQRZREZFNT :

2021 2020
2021 % 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FAT

Share of net assets: EEEEFE :
Opening balances kIR 5,836,961 5,319,511
Share of results eI 275,388 475,314
Share of other comprehensive income e E b2 W 244,583 310,022
Dividends ) (157,171) (223,094)
Disposals HE (3,320) (58,175)
Exchange differences EEEE 4,850 13,383
Closing balances HIR &84 6,201,291 5,836,961

There were no significant commitments relating to the Group's
interests in the associates.

PN NI EL L Sl (DS

o Pt
o
JEE)
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19 Investments in associates (continued) 19 MEEARZEE (4)
(b)  Set out below are the summarised financial information for Road King. () TXHIESHHEERGE o
Summarised balance sheets EEBEFGTE
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THT
Current assets REEE 67,855,142 71,973,129
Non-current assets ERBEE 40,380,589 31,307,758
Current liabilities RBRE 40,106,596 44,274,881
Non-current liabilities FnBaBE 32,330,755 25,964,152
Net assets EEFE 35,798,380 33,041,854
Less: non-controlling interests A RS (13,460,962) (12,114,009)
Net assets attributable to equity shareholders of B2 /A BIERMEEEEEFE
the associate 22,337,418 20,927,845
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the HIRRBREREEREE AR
associate: R
Proportion of the Group’s ownership EBFAREZH G 27.00% 27.00%
Carrying amount of the investment REZEKAE 6,031,103 5,650,518
Revenue ez 24,677,949 24,196,103
Profit for the year FREM 1,984,489 2,783,596
Other comprehensive income Hibh 2z 979,800 1,311,821
Total comprehensive income for the year FRNEENFER 2,964,289 4,095,417

Dividend received from Road King BB 2 BRE 141,634 218,521
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20 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 20 BMBEHRARMAFEZ SMEE
2021
20214
HK$'000
THET
Non-current: FRE :
Financial assets measured at FVTPL BRERBRAAEHEZESREE
— Listed equity investments in Mainland China — RAREIRRE 2 ERERE 28,530 26,935
— Unlisted equity investments in — R BIREE 2 3 ETRAEIR B
Mainland China (Note (a)) (Fft7E(a) 461,109 6,737,000
489,639 6,763,935
Current: wE
Financial assets measured at FVTPL BREREANEMECEREE
Listed equity investments in Hong Kong REBZ ETRERE 1,807 1,982
(@  The balance mainly represented the Hengda Investment of HK$461,109,000 (2020: @@ #EErEE4E1E A E 461,109,000 7T (2020

HK$6,737,000,000), the details of Hengda Investment are set out below:

In 2017, the Group entered into investment agreements (‘Investment Agreements”)
with Guangzhou Kailong Real Estate Company Limited (‘Kailong Real Estate”), and
Hengda Investment, both of which are subsidiaries of China Evergrande Group,
and Mr. Hui Ka Yan (“Mr. Hui", a director and the controlling shareholder of China
Evergrande Group). Pursuant to the Investment Agreements, the Group agreed to
contribute RMB5,500,000,000 (equivalent to HK$6,337,100,000) to the capital of
Hengda Investment for acquisition of approximately 2.0522% of the enlarged equity
interest of Hengda Investment at the date of contribution, which was subsequently
diluted to 1.7626% of the enlarged equity interest of Hengda Investment after
the capital contributions from other investors in 2017. Based on the Investment
Agreements, Hengda Investment would undergo a major assets reorganisation
(“Proposed Reorganisation”) such that Kailong Real Estate, as the holding company
of Hengda Investment, will become the controlling shareholder of Shenzhen Special
Economic Zone Real Estate & Properties (Group) Co. Ltd., a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, after the Proposed Reorganisation.

(b)  In addition, if the Proposed Reorganisation of Hengda Investment was not completed (b)
by 31 January 2020 (“Listing Deadline”) and the failure to complete is not caused
by reasons attributable to the Group, the Group is entitled to have the right (‘Hengda
Option Right") within two months of the expiry of the Listing Deadline to demand
Kailong Real Estate to either.

(i) buy back the entire equity interest in Hengda Investment held by the Group
at the original amount of capital contributed by it, provided that Kailong Real
Estate may choose not to buy back such equity interest from the Group, in
which case, the Group will have the right to request Mr. Hui to buy back
the entire equity interest held by the Group at the original amount of capital
contributed by it; or

(i) transfer additional shares, which are equivalent to 50% of the Hengda
Investment on the signing of the compensation agreement (excluding
any additional equity interest acquired by the Group after the date of the
Investment Agreements), to the Group at nil consideration.

4 :6,737,000,000/8 )  BAKEFIBE
PR -

R2017F  AEEHEBENTEBREESR
AR ([HREXE]) REXKEZE (HATRH
BAEEHBRAR) ARAROEE ([
SE] PREBASEEZES RITRERRE)
RN E® ([REWHZ]) - RIEREWH
FAKBREAERBRERAERAAR
#£5,500,000,0007T (48% 746,337,100,00074
TL) c MREE RAIREBE AR ELIEARR
H##92.0522% + HEEB N EMIREE R 2017
FIBBBEEERALECEARED
1.7626% ° RIFZEWaE - BEAREHFHET
EREESH(EZEMA])  REZEAR
% BAZENIERARYEEZEBK AR
NEER S LT ARRIEESREE
(@) BNDBRARIHIEIRAREE o

BEAN - RIERZ A M 2R EAN 202041 A
1B (T Em&&BH]) AT ARZERK - TR
BESERK W IEm AR EER - MIAKE G
(MEAEEZRE]) K LW &K A HERATR
BEANRSIEERRELTHIEK -

() RERTIESEDMBAKERSE
MERREMN 2 AR - LB
HRETAAEE DB FALE £
WERT - REEBERERFLEE
RERATESEOBARESE
R B ¢ 3K

(i) EERAEEEEREIND - BER
HEMEBHRFEANRENL% (T
FEASERRE BB MR KEBNE
A EEINAHE) -
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20 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

(b)

(continued)

In January 2020, the Group, Kailong Real Estate, Hengda Real Estate Group
Company Limited and Mr. Hui entered into a supplemental investment agreement
pursuant to which the parties thereto have agreed to amend certain terms of the
Investment Agreements that the Listing Deadline has been extended from 31
January 2020 to 31 January 2021.

In November 2020, the Group, Kailong Real Estate, Hengda Investment and Mr. Hui
entered into a supplemental investment arrangement pursuant to which the Group
has exercised the Hengda Option Right under the Investment Agreements, and as
the Proposed Reorganisation has been terminated before the Listing Deadline, the
parties thereto have further agreed to make a few clarification and supplemental
changes to the terms of the Investment Agreements as follows:

(i) The Group will continue to hold Hengda Investment and its equity interest
was increased to 2.6439% in accordance with the supplemental investment
agreement.

(if) Kailong Real Estate (or its designated third party) may propose to the Group
to buy back the equity interest in Hengda Investment held by the Group
at RMB5.5 billion (“Share Buy-back”) before 31 December 2023, which is
subject to the Company’s review and approval in accordance with relevant
regulatory requirements including those applicable to state-owned assets
and listed companies. And, in the case the application is being approved, the
Group and Kailong Real Estate will proceed to process the Share Buy-back in
accordance with the prescribed procedures.

20

3

i

(b)

BRBEAREHFZEMEE (5)

(%)

R2020F1 A - AKE - JIEEZE - BAM
ESEERARRIFLEETLHARER
OB RO EREEIREREZE
FE7 - B Em&% BHH2020F1 4318
ERZE202141A31H -

R2020F 11 A AKH - JIEEX - BEX
WENRFRET MR E R - Eitt -
AEEBDTEREERBEE T ZERER
% ﬁﬁ%@%é@a#t* %1% B B AT
’ QTZ’]ﬁE}E T}Xﬁ%u?ﬁéz ‘7|</Tf\
%ﬁ%?éﬁ&ﬁEW& B ¢

) BRERRREWS ASEBES
FREBAKRERAEBREEEMNE
2.6439% °

(i) HEEHE (KEETNE=T) K2023
F12A31 871 - AlAAEE LR LSS
%ﬁAE%@%$%E%%@ﬁ&ﬁ
ZRRE (TRpEE]) - rm SN
RREERERETARSE Eﬁmﬁ
ﬁ%%é FAEE - HEHMREN

BRAT ARBERIESEBIZRE
ErRERNEBER -

HEAGESAY  JEERYEET
B

BEBH

As of the date of this report, Kailong Real Estate did not propose such
Share Buy-back.

HE2021F12A31BILEME - AEEAREZ
NAERD6,374,889,000/8 T » IEAER

imﬁgﬂ/u ©

During the period ended 31 December 2021, there was a decrease in fair
value in respect of Hengda Investments of HK$6,374,889,000, which was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

21 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive 21 ZB#EMBAERBHAREFEZLME
income 03

2021
20214

2020
2020
HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TAT

Equity securities designated at FVOCI EERBAHMEEREERAAE
HERARES
— Unlisted equity investments in mainland China ~ — R BIARE 2 3k EmRAERE 4,256 3,989
4,256 3,989
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22 Properties under development 22 BREPE
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THT THEIL
Within one operating cycle included under R—ELEFRRNIARBDEEE T
current assets
— Expected to be completed within twelve months  — FEHIEA + A R%E T 14,328,015 13,127,309
— Expected to be completed after more than — BNt EREET
twelve months 36,848,843 27,619,524
51,176,858 40,746,833
Properties under development comprise: BRAMERR
— Construction costs — RERA 8,399,859 10,606,818
— Land costs — TR 42,860,861 30,315,546
Less: write-down provision o RUR (83,862) (175,531)
51,176,858 40,746,833
Representing R&
— At cost — B 49,753,325 39,545,506
— At net realisable value — R ERFE 1,423,533 1,201,327
51,176,858 40,746,833

During the year, the reversal of write-down of properties under development
located in Mainland China of HK$91,669,000 was recognised in the
Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss due to the increase in the
estimated net realisable value of certain properties under development.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, write-down of properties
under development located in Mainland China of HK$175,531,000 was
recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss due to
the decrease in the estimated net realisable value of certain properties
under development.

As at 31 December 2021, the application for certificates of land use rights
in Mainland China for land with a net carrying amount of approximately
HK$16,247,985,000(2020: HK$9,453,862,000) was still in progress.

The properties under development include costs of acquiring rights to
use certain lands, which are located in the Mainland China, for property
development over fixed periods. Land use rights are held on leases of
between 40 to 70 years.

FR - HRETEERETOENGTITLRE
FEEN  WURFREAENZEERNEZH
I E 91,669,000 LE RASEMGEBE

BZE2020F12A31HILEE - ARETHES
WMERGFTTERFERD - WA EARE
H B R PP 175,531,000 8 TERAEE
R ABEERER

R2021F12 8318 » BREF(EAI16,247,985,000
AT (20204 : 9,453,862,000/7T) 2 N EIA
Beib A 2 i RN RET -

ERTNXERRETHRAGNEAEREE
TURFEREZ LHERE AR - L6
RERBORE - FHNT40ET0F -
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23 Completed properties held for sale

23 WEREZCHERME

2021 2020
2021 20204

HK$’000 HK$'000

TET FEL

Completed properties held for sale BIEFEZEERYE 18,286,334 17,712,336
Less: write-down o RE (51,249) (150,144)
18,235,085 17,562,192

During the year ended 31 December 2021, completed properties
held for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$1,026,510,000 (2020: HK$12,681,000) were transferred to investment
properties upon change in use as evidenced by the signing of relevant
tenancy agreements. The differences of the fair value of these properties at
the date of transfer from their carrying amounts, amounting to net loss of
HK$120,163,000 (2020: net loss of HK$1,545,000), was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, completed properties held for
sale with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$122,142,000
(2020: HK$20,741,000) were transferred to property, plant and equipment,
upon change in use as evidenced by the commencement of owner-
occupation.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s completed properties held for sale
with a net carrying amount of HK$426,151,000 (2020: nil) were pledged to
secure bank loans granted to the Group (Note 30(b)).

The completed properties include costs of acquiring rights to use certain
lands, which are located in the Mainland China, for property development
over fixed periods. Land use rights are held on leases of between 40 to 70
years.

REZ2021F12831 BIEFE - KELENA
1,026,510,000/& 7T (20204 : 12,681,000/%
L) BIEREZEERMERERBERERS
BZERRNER  DEEEREDE - NER
A ZEMECARERARAECLEER
518)%%8120,163,00078 7T (20204 : HEF
%1,545,000870) * ERNGRAIBRRAER ©

REZE2021F12A31BIEEE - RELESD
£122,142,0005 7T (20204 : 20,741,00078
) BEREZERRMERETIATBERR
W% - CEBEVE - BEREHE -

R2021F12A8318 » AEBEREHFEA
426,151,000/87T (20204 : &) 2B EFEY
EERMECDER  ERASEERBITER
ZHER (HEE30(0)) °

BEERNEERNETHRARNERERGE
TRRPERE TEREZAA o it
REZBORE - FHNT40ET0F -
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24 Inventories

24 R

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THL
Raw materials R R 83,232 79,894
Work in progress FEM 73,095 56,614
Finished goods 2 n 106,621 40,050
262,948 176,558

25 Trade and other receivables

25 5 RS Rk

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TET
Included in non-current assets FARRBEE
— Other receivables — net (Note (b)) — HibEUFRE — 58 (b)) 466,525 838,324
466,525 838,324
Included in current assets STARBEE
— Trade receivables — net (Note (a)) — BWERZ — 588 (M) 957,120 875,138
— Other receivables — net (Note (b)) — HibEdsrE — %58 (D) 5,857,733 7,263,778
— Deposit for land (Note (c)) — tiike (M) - 147,337
— Prepayments (Note (d)) — R FUR (M) 299,416 278,479
7,114,269 8,564,732
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25 Trade and other receivables (continued)
As at 31 December 2021, the carrying value of trade and other receivables
approximated their fair value.

(@) Details of trade receivables are as follows:

25

Y 5 R AWk (41)
R2021%E12A318 - E5REMERFZER
EHEAAERE -

(@ RUERZRZHEBWT

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FAL

Trade receivables EUER R 1,123,799 1,037,538
Less: provision for loss allowance A Bk (166,679) (162,400)
Trade receivables — net FEULBR R — 558 957,120 875,138

The Group normally does not grant any credit terms to its customers
for the sale of properties. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the Group's trade receivables relate to a large number
of diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables
are non-interest-bearing.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s trade receivables with a net
carrying value of approximately HK$2,747,000 (31 December 2020:
HK$3,785,000) was pledged to secure other borrowings granted to
the Group (Note 30(b)).

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance,
is as follows:

AEERRTERNEPANEHERNE
AEEH - RERERZHAYKE ERTIR
RIFEIRIES - ER LRARARAEEZ
BUETSRZETEZREZER » K
SEYERESTZERERAR - FREY
B HRYSRS SR AT AER R E
tEEHR - BURRATE B5UR

R2021F12A8318  AEEREFEN
£2,747,0007% 7T (20201274318 :
3,785,000 L) CEKERREEA -
EAASEERAMEE ZER (M
30()) °

REEHRUBER BB E L HRBRR
oz ERES BRI AT

2021 2020
202145 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAL

Within 1 year —FR 614,895 701,438
1 10 2 years —FEMEA 353,807 298,939
2 to 3 years MEE=FRN 117,936 37,161
Over 3 years =FE 37,161 =
1,123,799 1,037,538
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25 ® 5 R RENoR ()
BE2021ER2020FE12831HILEE » T8
REPERMEAEBBMRZ10%TIA L ©

25 Trade and other receivables (continued)
None of whom contributed 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue during
the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

(b)  Details of other receivables are as follows: () HAEKFIEZFERT :
2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FAEL
Due from the ultimate holding company JIE Ui A 4R PR R A B FUA 28,132 14,274
Due from the immediate holding company  JEURE Z1EA A RIZIE 1,295 1,739
Due from non-controlling shareholders JRE Ut e B P SR R 0R 1,253,673 2,053,149
Loans to joint ventures BTYRERAZER 954,248 707,541
Loans to associates BYHENR ZER 11,008 1,857
Others (i) H b (i) 3,866,163 4,701,688
6,114,519 7,480,248
Less: allowance for impairment B ORERE (256,786) (216,470)
Other receivables -net HAEBGRIE — %88 5,857,733 7,263,778

Hit T EREREAKERRMEA
ARFE=TTHRES RERFOR

(i) Others mainly included deposits and current accounts due from fellow (i)
subsidiaries of the Group and the third parties.

(c) Deposit for land are related to prepaid land acquisition costs while € tTiikeRWELTMEREAES MR
relevant land use right certificates have not been obtained as at 31 1§ o R2021F12A318 + HBELHER
December 2021, BB REE o

(d) Details of prepayments are as follows: ) BEFFEZFBENT :

2021 2020

20216 20204

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR FAEL

For acquisitions of land UgEE 13 200,110 147,029
For construction costs and construction BERAREENH

materials 68,358 104,310

Others Hith 30,948 27,140

299,416 278,479
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26 Cash and cash equivalents 26 BleLkI&%EHEY
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH AR
Cash and bank balances B RBITES 22,775,607 18,710,440
Less: restricted cash A XRERS (2,762,304) (2,460,377)
Term deposits (Note (a)) EEER (K@) (96,047) (83,592)
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY 19,917,256 16,166,471
(@  These bank deposits were with original maturity of over three months. The effective @@ ZEFRTEARRIHAABBE=MEA  -Z5F
interest rate of these deposits as at 31 December 2021 was 2.67% per annum 2021612 A31 B EERFIE 52.67%H
(2020: 2.22% per annum). FHE (20204F : 2.22%FF|K) -
()  The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies and the b ARBHBRENERINELARZEINERRTT
remittance of such foreign currencies denominated bank balances and cash out of EHMEeEDPEAKRRBREBFEGE
the PRC are subject to relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control FASNEE H 80 AR A RIEA ©

promulgated by the PRC government.

Cash and deposits were denominated in the following currencies: RERETATIIEKE
2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Denominated in RMB IARBEHE 17,741,394 13,761,982
Denominated in USD MAETTEHE 3,743,304 4,351,566
Denominated in HKD NI E! 1,290,909 596,892

22,775,607 18,710,440




2 20 Shenzhen Investment Limited &3 A BRA =) » Annual Report 4 3§ 2021

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A7 A B R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (55 &#5455) - HrE £ BB THIR)

27 Share capital and share premium 27 AR B dai 1
(a) Share capital (a) MEA
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FAET
Issued and fully paid: BEIRAR -

8,899,893,115 ordinary shares 8,899,893,115% (2020512 A

(31 December 2020: 8,899,893,115) 310 :8,899,893,115/% ) L@ 22,071,756 22,071,756
During the year, the movements in share capital were as follows: FA - RAEHMAT -

2021 2020
20214 20204
Number of Number of
shares in Issue shares in Issue
Issued  share capital Issued share capital
BRITRG B &M /)
g H BITRA 25 BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE FiA7
At 1 January ®m1A1H 8,899,893,115 22,071,756 8,833,437,048 21,910,268
Share options exercised TEERE - - -
Final dividend in the form of — IAFTAR (A UREE 2
new shares REAMR S - 66,456,067 161,488
At 31 December ®12A31H 8,899,893,115 22,071,756 8,899,893,115 22,071,756
(b) Capital reserve (b) ARGk

2021 2020
20215 20204

HK$’000 HK$'000
FH5 F7

Capital reserve BAREE 59,019 59,019
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28 Other reserves

Statutory
reserve

B
HK$'000
TER

28 Hibf#f

Share Exchange
option Other fluctuation
reserve reserve reserve Total

BRERE RithE Ei2BRE aE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TER TER

As at 1 January 2021 M2021F1A1H 3,951,954 106,023 425,741 1,590,677 6,074,395
Share of other comprehensive LA EDT R
income of joint ventures and DRI EMEE S
associates - - 250,319 - 250,319
Disposals of a subsidiary HE—FNBAR - - (34,985) - (34,985)
Equity-settled share option expense AR ST+ 7 B8 AR 1
X - 3,455 - - 3,455
Exchange differences g - - - 2,620,734 2,620,734
As at 31 December 2021 R2021F12 8318 3,951,954 109,478 641,075 4,211,411 8,913,918
As at 1 January 2020 20201 A1H 3,608,120 95,498 425,741 (2,258,754) 1,870,605
Share of other comprehensive EihEEDA R
income of joint ventures and AR EMmEERE
associates - - - 415,545 415,545
Equity-settled share option expense  BARRAN Sz 2 BE AR#E
i - 10,525 - - 10,525
Exchange differences fEHERR - - - 3,433,886 3,433,886
Transfer from retained profits ERARE R 343,834 = = = 343,834
As at 31 December 2020 2020%F12A31H 3,951,954 106,023 425,741 1,590,677 6,074,395

29 Share option scheme

The Company operated a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) which was
approved and adopted on 22 June 2012 for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to directors and employees of the Group who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The Scheme became
effective on 22 June 2012 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 year from that date, after
which period no further options will be issued but in all other respects the
provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

29 JEBCRERHE

ARARA—TEERES ([5H81]) K2012
FOA22BMBERES - UEREBEBER
NERERCASEESRES RESD KT
B o stEIN2012F6 A22 B4 - MK IEHE
HEEEE - BAIZAEBREBRITTER
BH - BRBERE - ATSBREEMER
- BEMEREMAE - AEEXNAT X
HRIER °
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29 Share option scheme (continued)
(a) Share options outstanding at the end of the reporting period
The terms and conditions of the share options outstanding as at the

end of the reporting period are as follows:

29 JE et E (81)

(a)

T 7 SR e AR AT B i R
IR R i R T (2 B I 2 IR IR M

e

Contractual
Number of Exercise Vesting Expiry life of
instruments price date date options
4 ERiEZ
IE%H TR BEAS HHAH AHER
At 31 December 2021 R2021%E12A31H
Options granted to directors and employees: ~ RFESRES 2B :
- on 20 June 2017 — 201756 A 208 51,782,827 2.902 20/06/2019 19/06/2022 500
2019565208 2022465198
-on 20 June 2017 —R2017E6A208 38,837,107 2.902 20/06/2020 19/06/2022 5.00
2020564208 2022%66F19H
-on 20 June 2017 — 201756 A208 38,837,153 2.902 20/06/2021 19/06/2022 500
021565208 2022567198
Options granted to directors and employees: RYESRIES CERE :
- on 8 February 2018 - 1201852788 9,659,143 2.869 6/20/2019 6/19/2022 4,36
2019664208 2022466 F19H
- on 8 February 2018 - 201852788 7,244,358 2.869 6/20/2020 6/19/2022 4,36
2020565208 2022%6F19A
- on 8 February 2018 - 1201852788 7,244,370 2.869 6/20/2021 6/19/2022 4,36
021565208 20224565198
Options granted to directors and employees: RPESRES ZERE -
on 28 September 2021 R2021%E9728H 2,064,000 2.000 19/06/2022 18/01/2022 0.33
20568198 202218188
on 28 September 2021 #0219 7288 1,548,000 2.000 19/06/2022 18/01/2023 1.33
02565198 2023%1F18A
on 28 September 2021 R202159A28H 1,548,000 2.000 19/06/2022 18/01/2024 2.33
022565198 2024%1F18A
Options granted to directors and employees: RYESREE < BRE :
on 28 September 2021 R2021%59728H 988,000 2.000 19/06/2022 28/09/2023 1.00
02256F198  2023%9F28H
on 28 September 2021 R202159A28H 741,000 2.000 19/06/2022 28/09/2024 2.00
022565198 2024%9F28A
on 28 September 2021 R2021%E9728H 741,000 2.000 19/06/2022 28/09/2025 3.00
02F67198  2025%69F28H
Total share options outstanding WATTRRRELY 161,234,958

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 161,234,958
share options outstanding under the Scheme, representing
approximately 1.81% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that
date.

RFEHR BEHFE - AR7AF
161,234,958 B M #E (A AR RN %A
BRI 41.81%) HARTTHE o
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29 Share option scheme (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Share options outstanding at the end of the reporting period
(continued)

The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue
of 161,234,958 additional ordinary shares of the Company and an
increase in share capital of HK$569,703,000 (before issue expenses).

Share options movement during the period
The number and weighted average exercise price of share options

under the Scheme are as follows:

29 JERRERTE (4)

(a)

(b)

T8 A A AT B T A ()

BERAGZARABRAKNERE - BET
FEHRITEZBEREBBEZTEN
161,234,958 AN A L@ + R AIE
71569,703,000/8 7T (RIMBREITHZ) ©

91 i P i 2 )
RIFEH IR B AE 2 BB R a1T
EEMT

2021 2020
20215 20204
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price Number of exercise price Number of
HKS per share options  HK$ per share options
MEFHTHEE hEF (TR
BRER BREHE S EREHE
At 1 January ®W1A18 2.895 153,604,958 3.029 153,604,958
Granted during the year RERKRE 2.000 7,630,000 = =
Outstanding at the end RERERITE
of the year 2.895 161,234,958 3.029 153,604,958
Exercisable at the end of the REARA] F171
period 2.897 153,604,958 3.030 153,604,958
Share options movement during the period (C) 91/ I JRt i 2

The options outstanding at 31 December 2021 had an exercise
price of HK$2.869 — HK$2.902 (31 December 2020: HK$3.001 —
HK$3.036) and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 0.97
year (31 December 2020: 1.93 year).

(i) 7,630,000 shares were granted. No share options were
exercised, forfeited and lapsed during the reporting period.

(i)~ The Group recognised a share option expense of HK$3,455,000
during the year ended 31 December 2021 (year ended 31
December 2020: HK$10,525,000).

K2021F12 A31 B s K17 BRIERTT
F852.869/8 T —2.902/8 7T (20204
12A31H : 3.001%7T —3.036/87T)
MEFHRBADFRA0.97F (2020F
128318 : 1.93%F) o

() BT 7,630,0000% - NIREEINH

(i) HZE2021F12831HIEFEE » K
SERRERERZ3,455,000%8
7T (BE2020%F12 A31HILEE -
10,525,000/ 7T) °
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30 Bank and other borrowings 30 #f7 LI MbAE &
2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
Non-current FEENHR
Bank loans —secured (Note (b)) RITER — BEMA (HED) - 108,126
Bank loans — unsecured BTER — BER 19,378,413 15,842,891
Other borrowings-secured CMBS HifeE — AEARERAZEES
(Note (a), Note (b)) (MsE(@) ~ BIFED)) 6,759,790 2,137,572
26,138,203 18,088,589
Current b
Bank loans —secured (Note(b)) RITEF — BEA (M3 @D) 90,509 337,954
Bank loans — unsecured RITER — EHA 11,811,770 10,610,971
Other borrowings-secured CMBS HinfeE — AEAEEREIEES
(Note (a), Note (b)) (KizE(@) - HIEE() 56,752 8,599
Other borrowings — unsecured HibfsE — EHHE - 1,782,300
11,959,031 12,739,824
38,097,234 30,828,413
All of the non-current interest-bearing borrowings are carried at amortised FrAJER Mt S A B IRB HEK AT -
cost.
The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its borrowing AEBBER2021 EF 2020 F REHMETHE
facilities during the 2021 and 2020 reporting period. HEER M BERL -
(@ At 31 December 2021, other borrowings included Commercial @ F2021F12A31 8 » ;T ABEEELH
Mortgage-backed Securities(‘CMBS”) as below: FH([BXEAIHELR]) 2HEMEE
LUNNE
At 16 June 2020, RMB1,900,000,000 (equivalent to R2020F6 A168 - R BRITHEES
HK$2,283,420,000) issued in China Interbank Bond Market, which 5317 AR¥1,900,000,0007 (HE
were secured by certain property, plant and equipment, investment #2,283,420,0008 L) - ERAETY
properties and its receivables of future rental incomes. The interest ¥ BERRME  BREVEREXRXRHA
rates of the CMBS classified as Priority Level with a principal amount SWARERFIBEER - X AR
of RMB1,800,000,000 was fixed at 3.31% per annum. The term of 1,800,000,000 Tt DB AEB R REER
the CMBS was 20 year. At the end of the third year, the sixth year BEHEHFNENEETERS.31% ° B
and the ninth year, the Group shall be entitled to adjust the interest BEHTHBLENERE20F - RE=F -
rates of the CMBS or repurchase the outstanding balance, and the ENFRENER  ARBEEAREE
holders of the CMBS shall be entitled to require the Group to redeem BRTHBEHFOF LN BEEREEHRE -
the outstanding balance. MEAEERTBEESFNEEABRZ AR

SERLQAREERE -
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30 Bank and other borrowings (continued)

(@

(continued)

At 1 March 2021, RMB1,800,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,163,240,000) issued in China Interbank Bond Market, which
were secured by certain property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and its receivables of future rental incomes. The interest
rates of the CMBS classified as Priority Level with a principal amount
of RMB1,790,000,000 was fixed at 3.88% per annum. The term of
the CMBS was 18 year. At the end of the third year, the sixth year
and the ninth year, the Group shall be entitled to adjust the interest
rates of the CMBS or repurchase the outstanding balance, and the
holders of the CMBS shall be entitled to require the Group to redeem
the outstanding balance.

At 7 May 2021, RMB2,000,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,403,600,000) issued in China Interbank Bond Market, which
were secured by certain property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and its receivables of future rental incomes. The interest
rates of the CMBS classified as Priority Level with a principal amount
of RMB1,999,000,000 was fixed at 3.80% per annum. The term of
the CMBS was 18 year.

Bank and other borrowings amounting to HK$6,907,051,000 (2020:
HK$2,592,251,000) were secured by certain of the Group’s assets
with carrying amounts as below:

(@)

30 AT RILMAEE ()

(&)

R2021E3A1H  RPBRTEES
mi5%T AR#1,800,000,0007T (HE
7%2,163,240,000%8 L) - HRETYH
¥ BERRE BREVMERERXA
SWARHEIFBEER - A& ARE
1,790,000,000 tH A EAB LT REER
B HEBESFNERRETA3.88% ° iH%
BRTBELRNEREI8E - REZF -
ERNFRENGFER - AEBHEAERE
BRTHELFOF RS BOREERE -
MBEERTHESNREABRERAK
SEELRESHE o

R2021E5A78  RPBRTEES
mi5%ET AR 2,000,000,0007T (HE
%2,403,600,00087L) - HRETH
¥ BERRE BREVMERERXA
SWARMEIFTBEER - K& ARE
1,999,000,000 LR A EAB LT REER
B HEBEFNERRETEARS.80% c H%
BELHEFNFHA18F -

£ %46,907,051,000 7T (20204 :
2,592,251,000/87T) 2 R{T R EMEE
THRAEEZ ETAEEEERER -

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAERT THEL
Land and buildings in Mainland China FRIAE L RETF (HFE14)

(Note 14) 20,445 261,040
Properties under development BRTPYE - 2,972,440
Completed properties held for sale (Note 23) #{EFFE 2 BERYE (HiF23) 426,151 =
Trade receivables (Note 25(a)) e RS (FisE25(a)) 2,747 3,785
Investment properties (Note 15) BEM (HE15) 8,334,326 2,438,662

8,783,669 5,675,927
Except for the bank loans equivalent to approximately © BReEER ’319 130,671,000/ 7T (2020
HK$19,130,671,000(31 December 2020: HK$17,410,480,000), F12A31H : 17,410,480,000% ) 2
which are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, all other borrowings as ﬁﬁﬂgﬂuﬁéméﬂﬁﬁ\\ * R20215F12 R

at 31 December 2021 are denominated in RMB.

At 31 December 2021, the average effective interest rate of the bank
and other borrowings was 3.0% (31 December 2020: 3.7%).

BB EMEEIUAREE -

M2021F12A318 » BINHEMBEE
ZFHEEMEA3.0% (2020912 A 31
B :3.7%) o
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31 Deferred income tax 31 BEERAH

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and liabilities is as follows: BEMEHEERBREANTNT
2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAET
Deferred income tax assets EEMEHEE 2,953,554 2,632,401
Deferred income tax EIEFTBEE (9,421,630) (9,491,481)
(6,468,076) (6,859,080)

The movement on the net deferred income tax account is as follows: EEFMERFREGNT ¢

2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FEx THET
At 1 January W1A18 (6,859,080) (7,018,525)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries =N - (415,496)
Credited to profit or loss FFABRE 586,999 1,000,745
Exchange differences fE N EH (195,995) (425,804)

At 31 December ®12A318 (6,468,076) (6,859,080)
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31 Deferred income tax (continued) 31 RERAA (5)
Movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities without taking into RATAR—HRWEEEANHEEENERLT -
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction is BLEMBHEERABESNT -
as follows:
Deferred income tax assets: BIEFRBHEE

Losses
available for Temporary Temporary
offsetting differences (ifferences
against future  arising from ~arising from Unrealised Credit loss
taxable profits LA provision accruals profits allowance

T ER

<
BEE:
TEZE L2 2

s

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TERL AT TR TATL BT TAL

At 1 January 2021 2021561518 6,743 1,896,343 274,861 217,472 121,774 115,208 2,632,401

Deferred tax (charged)/credited to A5 (%) /S ABER
the statement of profitor loss W2 EXERIE

during the year (78) 332,425 (65,420) (47,555) 11,149 11,047 242,468
Exchange differences EXZE 197 58,462 7,058 5,649 3,750 3,569 78,685
Gross deferred tax assets at 31 7202161283182

December 2021 ERHEEERS 6,862 2,287,230 216,499 175,566 136,673 130,724 2,953,554
At 1 January 2020 202051418 6335 1,159,175 230,905 212,167 105,306 88,742 1,802,630
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-ARELR - 53,361 - - - = 53,361

Deferred tax (charged)/credited to A% (M) /3 ABEE
the statement of profit or loss ~ ZEERE

during the yeer - s asu 7.918) 9173 19651 628172
Exchange differences EREE 408 104,085 16,412 13,223 7,295 6,815 148,238
Gross deferred tax assets at 31 782020512 31 A Z ELLF:

December 2020 BEEEE 6,743 1,896,343 274,861 AT 472 121,774 115,208 2,632,401
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to EEFMGREERRAREENTWELX - &
the extent that the realisation of the related benefit through future taxable BURRBRRERTENERABANE o
profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets HZE2021F12A318  AEEVRH R
as at 31 December 2021 of HK$2,919,270,000 (2020: HK$1,233,971,000) IS8 11,677,081,000/8 T (20204 :
in respect of accumulated tax losses amounting to HK$11,677,081,000 as 4,935,885,000/8 T) MRAELEMEREE
at 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$4,935,885,000). 2,919,270,0007 7t (20204 : 1,233,971,000

BIT) °
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31 Deferred income tax (continued) 31 BERBA (5)
Deferred income tax liabilities: BIEFSHAE

Fair value

adjustment
Revaluation arising from ~ Accelerated
Withholding ~of investment ~ Revaluation acquisition - tax depreciation
tax on dividend properties of assets  of subsidiaries  on investment

RE B Bl REEf B s L4
HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS00O  HKS000  HKSO000

TER THL TR A TER BT

At 1 January 2021 202151418 528952 3,779,420 238,868 4,395,562 438,347 150,332 9,491,481

Deferred tax charged/(credited) to AEEHR / (3tA)
the statement of profitor loss ~~ BERAZETHE

during the year 159,308 (101,413) (51,187)  (356,384) 84,766 (80,421)  (344,531)
Exchange differences EHZEE 18,018 109,435 6,221 122,399 14,191 4,416 274,680
Gross deferred tax liabilities R2021E1233182

at 31 December 2021 EEFEERELE 706,778 3,787,442 193902 4,121,577 537,304 74627 9,421,630
At 1 January 2020 202051 A1H 302,054 3,696,555 340737 4,039,513 335,269 107,027 8821155
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-HNBLA = 21,576 = 447 281 = = 468,857

Deferred tax charged/(credited) to AEEM% / (A
the statement of profitor loss ~ BERAZETHE

during the year 196,461 (169280  (117.062)  (394371) 77,170 U (72579
Exchange differences EizE 30,437 230,571 15,393 263,139 25,908 8,594 574,042
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 31 7202051243182
December 2020 ERHAAELE 528,952 3,779,420 238,868 4,355,562 438,347 150,332 9,491,481
32 Contract liabilities 32 AHMAE

2021 2020
20214 20204

HK$’000 HK$'000
F7 7

Contract liabilities BHEE 13,892,262 19,718,224
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Contract liabilities (continued)
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract liabilities of
property development recognised are as follows:

The Group receives certain amount of deposit from customers when they
sign the sale and purchase agreements. These deposits are recognised as
contract liabilities until the relevant properties are completed and ready for
hand-over to the customers.

The Group may require the customers to pay off the remaining balance of
the consideration within an agreed timeframe while constructions are still
ongoing, rather than on the completion of the relevant properties. Such
advance payment schemes result in contract liabilities being recognised
throughout the remaining property construction period for the full amount
of the contract price. In addition, the contract liabilities will be increased
by the amount of interest expense being accrued by the Group to reflect
the effect of any significant financing benefit obtained from the customers
during the period between the payment and hand-over date. As this
accrual increases the amount of the contract liabilities during the period of
construction, it therefore increases the amount of revenue recognised when
control of the completed property is transferred to the customer.

(a) Movements in contract liabilities

32

aRRR (8)
HERRMFRAZRORESERARTEZ R
SAEFWT

ARERNEFRERRHER ARSI URETA]
T ZFAEHABANEE  EEABDE
ERLATHERTRP AL

AEEEREFRBETRINEETZBER
AAMFRERNEEZNEEERSRKE - B
BRI AT Bl @ SN B ARG X2 E SR
RE2RANEBERERSNAE - 1tih - A5E
ANRBRAN T ARREZ A NREETFES
MEMEARENZY B EANSRAX BN
SEMANARE - BRUEFERSENEE
HRAGHNARLEE  SHERMERNEL
THREERTEPREERARE S8 -

(a) ARARED

M A1RZ &8
BRAREF BN ARG ek

Balance at 1 January

Recognising revenue that was included in
the contract liabilities at the beginning
of the year

Receiving forward sales deposits and
instalments

Accruing interest expense on advances
received

Balance at 31 December K12 B31 Bz &%

TR R M B R S

WEEER € ko BIRR

2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FTHET

19,718,224 18,100,667

(18,670,731) (14,980,542)

12,657,087 16,131,872
187,682 466,227

13,892,262 19,718,224

The amount of billings in advance of performance and forward
sales deposits and instalments received expected to be recognised
as income after more than one year is HK$1,507,530,000 (2020:
HK$1,711,054,000).

BHRER—FRERARAZBHE
H%E - BETekEeks BRER
H151,507,530,000/8 7T (20204
1,711,054,000587T) °
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33 Trade and other payables

33 B4 KA ATk

2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THIL

Current liabilities MEBE
Trade payables (Note (a)) FERTER (KT3E(a)) 4,408,200 3,863,062
Other payables and accruals (Note (b)) HEtEAFERERTER (ME®b) 12,357,967 10,555,929
Other tax payable (Note (c)) HiEAHIE () 334,709 410,604
17,100,876 14,829,595

(a) Trade payables
The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date was
as follows:

(a) MEATHREK
e R IR B Z H B BRI 2 AT 51 R 40
T

2021 2020
20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR FAET

Within 1 year —FR 3,777,339 3,252,855
1 t0 2 years —FEMFEA 416,455 136,725
2 to 3 years MEE=FNRN 109,712 107,048
Over 3 years =FUE 104,694 366,434
4,408,200 3,863,062

The total amounts of the trade payables are non-interest-bearing. All
the trade payables are expected to be settled within one year.

ENRTEEATE BFE - MARNE
RERAR-FAFHE -
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33 Trade and other payables (continued) 33 H 5 LIMEN ()
(b) Other payables and accruals (b) A A 2k 0 I Bt 2
Other payables and accruals mainly included deposits from property HiEN BB ERTEZRENEE
buyers and current accounts due to immediate and ultimate holding FENRESNENASEER R&RE
of the Group, joint ventures, associates, fellow subsidiaries and non- [ /NET I X—/NCT I /N R EA )=
controlling interest of the Group. DR RAREE IR M RFE ©
2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT THL
Accruals and other payables [ExHE A R B e 3R 8,745,771 6,923,061
Loans from joint ventures REEERNAIZER 124,757 123,435
Loans from fellow subsidiaries KERZMBRAZER 2,683,482 3,137,120
Loans from an other related party KEEM@EB T2 EX 191,401 185,961
Loans from non-controlling interests REFEREZZER 612,556 186,352
12,357,967 10,555,929
(c) Other taxes payable (c) FoftofE A BiIE
Other taxes payable mainly included output value-added taxes related HEARBETEREREENEREN
to receipt in advance from customers, value-added taxes payable and FEEEY - EAEERREMBHIE -

other taxes.
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34 Due to immediate and ultimate holding company 84 FEATEH: BB A B A vl sk
2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET T
Non current FEENER
Due to the immediate holding company R ERERARIFEA - 698,963
Due to the ultimate holding company e S E R R RIF0E 3,057,750 1,208,557
3,057,750 1,907,520
Current BHA
Due to the immediate holding company R ERERARIFE 2,477,415 1,071,781
Due to the ultimate holding company e B E R R RIFA 11,121,061 8,206,911
13,598,476 9,278,692
16,656,226 11,186,212
35 Tax payable 35 MEATBLIE
2021 2020
2021 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
THExT FHIL
Current tax in the consolidated statement of BRAVBRRARAZBIEBAFHIEE
financial position represents:
Provision for CIT PERETEE 1,732,240 1,887,183
Provision for LAT THIEER 11,077,660 8,444,123

12,809,900 10,331,306
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36 BeREEe

Cash generated from operations (a) BEEEEEZHE
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHAT
Profit before taxation B& 75 Al 4 3,647,978 8,133,603
Adjustments for: BT IERE
Finance costs BB 737,388 992,038
Interest income FBUA (349,860) (352,104)
Depreciation and amortisation IE Y 374,201 241,951
Decrease in fair value of investment BREMEARERD
properties 285,488 675,583
Decrease in fair value upon transfer to ERERENERARERD
investment properties 120,163 1,545
Dividend income from other financial REEMERMEE ZREKA
assets (2,036) (1,626,639)
Share of profits less losses of joint FEiEAana kit R Al afRER
ventures and associates (843,446) (1,254,285)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME - BERREHEE 2EB
plant and equipment 415 1,683
Loss allowance of trade receivables, net  JEUBR IBLREFE 4,835 21,965
Loss allowance of prepayments deposits ~ IR - A& R EMEKFIARK
and other receivables, net BB FE 39,761 32,758
Loss allowance of other financial assets, — Hfh&g& EBLEE T
net = (56,628)
Impairment losses of property, plant WE¥ - BEREEORERE
and equipment - 117,427
Impairment losses of Intangible assets BYEERESE 365,457 =
Impairment of inventory FERE (80,705) =
COVID-19-related rent concessions B COVID- 19BN TEEER
received - 3,664
Decrease in fair value of BREGEAREHNECEREE
financial assets at fair value through DRERDFE
profit or loss, net 6,374,271 469,433
Equity-settled share option expense PARASE 2 R ER S 3,455 10,525
Others Hih - (51,665)
10,677,365 7,360,854
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36 Cash flow information (continued) 36 BlemaEEr (4)
(a) Cash generated from operations (continued) (a) BEEBELEZBE (H)
2021 2020
2021 % 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THT
Changes in working capital: LEESEY :
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables — FEMBRH R A EREE (38M) /
and other financial assets D (83,853) 1,114,498
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, BNFIE © 7] R EAEWGRE
deposits and other receivables md/ (Em) 1,136,177 (873,232)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories TR GEm /md (81,204) 18,619
Increase in trading biological assets SEREE A EE M (860) (734)
(Increase)/decrease in completed BIEGE2BERYE (M) /B
properties held for sale (1,102,859) 6,709,745
Increase in properties under development  ZE FR ¥ EIE N (8,908,982) (15,554,364)
Increase in trade payables FEBR IS AN 831,576 1,237,453
Increase/(decrease) in other payables Hi M ZaREBAEN/
and accruals CR4) 1,617,932 (508,022)
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities & #& & Caid) /&0 (6,203,328) 17,687
(Decrease)/increase in deferred income ETWA Crd) /0 (7,821) 921
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash RRHBE &), R (239,660) 350,714
Cash used in operations REXBRART (2,365,517) (115,861)
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Blemagr (4)
(b) 2Rl 2 AR 2 R

36 Cash flow information (continued) 36

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Bank
and other
borrowings

Lease
liabilities

Due to the
ultimate and
immediate
holding
company

Loans
from fellow
subsidiaries

Loans from
associates and
joint ventures

Loans from
non-controlling
holders

and other
related parties

Eley  BERE ] ABMTER B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T BT BT TAL AL Fin AT
t 1 January 2021 R2021E1 A18 30,828,413 455,633 11,186,212 3,137,120 123,435 372,313 46,103,126
Changes from financing ~ RERERERELE
cash flows:
Praceeds from new HROERMETA
bank loans 20,150,202 - - - - - 20,150,202
Repayment of bank loans ~ EER{TER (13,221,747) - - - - - (13,221,747)
Proceeds from loans FERRRETFESE
from non-controlling
shareholders - - - - - 524,389 524,389
Repayments of loans ERFRRRRER
from non-controlling
shareholders - - - - - (56,908) (56,908)
Proceeds from related ~ REBEF2FHEHE
parties - - 25,292,200 4,933,456 - - 30,225,656
Repayment of related BER &R
parties - - (20,452,290)  (5,533,934) - - (25,986,224)
Capital element of lease ~ EFREERE 2 &R
rentals paid - (155,656) - - - - (155,656)
Total changes from REBERERELE
financing cash flows &% 6,928,455 (155,656) 4,839,910 (600,478) - 467,481 11,479,712
Interest paid included as ~ FIfERERERERE 2
change in operating ERFIE
cash flous: (100508) (275400  (85.269) - (4781) (668200  (1,189,490)
Exchange differences ERzE 340,366 95,738 484,296 49,815 1,322 10,935 982,472
Finance costs HEANA 1,005,080 21,540 231,077 97,025 4,781 2,048 1,385,551
At 31 December 2021 R2021%512 4318 38,097,234 395,715 16,656,226 2,683,482 124,757 803,957 58,761,371
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36 Cash flow information (continued) 36 BlemaEEr (4)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (b) REMEEHZAKZEE (5)
(continued)

Bank
and other
borrowings

Lease
liabilities

Due to the
ultimate and
immediate
holding
company

Loans
from fellow
subsidiaries

Loans from
associates and
joint ventures

Loans from
non-controlling
holders

and other
related parties

tig g figak "
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn BT TAT B T B
At 1 January 2020 R2020E1 F18 24,297 918 505,017 3,200,319 3,872,747 342,239 850,215 33,068,455
Changes from financing ~ RERERERELE
cash flows:
Proceeds from new HROERMETA
bank loans 15,786,414 - - - - - 15,786,414
Repayment of bank loans ~ EEH{TEH (10,061,410) - - - - - (10,061,410)
Repayments of loans BERBHERRRL
from non-controlling B
shareholders - - - - - (501,804) (501,804)
Proceeds from related ~ REER S 2fEHUE
parties - - 12,213,668 940,522 7,375 - 13,161,565
Repayment of related B LB
parties - ~ (899,189 (1761806  (240007) 8910 (6,909,912
Capital element of lease ~ ©RFEHEEZEAHH
rentals paid - (122,667) - = - - (122,667)
Total changes from REREREREL
financing cash flows B 5,725,004 (122,667) 7,314,479 (821,284) (232,632) (510,714) 11,352,186
Interest paid included as ~ JIERERLFEEG Y
change in operating ERHE :
cash flows: (1,048,087) (22,383) - (296,314) - - (1,366,784)
Exchange differences EREE 805,491 29,476 534,420 233,814 8,884 25,490 1,637,575
Increase in lease liabilities  REFMTUHEEZ
from entering into BESREN
new leases during
the year - 47471 - - - - 4741
COVID-19-related rent 2 4URECOVID-1913 A0
concessions received ez - (3,664) - - - = (3,664)
Finance costs BERA 691,181 22,383 136,994 106,808 4,944 7,322 969,632
Capitalised borrowing costs EA/LEEERA 356,906 - - 41,349 - - 398,255
At 31 December 2020 R2020612 4318 30,828,413 455,633 11,186,212 3,137,120 123,435 372,313 46,103,126
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36 Cash flow information (continued)

(c)

Acquisition of Right-of-use

36 BlE&WEER ()

(c)

B B

2021
20215

2020
20204
HK$'000
THT

HK$'000
TER

WiEEmE

Acquistion of Right-of-use

81,149 43,807

37 Financial guarantees

37 WMHHR

Financial guarantees to purchasers of
the Group’s properties (a)

Financial guarantees to related parties of
the Group (b)

BBER@E

AAKENEERREH 2

[P 7N 5 1B A GE  FR (K BT S AR ()

2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
5,805,194 9,122,402
1,272,646 1,606,057

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there is default of the
mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible for
repaying the outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued
interest and penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to banks.
The Group is then entitled to take over the legal title of the related
properties. The Group’s guarantee period commences from the date
of grant of the relevant mortgage loan and ends after the buyer of
the Group’s properties obtained the individual property ownership
certificate.

The directors consider that in case of default in payments, the net
realizable value of the related properties can cover the repayment of
the outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued interest
and penalty and therefore no provision has been made in connection
with the guarantees.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has given guarantees amounted
to HK$1,272,646,000 (31 December 2020: HK$1,606,057,000) in
respect of bank loans and other borrowings to Guangzhou Pik Sum
Real Estate Development Company Limited and Taizhou Shum Yip
Investment Development Limited, both of which are joint ventures of
the Group.

REERER  HREFERERRER
5 ARBREEENRN ZRBERA
RHERFAERRNRTZERETHE
REIR - AREBRARKEBNE A
EMBE - ARBZERBERKHARE
BEREARBEZAKENKERDE
LRI PR AR R R

EERR - WERERNE  BRENEL
RRFERMEMHAREREZRBER
EREAER PR REH - MARAFE
RIELBE -

R2021F12 8318 - AEEREMNER
EHERBERARILREMNTRERER
BERAR (MEHAXEBEGERR) R
TEFREMEERE,272,646,0007%8
¢ (2020412 A318 : 1,606,057,000%
TO) ZHER ©
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38

Commitments
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2021 not provided for in
the financial report:

3
®2021F12 A31 BMARITE KA RBEREE
HBENEARAENT ¢

2021 2020
20214

20204
HK$'000
TET

HK$'000
TERT

Commitments in respect of the acquisition of

land and buildings, and development costs PRS2 AR -
attributable to properties under development:
Contracted, but not provided for BEIAEREE

RUE L RET RBERTNEER

13,095,757 4,974,251

As disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 14 July 2017, the
Group agreed a maximum capital contribution to a related party, Shum
King Company Limited, of HK$3,000,000,000 for its development of a
piece of land in Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had an
outstanding capital commitment to Shum King of HK$1,847,500,000 (31
December 2020: HK$1,906,000,000).

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 27 June 2021, the
Group and Hefei Vanke Ruixiang Real Estate Company Limited (an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of China Vanke Co., Ltd) won the bid for the land
use rights of the mixed-use land offered for sale by Zhongshan Natural
Resources Bureau at the bid price of RMB8,191,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$9,843,000,000) through the public bidding process held by Zhongshan
Public Resources Transaction Centre. As at 31 December 2021, the Group
had an outstanding capital commitment of HK$3,501,000,000.

WRADR BHAE2017F7 A14B 2 DEK
B ASERERNESARIERATRS
#3,000,000,000 8 Tt EREE B2 — L
# o R2021F12A318 - REBY RS 2K
RITE 2 EAKIER1,847,500,00078 7T (2020
%12 4318 : 1,906,000,000&7T) °

WA RT B A2021F6 B27 BN A SR
B ASEHEGEENRANESRAR (B
BReERNERAAMNBEZENBAR)
BRPLUTALERRZPLETHNAAR
Z1RF - LAR®8,191,000,0007T (HER
9,843,000,000%87T) MIRFERZEEH LT
ERBRRARLEFERSARN IR L HE
FA# o R20215F12 8310 » KAEBEHKEE
B AREHEA3,501,000,000/8 7T °
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39 Related-party transactions 39 HBHRS
In addition to the financial guarantees provided to joint ventures disclosed BRPHFE37 (b) FTHE R A M) & & A Rl TR A B 75 42
in Note 37(b) and the capital commitments provided to a joint venture RENEISHMERENR —HEEARRHENE
disclosed in Note 38, the Group had the following related party transactions: REEI - REBMBBAZZ0T ¢
(a) Financing arrangements (a) RhEZH
() The Group entered certain financing arrangements with its () AEEHREFHTVETFHEL
related parties. He
2021
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Loans from the ultimate holding company & &&IER AR 2 EX 9,725,718 4,885,984
Loans from the immediate holding REERERRRZER
company 1,901,569 698,963
Loans from fellow subsidiaries RERZMBARZER 2,683,482 3,137,120
Loans from joint ventures REEERRIZER 124,757 123,435
Loans from other related companies KEEMBB AR ZER 191,401 185,961
Loans from non-controlling shareholders K & 3ERERR IR 2 E 3% 612,556 186,352
15,239,483 9,217,815
Except for balances of HK$121,217,000 which are interest- Br&EEr121,217,00058 70 (HE2020
free (year ended 31 December 2020: HK$151,281,000), the F12A31HIEEE £ 151,281,000
remaining balances bear interests at rates ranging from 1.29% BIL) BRE  HREHENT
to 4.65% (year ended 31 December 2020: 2.14% to 4.75% 1.29% 2 4.65% M F % (H 22020
per annum) per annum. The relevant interest expenses for the F12A31ALEE : NTF2.14%ZE
period are disclosed in note 10. 4.75%K)EFIE) 58 o HNEREFI

BRSRBERME0 -
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39 Related-party transactions (continued) 39 BBHRS ()
(a) Financing arrangements (continued) (a) mEZHE (H)
(i) The Group also provides loans to its related parties. (i)  FEETEEBY TIERE o

2021 2020

PIIPAE:S 20204

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER AT

Loans to joint ventures BTEERAIZER 954,248 707,541

Loans to associates BYBENRZER 11,008 1,857

965,256 709,398
The related interest income from the joint ventures and BZE2021F12A31BILEFE - XK
associates for the year ended 31 December 2021 were HAMNTIRBAATIMABN S
HK$100,947,000 (2020: HK$117,688,000) and HK$478,000 qyi,f%”;jmo’;j ogo%‘ (2020

(2020: HK$520,000) respectively. 77 7l#100,947,00075 7T

% : 117,688,000/ L) [ 478,000
7T (20204 : 520,000587T) °

The balances are interest bearing at rates ranging from 4.90% FEBRIEN T 4.90% £8.00% K FH|%
to 8.00% per annum (year ended 31 December 2020: from (BZE2020F12A31BIEEE -

5.00% to 8.00% per annum). F5.00%Z8.00%HFFIE) 3 8 o
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(b)

(c)
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39 BT A5 (A1)
Leasing arrangements (b) MEZH

(i)  The Group entered leases in respect of certain leasehold
properties from its related parties, with lease terms ranging
from 1 year to 3 years. During the year ended 31 December
2021, the amounts of rent payable by the Group under these
leases to its immediate holding company, fellow subsidiaries
and associates were HK$13,518,000 (year ended 31 December
2020: HK$10,785,000), HK$1,954,000 (year ended 31
December 2020: HK$4,842,000) and HK$30,156,000 (year
ended 31 December 2020: HK$25,988,000) respectively. The
related interest expenses from its immediate holding company,
fellow subsidiaries and associates for the year ended 31
December 2021 were HK$630,000 (year ended 31 December
2020: HK$859,000), HK$1,115,000 (year ended 31 December
2020: HK$2,591,000) and HK$3,102,000 (year ended 31
December 2020: HK$4,112,000) respectively.

(i) The Group also entered into a lease arrangement with its
ultimate holding company as a lessor. For the year ended 31
December 2021, the rental income in respect of the lease
arrangement was HK$9,508,000 (year ended 31 December
2020: HK$8,373,000).

(i)  The prices for the above transactions were determined based
on mutual agreement between the parties.

Guarantee provided by the ultimate holding company

By the end of 2020, a subsidiary of the Group in Mainland China
has entered into a fund arrangement with a financial institution
(the “Trustee”), pursuant to which the Trustee has raised trust fund
amounting to RMB1,500,000,000 (equivalent to HK$1,642,200,000)
which provided the fund to the subsidiary for financing a property
development project of the subsidiary. The fund is guaranteed by
Shum Yip Group, the Group’s ultimate holding company. In May
2021, the remaining loan balance of RMB1,500,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$1,642,200,000) was repaid to trustee by Shenzhen Kezhigu
Investment Limited. Therefore, the fund arranged has ended by the
end of May 2021.

(c)

() AEEREEBINETHEDE:]
MY MEBRNTF1E3F - HE
20211231 ALEFE - A5ER
BZSRARREERERAR -
RAEMNBARRBKELRIMNNAS
A 1413,518,000% T (B 2020
F12A31B%E : 10,785,000
L) 1,954,000 7T (HZ2020
F12A31BILEFE : 4,842,000/
70) 30,156,000 7 (1 Z2020
F12A31BLFE : 25,988,000
BIL) c HE2021F12A31HILF
B REHEEERRR - REK
BLRRIRBEARNBEEN SRS
Al 5630,00078 7T (B ZE2020F12
A31BIEFE : 859,00087L)
1,115,000/ 7T (B Z£2020F12 A
B1HIEFE : 2,591,00087T) &
3,102,000% 7T (B1Z2020F12 A
31ALILEE : 4,112,00087T) °

iy AEEEALBANEEZRZRK
NRFTNMEERY - BE20215F12
ASTBLEEE - BHAEZTHEMNAE
£ U A 59,508,00078 7 (B E2020
F12A318EFE : 8,373,000
JT) °

(i) EARZzERDEEFBIHTER
EE -

BT A TSR Z AR
HBE20205FK - 2EEREAEZ —
BHEARE—HeREE ([ZEA1)
BiEeRH Bt STAEEEE
FE4 ARE1,500,000,0007T (HER
1,642,200,0007%8 ) R ENAHB AR 2
—ENERRBEMTESANBARIR
HES - ZBELHAEENRRIERD
AIREEEER - N2021F58  #TE
FiEs AR1,500,000,0007T (FAER
1,642,200,0007%7T) HAINITRL 2 /R E
BRARMTIAEE - At - %224
ZHEZE2021F5 ARBER o
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39 Related-party transactions (continued)
(d) Other related party transactions

)

(i

(i)

(iv)

On 28 May 2021, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (“the Vendor”), and a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of Shum Yip Group (‘the Purchaser’), a fellow subsidiary of
the Company, entered into the Equity Transfer Agreement
pursuant to which the Vendor has conditionally agreed to sell,
and the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to acquire, the
Equity Interest, representing 100% equity interest of Shum Yip
Land Investment, together with the Sale Loan at an aggregate
consideration of RMB75,031,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$91,769,000). The disposal was completed in May 2021.

The Group entered arrangements with its ultimate holding
company, fellow subsidiaries and an associate in which the
Group provides management services (training and property
management) on their behalf. For the years ended 31
December 2021, the management fee income in respect of the
management services provided to the ultimate holding company,
fellow subsidiaries and the associate were HK$4,527,000,
HK$2,477,000 and HK$466,000 respectively (year ended 31
December 2020: nil, HK$1,800,000 and nil).

The Group entered two management delegation arrangements
with its ultimate holding company. One is about to provide
management service on certain agricultural lands and property
development, another arrangement is to provide flower rental
and placement services. For the year ended 31 December 2021,
the management fee income in respect of these management
services was HK$888,000 (years ended 31 December 2020:
HK$1,142,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group sold
products to the subsidiaries of its associate: Tian An Cyber
Park(Group)Co.,Ltd, the revenue of which is HK$49,070,000
(years ended 31 December 2020: HK$267,243,000).

The prices for the above transactions were determined based
on mutual agreement between the parties.

39 BWiHR5 (8)
(d) HEHEBEIZS

U)

(it

(i)

(v)

R2021FE5H288 « ARFHEE
2EMBLR ([EH]) BAQARZ
RAZEMBARIAESBENIEZENR
B ([ER]) TLBRESEER
Bl BFEHRURELER
BERBGRERZRERE GEERNE
EEMRE100%KE) UREEE
R BREASARYET5,031,0007T
(FEE 491,769,000/ 7T)  HE
EECR2021 F5 ATH o

FEEHREFKRERAR - RRMH
BARR—MEERBT LR
Bt AEERESREEERS
(BIRMEER) - HE2021F
12A31BLEFE - BRARFRKIER
nA - AEMBL R RZHE QA
REEERENEEZBRAS A A
4,527,00058 7T ~ 2,477,00058 &
466,000/ 7T (Ei22020F 12 A 31
HIEFE : & - 1,800,000 7T %
m) o

AEBRESEIERARG UMEE
BRERY - —EANRETRER
MBI ERBRUEEERE - 5—
EARBEAMREREBRY - &
2021512 A31BILEE - BEZ
SEERBOEEE WA E888,000
Bt (BE2020F12A31BIEF
& :1,142,000/87T) °

BE2021F12A31BILEE » A%
EREBERARATEE (£8)
BRARNMNBARMEER - £
Iy % 449,070,000 7T (B E£2020
F12A31HIEEE 267,243,000
BIT) ©

LR 5 EBRHEELRERTER
EE -
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39 Related-party transactions (continued) 39 HEHRS (#)
(e) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group () AEEEEEFMAHZME

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TEART FAT
Short term employee benefits KHEER 21,820 18,222
Post-employment benefits RIREF 2,793 2,501
Share-based payments AR 3B 626 2,821

Total compensation paid to key BENEEEBEAESMELS
management personnel 25,239 23,544

40 Statement of financial position and reserve movement of 40 A ] BB R L% Kkl 5 8
the Company

2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$’'000 HK$'000
T FAT

Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME -~ BEREE 343 390
Interests in subsidiaries i IENGIPE: 5 43,853,328 42,818,750
Investments in associates REERE 2 1RE 18,970 18,970
43,872,641 42,838,110

Current assets REEE

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BNFIE - 5T REMEKTA 1,018 1,132
Other financial assets EtemBEE 1,836 1,981
Cash and cash equivalents BekBLEEY 1,820,573 1,023,253

1,823,427 1,026,366
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40

Statement of financial position and reserve movement of
the Company (continued)

40 AATIMBMRIE K GEEET (B)

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Current liabilities REBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings HREBITREMEE 9,349,630 7,079,809
Other payables and accruals HENFIBERETER 999,444 924,593
Due to the ultimate holding company JE T &R AR R R FUR 40,630 39,471
Due to the immediate holding company R ERERARIFE 1,581,514 881,510
11,971,218 8,925,383
Net current assets REBEEFE (10,147,791) (7,899,017)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREBAE 33,724,850 34,939,093
Non-current liabilities *¥rRBaE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings SAEBITRAMEE 9,781,042 10,330,671
9,781,042 10,330,671
Equity B
Share capital and premium BA K s{E 22,071,756 22,071,756
Other reserves HAih 107,618 104,163
Retained earnings REBF 1,745,464 2,432,503
Total equity e 23,924,838 24,608,422
Total equity and non-current liabilities EREERERDERE 33,705,880 34,939,093

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved by the
Board of Directors on 30 March 2022 and were signed on its behalf.

Dr. LU Hua
RERLT
Director

B

ARAMBRRBRRN2022F3A30EKESE

SR - TRERE -

Ms. SHI Xiaomei
LB
Director

S
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AT B IR DL R ik 2 ) (A1)

Fitk - AAAERED

40 Statement of financial position and reserve movement of 40

the Company (Continued)
Note: Reserve movement of the Company

Subsequent to the end of the year, the board of the directors proposed a
final dividend. Further details are disclosed in Note 13.

Share Other Retained

capital reserves earnings Total

AR Hitnfit REEF am

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TEr TEx TET

At 1 January 2021 ®2021%E181A8 22,071,756 104,163 2,432,503 24,608,422
Total comprehensive income for FREERELE

the year - - 914,942 914,942

Cash dividends HelRE - - (1,601,981) (1,601,981)

Equity-settled share option expense AR 2 BERRAE R 32 - 3,455 - 3,455

At 31 December 2021 202151283180 22,071,756 107,618 1,745,464 23,924,838

At 1 January 2020 20201810 21,910,268 93,638 987,094 22,991,000
Total comprehensive income for FRNE2ENRLE

the year - - 3,040,080 3,040,080

Issue of shares as a result of AR B RO MEITRD

scrip dividend 161,488 - - 161,488

Cash dividends BelRs - - (1,594,671) (1,594,671)

Equity-settled share option expense AR AN Sz f+f 7 BE ARG R % - 10,525 = 10,525

At 31 December 2020 72020128318 22,071,756 104,163 2,432,503 24,608,422

41 Subsequent events 41 BRFEH

RAFEERR  EFERBRNRAKE -
E—SHERERMES
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42 Particulars of principal subsidiaries 42 EEREA A
The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2021, all of AT AR2021F12A31HEZENBARRE -
these are limited liability companies: ZERABEREEAR ¢
Nominal value Proportion of
of issued ordinary shares
Date of and fully paid Proportion of held by
incorporation/ share capital/ equity interest non-controlling  Principal
gstablishment paid-in capital  held by the Group interests  activities
B
Shum Yip Terra (Holdings) Co., Ltd. 1996/6/30 RMBB00,000,000 75% 25%  Property investment
and development
RERN (5B) ROBRAE 19966 3307 AR%800,000,0007C 75% 5% NERERFEE
Shum Yip Pengji Holdings Co., Ltd 1982/8/3 RMB1,032,050,000 100% 0% Property investment
and development
FEBE (58) BRAA 19828 A3 ARE1,032,050,000 7T 100% 0% MERBLEE
Shum Yip Investment (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. 1999/3/16 US$710,000,000 100% 0%  Investment Holding
RERR (R BRA 199937168 710,000,005 100% 0% RERRK
Shenzhen Shenye Tairan Construction Engineering 1994/1/14 RMB50,000,000 100% 0%  Manufacture and sale
Co., Ltd. of aluminum products
MITRRRRERTEERAT 19941 3148 AR%50,000,000 ¢ 100% 0% EERHEEZR
Shum Yip Taifu Logistics Group Holding Co., Ltd. 2007/3/21 RMB323,799,552 98% 2%  Operation of
warehouses and
property development
REREMASERNERAA 207F3A218 AR%303,799,552 0 98% % BESERMERE
Shum Yip (Shenzhen) Property Management Limited ~ 1992/7/17 RMB30,000,000 100% 0% Property management
REEE (R) NEERARAT 19927 8178 AR30,000,0007 100% 0% MEER
Xinwang Industrial Development (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ~ 2002/5/9 US$100,744,000 95% 5%  Property development
FHEZEE (M) BRAF 200255A9R 100,744,000% 0 95% 5% NERE
Shenzhen Kezhigu Investment Limited 1989/5/20 RMB784,528,950 100% 0% Property development
and property investment
AT ARERRA 1989455208 AR%784,528,950TC 100% 0% NERERIERE
Shenzhen Nongke Holdings Company Limited 2002/12/25 RMB200,000,000 100% 0% Property development
and property investment
MTENEEERAT 20025128258 AR%200,000,0007 100% 0% NERERIERE
Shenzhen Shum Yip Sky Park Co., Ltd 2013/10/30 RMB100,000,000 100% 0% Property development
MImRERAERAA 20135104308 AE%100,000,00070 100% 0% MERE
Shenzhen International Qianhai real estate (Shenzhen) — 2015/12/9 RMB10,000,000 50% 50%  Property development
Co., Ltd (i) and property investment

FEBASEE (R BRI 2015512898 AKH10,000,0007 50% 50% MERERMERE
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42 Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued) 42 FEBEA A (H)
Nominal value Proportion of
of issued ordinary shares
Date of and fully paid Propartion of held by
incorporation/ share capital/ equity interest non-controlling ~ Principal
gstablishment paid-in capital  held by the Group interests  activities
j AEERE;
Ma'anshan Shenye Real Estate Co., Ltd 2007/10/31 RMB70,000,000 100% 0% Property development
BRURZHERRLE 2007510318 AB&#70,000,0007 100% 0% NEFE
Shenzhen Shenye Shenheng Investment Co., Ltd 2005/9/14 RMB10,000,000 100% 0%  Business services
MTAZREREBRAT 200559148 ARH10,000,0007 100% 0% XBRHE
Shenzhen real estate (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. 2020/9/30 RMB50,000,000 100% 0%  Property development
REEH (BM) BRAT 202059A308 AR#50,000,0007 100% 0% #EFE
Hunan Pengxing Real Estate Co., Ltd 2018/11/13 RMB10,000,000 100% 0% Property development
HERFERERARAT 20185114138 ARH10,000,0007 100% 0% WERE
Dongguan Shenye Songshanhu Real Estate Co., Ltid ~ 2019/11/14 RMB10,000,000 100% 0% Property development
FEMAFLAERERAT 2019511 A148 AERH10,000,0007 100% 0% 7EHE
Zhongshan Shenye Wansheng Investment Co., Ltd. () ~ 2021/8/24 RMB1,000,000,000 50% 50%  Property investment
and development
RURRREBRARRLR) 202158 A24B ARE1,000,000,0007 50% 50% NERARRE
Shenzhen Nongke Dongcheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. ~ 2018/7/10 RMB10,000,000 100% 0%  Property management
A ENFHEXERAT 2018575108 AR¥10,000,0007 100% 0% HXEE
Shenzhen Jinzhi Logistics Development Co., Ltd 1987/9/23 RMB100,000,000 53% 47%  Busingss services
RRERMRERARAT 198769A238 AR100,000,0007 53% 4% ZBRHK
Taizhou Shenye Pengdi Investment Co., Ltd 2007/11/26 RMB50,000,000 100% 0%  Property investment
and development
FNRXBERARRAR 2007411 A 26 ARH50,000,0007 100% 0% NERARFAH
Nanjing Shenye Real Estate Co., Ltd, 2019/11/22 RMB50,000,000 100% 0%  Property investment
and development
ARAEHERRAR 20195115228 AR #50,000,0007 100% 0% NERERFY
Chengdu Fengze Investment Co., Ltd. 201171728 RMB10,000,000 60% 40%  Property investment
RBSERARRLT 2011514288 ARE10,0000007T 60% 0% NERE
Chengdu Shenye Tairan Huacheng Real Estate 2018/914 RMB50,000,000 100% 0%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd
RBTAEFNENEHERSERAT 2018597148 AEH50,0000007T 100% 0% WERE
Nanjing Shenning Real Estate Co., Ltd 2018/1/5 RMB50,000,000 100% 0% Property development
ARREERARAT 201851758 ARE50,0000007T 100% 0% MERE
Shenzhen Shenye Minghong Real Estate 2014/5/26 RMB100,000,000 65% 35%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.
RTRERTHEREERAF) 2014457268 AR%100,000,0007T 65% 3% NEFE
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42 Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued) 42 FEBEA RS ()

Nominal value Proportion of

of issued ordinary shares

Date of and fully paid Proportion of held by
incorporation/ share capital/ equity interest non-controlling  Principal

gstablishment paid-in capital  held by the Group interests  activities

Chaohu Shenye Chengyi Real Estate Co., Ltd 2015/3/28 RMB30,000,000 100% 0% Property development
SHRRIRDERRAA 2015%3A288 AR%30,000,0007C 100% 0% NEFE
WuChanLStgenye Tairan Real Estate Development 2005119 RMB137,000,000 100% 0%  Property development
0,
RERERARHEREARLA 200551 £198 AR¥137,000,0007 100% 0% MERE
Foshan Shentou Real Estate Co., Lid 2018/1/30 RMB20,000,000 100% 0%  Property investment
and development
BUTRREHERRAA 2018514308 AR#20,000,0007 100% 0% HNERARFE
Nanjing shenlu Real Estate Co., Ltd 2018/1/5 RMB50,000,000 100% 0%  Property investment
and development
BRAEERERAR 201851458 AR50,000,0007C 100% 0% NERERFE
Suzhou New Development Investment Co., Ltd. 1995/5/24 RMBB00,000,000 100% 0% Property development
EMFERREARAD 199545248 AR¥800,000,0007 100% 0% MERE
() The subsidiary is newly established by the Group during the year. () ZMBARARNEERNEAFTKIL
(i) As the Group has the rights to variable returns from its involvement (ii) HHEA$’§Iﬁ%?ﬁEE EA%AT T
with those companies, and has the ability to affect those returns AEER - YEENBRERZEAT
through its majority voting position of the board of directors and %%A&Hxiﬁ’ly%(&m LA BORTE #
shareholders of these companies and the right to determine the ZRAIMEE - BRI HR AR K
budget, pricing and promotion strategies of these companies, the FEZENR - REBHER %‘JEZ%
Group has control over these companies and these companies are B AWZEAREATERNBA
thus accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group. o
The English names of the Mainland China companies referred to above in EAEmAEMREE SRR - REE XA
this note represent management’s best efforts in translating the Chinese Rl HEAERARANEBAREEEERR
names of those companies as no English names have been registered or RENBEZSLRNP BT -

available.
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Group I — Property interest held by the Group under development and for future development

BB — AREEA RR D LA R

Interests
attributable to
the Company

Site Area

(sg.m.)
1Rt EE
(F7K)

Planned GFA Expected
(sq.m.) Completion Year

AUREER
(EHK)

Project Name Address

HE &R 13tk

AR At R IFH

Property Interest held for future development

B RRERZMERER

Qianhai Guiwan Project
AIBEEIRE

Guangming Xinhu Street Project

RAFREERE

Shanghai Jiading Shenjia Hydrogen
Valley

LEETREERARER

Shum Yip Tairong Mansion
REFEN

Chengdu Longquanyi Shum Yip City
REBERBREWIAR

Terra Wuhan Bio Valley Project
RAREEYRER

Hexinan Land Plot G111
AFEG111I8E

Chaohu Royal Spring Garden, North
ERERHEILR
Chaohu Royal Spring Garden, South
EHERERmER

Shenyang Hanlin Road Land Plot 18
EEHME 185t RIER

Jiangyin Technology Innovation Park

TRHEIR

Nanshan, Shenzhen, Guangdong

BRARYHELE

Guangming, Shenzhen, Guangdong

ERARYITEHE
Jiading, Shanghai
HETEER

Chenghua, Chengdu, Sichuan
Ml E R EBm A ER

Longquanyi, Chengdu, Sichuan
ol aREBhERER

Donghu Gaoxin, Wuhan, Hubei
AR ET RSB HER

Jianye, Nanjing, Jiangsu
IHEERTEHE

Bantang Economic Development Zone,
Chaohu, Hefei, Anhui
ZHESETERSEEREE

Bantang Economic Development Zone,
Chaohu, Hefei, Anhui
ZHESETENSREREE

Shenhe, Shenyang, Liaoning
BEREETLTE

High-tech Zone, Jiangyin, Wuxi, Jiangsu

IHEEHTIRENE

Residential
=

Residential
=
Complex

= A

N=)

W[

Residential
F=E

Complex
o)

Residential
F=E

Residential
F=E

Residential
F=
Residential
=

Complex
Fa

Industrial

I¥

51.00%

100.00%

100.00%

75.05%

97.68%

52.54%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

97.68%

100.00%

51,350

18,840

44,728

80,333

36,211

93,201

22,549

78,827

81,537

12,134

81,233

297,695

130,000

144,900

233,463

270,222

260,000

83,545

28,997

22,085

68,437

140,828

2025

2025

2024

2025

2024

2023

2024

Unscheduled

PCEE

Unscheduled

A E

2025

2023
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Schedule of Major Properties

Group I — Property interest held by the Group under development and for future development

F—W — REEBHRREDRARHRERZDHEMES

Interests
attributable Expected
to the Site Area Planned GFA Progress Completion

Project Name Address Company (sq.m) (sq.m.) (note) Year

HHER RBREAR BREE
HEEB 3t ALY £ (PFK) (PFK) (BaE) BARIFG

Property interest held under development

RERRTZYERS
Shum Yip Yunzhu Guangming, Shenzhen, Guangdong Residential
REER BRERITHAR FE 65.00% 48,681 327,209 3 2022-2023
Shum Yip Chuangzhi Building Longgang, Shenzhen, Guangdong  Industrial
RERBRE BRERTRER E¥ 100.00% 8,436 51,152 2 2024
Shum Yip Shanglinyuan Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong Commercial
RE EMIE BRERTERR HE 100.00% 6,015 62,834 2 2024
Huangbeiling Reconstruction Project Luohu, Shenzhen, Guangdong Commercial

(land plot 04-01)
EESENBUEREE (04-013041) BRAE AT RAR [SES 100.00% 6,751 76,733 3 2022
Qingshuihe International Auto Logistics Luohu, Shenzhen, Guangdong Industrial

Industrial Park Phase IV
TEKM B VS i L R BRERTENE I% 97.68% 8,726 43,419 2 2022
Shum Yip Taifu Kechuang Square Luohu, Shenzhen, Guangdong Industrial
RERENEIES BRERTENE E% 97.68% 8,965 109,253 3 2023
Shum Yip Taifu Yinying Square Luohu, Shenzhen, Guangdong Industrial
RERBRBES BRERIMRAE EX 97.68% 8,807 135,537 2 2025

Shum Yip Shanshui Dongcheng Garden Pingshan, Shenzhen, Guangdong  Residential
RELKERIEE BRERYITTILE (e 100.00% 66,857 453,476 2 2024

Shum Yip Nansha Hengli Island DH0502  Hengli Island, Nansha, Guangzhou, Residential

Project Guangdong
REEDEESDH05028 T B BREBMTAELEEES Fx 100.00% 66,277 341,140 3 2024
Garden Hills Zhongkai Development Zone, Residential
Huizhou, Guangdong
FILEE EREBMTMHERER F= 100.00% 93,317 345,872 3 2022-2023
Wanlin Huafu Huicheng, Huizhou, Guangdong Residential

SEMERT ERAEZMNTERE F= 100.00% 72,922 314,290 1 2025
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Schedule of Major Properties

Group I — Property interest held by the Group under development and for future development

BB — AREEA RR D LA R

Interests
attributable Expected
to the Site Area Planned GFA Progress Completion
Project Name Address Type Company (sq.m) (sq.m.) (note) Year
HHEE RABEER BRER
BEER LB AiiE AT iR (T K) (FH*K) (Hi=E) BT IER
Shum Yip Gaobangshan Garden 1#, Huicheng, Huizhou, Guangdong Residential
Phase 2.2 (land plot 1)
REBBEILREE2.28 (15 10358) BREBMNTERE Fx 81.00% 48,253 160,169 4 2022

Huizhou Shum Yip Cloud Mansion Project Huicheng, Huizhou, Guangdong Residential

BHNAREEERER BREBMNTERE FE 100.00% 44,678 169,524 1 2024
Shum Yip Songhu Yuncheng Songshan Lake, Dongguan, Residential

Guangdong
RERAE ERERZ TR FE 100.00% 50,017 169,956 4 2022

Shum Yip Zhongshan Future Gate Project Cuiheng New District, Zhongshan, Complex

Guangdong
RERLRRZPIRE BREFILTRTHE A 50.00% 668,974 2,210,479 2 2028
Foshan Lishui Qishan Yayuan Nanhai, Foshan, Guangdong Residential
FRLARKIRIL T3S BREFILTEER F=x 100.00% 19,883 79,407 4 2022
Hong Kong Tuen Mun Project Tuen Mun, New Territories, Residential

Hong Kong SAR
AEBEMEE BEBEFRITTHEH R FE 50.00% 12,205 56,143 3 2023
Terra Chengdu Yihu Rose Garden Qingbaijiang, Chengdu, Sichuan  Residential

Phase 4

A AR EBRS (1) mERBHERIE FE 52.54% 46,697 236,764 2 2024
Shum Yip Taiyue Mansion Chenghua, Chengdu, Sichuan Residential
REFWE 79118 BB T A EE [ Fx 75.05% 22,801 105,522 1 2024

Chengdu Qingbaijiang Shumyip Taifu Square  Qingbaijiang, Chengdu, Sichuan Complex

RBERTIRERERES R =g = PN Fa 97.68% 113,668 420,055 2 2024
Shum Yip Longwan Mansion Jianye, Nanjing, Jiangsu Residential

REFEE LR IHEERT SR Fx 100.00% 17,520 60,727 4 2022
Shum Yip Luxiyunjing Yuelu, Changsha, Hunan Residential

REBRER HRERDTERRE Fx 100.00% 61,327 135,111 1 2024
Nanhu Rose Bay Phase4 Wuchang, Wuhan, Hubei Residential

FABR S R HitERETRER T= 52.54% 29,322 130,883 3 2024
Shenma East China Industrial Technology Yushan, Ma'anshan, Anhui Industrial

Industrial Park

AEERIENBRELE ZREBRITRLE I% 100.00% 62,566 52,598 3 2022
Ma’anshan Shum Yip Huafu Phase2 Yushan, Ma'anshan, Anhui Residential

BRIVREER 5 ZREBRITRLE FE 100.00% 189,927 669,964 4 2022
The Cloud Mansion High-tech zone, Taizhou, Jiangsu Residential

iy IHATNTSHE F= 100.00% 19,365 57,748 2 2024
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Schedule of Major Properties

EHEY L

e Annual Report % 2021

Group II — Property interest held by the Group for sales

W — ARBEEFA R 2 R

Property

ES

Address

i3

Interest to
the Group

A&
Frfk R

TGFA (sg.m.)

AAEER
(F5)

Completion year

ERE 0

Shunde Shum Yip City
[EEE 31

Xiyue City
EU

Saina Bay
EE

Ma'anshan Shum Yip Huafu

BRILREER

Yihu Rose Garden

TRRBESE
UpperHills

RE S

Taifu Square Phase 1
ZEES1H

Shum Yip Zhongcheng
RED

Shum Yip Gaobangshan No. 1 Garden
BEL1HEE

Shum Yip Rui Cheng Phase 3.2
REEM3.28

Shum Yip Garden Hills Phase 3.2.1
REFINEZE3.2.15

Shum Yip West Lake Sanli Phase 2.1
RERM=22.158

Ma’anshan Shum Yip Huafu Phase 2.2 (North)
SEILREEF2H2AELE

Chaohu Royal Spring Garden

SO R

Shunde, Foshan, Guangdong
ERABILTIERE

Huizhou, Guangdong
BREEMT

Heyuan, Guangdong
BRETRT

Ma'anshan, Anhui

ZHERRLT

Chengdu, Sichuan
79)11%& A #B T

Shenzhen, Guangdong

ERERIT

Shenzhen, Guangdong

ERERT

Shenzhen, Guangdong
ERERIT

Huizhou, Guangdong
BREEMT

Changsha, Hunan
MEERDT

Huizhou, Guangdong
BREEMT

Huizhou, Guangdong
BREEMT

Ma'anshan, Anhui
ZHAEFBRLT

Com. & Res.
BEREE

Com. & Res.
AEREE

Com. & Res.
AEREE

Com. & Res.
BEREE

Com., Off. and House used
for industrial R&D

BE - BRER
EXMERE

Com., Off. and Res.
BE - PREREE

Com., Off. and Res.
BE - PREREE

Res.
T=E

Residential
F=E

Residential
F=E

Residential
F=E

Residential
F=E

Bantang Economic Development Zone, Residential

Chaohu, Hefei, Anhui

ZHASETER L ZEBERER

=

£

100%

100%

100%

99.77%

52.54%

100%

97.68%

100%

100%

80%

100%

100%

99.77%

100%

46,101.57

9,997.5

4,107.63

9,666.58

10,609.35

74,389.43

105,245.03

78,494.55

174.37

6,801.16

67,896.2

8,284.16

6,824.89

3,460

2012-2017

2012-2017

2012

2013-2019

2013-2020

2014, 2016,
2018

2019

2019

2019

2020

2020

2020

2020

2015-2020
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Group II - Property interest held by the Group for sales

BR — AREEE A R Z

Property

3

Address

3k

Schedule of Major Properties

Interest to
the Group
rEE
Frib

TGFA (sg.m.)

#EEER
(F5K)

EHEY L

Completion year

EBEH

Parkview Bay
2R

Shum Yip Upper Life
REBBLRE

Shum Yip Qinglong Mansion
REFR LR

Wanlin Lake

S

Shum Yip Splendid City
REBRBEW

Shum Yip Heron Mansion

RERMAT

Shum Yip Boyuan
REEE

Shum Yip Zhifeng Building
RERERE

Terra Licheng
TR

Nanhu Rose Bay

GEEEN

Shum Yip Four Seasons Mansion

RENFERE

Shenzhen, Guangdong

BRERW

Nanjing, Jiangsu

IEHERRT

Nanjing, Jiangsu

TEHERRT

Huizhou, Guangdong

BREEMM

Taizhou, Jiangsu

TEFEFMM

Changsha, Hunan

HEERDH

Chengdu, Sichuan
lIENa ¢ i

Shenzhen, Guangdong

BRERYW

Shenzhen, Guangdong

BRERYW

Wuhan, Hubei
MILEEEN

Chengdu, Sichuan
)l & B &

Com. & Res.
AERkEE

Residential
F=

Residential
T=

Com. & Res.
AERkEE

Residential
T=

Residential
T=

Com. and Off.

BEMBAE

N

Com. and Off.
AERRAE

Residential
T=

Residential
T=

50%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

88.04%

51.62%

75.05%

75.05%

75.05%

4,166.52

31,192.84

20,396.82

15,876.22

36,103.95

37,896.3

7,250.14

71,423.28

33,535.28

7,305.96

40,713.39

2021

2021

2021

2019

2021

2021

2018

2021

2020

2018

2021
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Schedule of Major Properties
FEYERL

Group III — Property interest held by the Group for investment

BB — AREF A R 2 Y S

Interest to
Property Address the Group TGFA (sq.m.)  Completion year
S BEHER
LIES 3k Frib R (£FXK) BRES
Shun Hing Square Junction of Shennan Zhong Road, Off., Apartment. and Carpark 100% 17,817.12 1996
Jiefang Road and Baoan Road,
Luohu, Shenzhen, Guangdong
FEES EREFITRABRAPERRE HAE  AFREES
RERERR
Shum Yip Centre Shennan Zhong Road, Luohu, Com., Off. and Carpark 100% 10,417.58 1997
Shenzhen, Guangdong
RERD BRE R E SR REHK BE WOEREES
Hua Min Building Renmin Nan Road, Luohu, Shenzhen,  Apartment., Com. and 50% 6,252.73 1993
Guangdong Carpark
ERAE BRAEFmRNEAREE 2 BEREES
Hua Min Building Renmin Nan Road, Luohu, Shenzhen,  Apartment 100% 947 .42 1993
Guangdong
ERAE BEREFImRAEARBEE NG
Shum Yip Building Wenjin Zhong Road, Luohu, Shenzhen, Off. 100% 7,877.21 1991
Guangdong
REXE R R R S8R AR B WAE
Noble Times Pingshan, Shenzhen, Guangdong Com 100% 26,975.97 2012
RRER BRARTHTILE GRS
Che Gong Miao Ind. Zone Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong Com., Off., 75.05% 143,916.74 1994-2012
Res. and Carpark
BRBEIXR BRERIMERE [EERE VN
EEREFESES
Shenhua Science & Technology Park Meilin Road, Futian, Shenzhen, Com. and Off. 75.05% 15,246.77 1994
Guangdong
REREE BERARITEEE G BERPRE
Tian'an Che Gong Miao Ind. Zone Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong Off Com., Res. and Carpark 37.53% 67,268.00 1992-2005
RRENHIER BRERITERE PRE - BEETRESS
Tian’an Nanhai New Cyber-City Phase 2 Nanhai, Guangdong Com., Off. and Carpark 37.53% 72,073.66 2008-2015
ARAEEEEEH2H BREME HE - WOEREES
Tian'an Panyu New Cyber-City Panyu, Guangdong Com., Res. and Carpark 37.53% 131,242.29 2010
AR HEBEIEIH BREER ¥ FEREES
Tian'an Longgang New Cyber-City Shenzhen, Guangdong Com., Off. and Carpark 37.53% 51,462.20 2010-2014
REZEAEEIN BRERIIT BE - BREREES
Tian'an Dongguan New Cyber-City Dongguan, Guangdong Com., Off. and Carpark 37.53% 91,085.96 2012-2017
REREZHIEIM BRERZT BE - BPREREES
Tian'an Jiangyin Cyber-City Jiangyin, Jiangsu Res. and Off. 37.53% 26,510.35 2012-2017
REZIR BT, TEEIRT EERPRE



Group III — Property interest held by the Group for investment

BER — AREF A R 2 Y

Property

ES

Address

b
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Schedule of Major Properties

Interest to
the Group
rEE
Frib s

TGFA (sg.m.)

AREER
(F5%)

EHEY L

Completion year

EBEH

Tian'an Changzhou New Cyber-City
REHMETBHR

Tian'an Qingdao New Cyber-City
RREBEMEIM

Tian'an Tianjin New Cyber-City
RRRBEIEFM

Tian'an Chongging New Cyber-City
AREBHEEH

Tian'an Wuxi Cyber-City
AR EHHIER

Tian'an Nantong Cyber-City
REEHBEEH

Tian'an Nanjing Cyber-City
AR RETEH

Shum Yip Garden
RETE

Sungang Warehouse Zone

FHAER

Composite Building on Taoyuan Road

R G AE

Dormitory Building on Taoyuan Road
R B8

Boxing Building

BEAE

Bolong Building

BEAE

Bofeng Building

S.Z. Int'l. Trust and Investment
Corp. Building

RYERETREQATAE

Changzhou, Jiangsu
IERE M T

Qingdao, Shandong
LEEESM

Xiging, Tianjin
RETAEER

Da Du Kou, Chongging
BEMAEA

Wuxi,Jiangsu
&L EHT

Nantong, Jiangsu
IEHEREAT

Nanjing, Jiangsu
IHAERT

Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong
ERERTEHEER

Baoan Bei Road, Luohu, Shenzhen,
Guangdong
BEREFIMBSEERILE

Baoan Bei Road, Luohu, Shenzhen,
Guangdong
BRERIMENRERILE

Baoan Bei Road, Luohu, Shenzhen,
Guangdong
BRENITRABELILE

Qingshuihe, Luohu, Shenzhen,
Guangdong
BRARmRESEENT

Qingshuihe, Luohu, Shenzhen,
Guangdong
BRA AT R E KA

Qingshuihe, Luohu, Shenzhen,
Guangdong
BRERmRSEEKT

Junction of Zhenxing Road
and Shangbu Zhong Road,
Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong
BRE R T1E B R RAEE Rk
EHHRERR

Off. and Com.
BREREE

Com.

[GES

Off. and Com.
BREREE

Off. and Com.
BAERMEE

Com., Off. and Carpark

BE - BAE

Com.

[GES

Com.

[EES

Com. and Off.
BERBAE
Com./Res.

[£1E

[GES

Com.

[GES

Com.

GES

FES

37.53%

37.53%

37.53%

37.53%

37.53%

37.53%

37.53%

100%

97.68%

97.68%

97.68%

97.68%

97.68%

97.68%

75.05%

30,925.70

14,291.52

20,130.65

11,628.82

81,228.29

82,217.24

111,435.50

2,646.43

72,564.21

4,812.73

4,835.28

12,861.05

39,284.24

10,070.39

1,316.54

2012

2015-2017

2016

2015

2014

2011

2014-2015

2002

1990-2002

1991

1988

2014

2014

2017

1990
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Schedule of Major Properties

EHEY L

Group III — Property interest held by the Group for investment

BB — AREF A R 2 Y S

Property

/ES

Address

bichld

TGFA (sg.m.)

#AEER
(F5%)

Completion year

EREH

Shenyang Wuai Bus Station
BEREEE

Shenyang Wuai Shengang Bus Station
and Meibo Trading Centre
BHELEABRELREBESP O

Coastal International Centre

AEERRRL

Chengdu Jinxiu Workshop
REBRELS

UpperHills
RE R

Pengji Properties
R

Xiangli Oasis Club
BN g

Times Technology Building
BRRMRAE

Longxi Garden
BEEIEE

Nongke Oasis Office Tower

BN AR

Nongke Business Office Tower
RREBH AR

Xiangli Garden
EHIEE

Tanglang City
SRR

Shum Yip Dongling
RERIS

Jinzhi Properties
ERME

Shum Yip Zhong Cheng
RER

Note to Schedule of Major Properties:

Shenyang, Liaoning
EEAEGT

Shenyang, Liaoning
BELEGT

Suzhou, Jiangsu

TEHAFMT

Chengdu, Sichuan
ey lE=y % i

Shenzhen, Guangdong
BRERT

Shenzhen, Guangdong and
Nanjing, Jiangsu
BRA R RIBHERR

Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong
EREFImEER

Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong
EREAITEHER

Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong

BREMIMERER

Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong
ERARTEEER

Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong
EREFRIIMERE

Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong
EREAImEHER

Nanshan, Shenzhen, Guangdong

BREFmELE

Luohu, Shenzhen, Guangdong

BRAE R R R

Luohu, Shenzhen, Guangdong

BRAE R R R

Futian, Shenzhen, Guangdong

BREMMERER

Properties which are insignificant are not included.

Interest to
the Group
S
Frib R
Com. 93.39%
[EES
Com. 93.39%
GRS
Com., Apartment. and Off. 100%
BE - ABREAE
Com. and Carpark 87.91%
BEREES
Com., Off. and Carpark 100%
BE - PREREFEES
Com., Res., Off. and Carpark 100%
¥ BRAERERS
Com. 100%
[EE3
Com. and Off. 100%
BAERPAE
Res 100%
r=
Off. 100%
NS
Off. and Com. 100%
WAERMEE
Com. 100%
[EES
Com., Carpark and Res. 50%
BE  FESREE
Com. and Carpark 95%
BAEREES
Off. and multiple-use 41.28%
BRAEREE
Com. and Hotel 100%
EEY
FEYE KM

17,155.70

106,911.95

58,471.73

29,013.03

378,818.21

198,855.42

2,560.00

52,742.86

6,5615.27

5,343.91

859.16

2,560.00

69,535.96

39,460.07

5,054.08

29,067.40

FEYMERTBIELEEM2WE -

1994-1996

2011

2009

2008

2017-2019

1983-2005

2003

2009

1984-1996

2012

2012

2003

2015-2018

2018

1988

2020
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